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2. Glossary of Terms

“$” means Canadian dollars.

“Amalgamation” means the amalgamation of Torino Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Corporation and SAS on November 5, 2015.

“Amalgamation Agreement” means the amalgamation agreement dated September 3, 2015
among the Corporation, Torino Acquisition Corp and SAS, whereby the parties agreed to carry
out the Amalgamation.

“Arrangement” means the plan of arrangement whereby the Corporation, being a subsidiary of
Parentco, entered into the Arrangement Agreement. The Arrangement Agreement and the
Arrangement were approved by Parentco shareholders on February 17, 2015 and approved by
the British Columbia Supreme Court on February 26, 2015. The Arrangement was completed
on March 12, 2015 and, upon closing, the Corporation issued 7,999,984 common shares to the
Parentco shareholders on a pro-rata basis pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement.
“Arrangement Agreement” means the arrangement agreement dated January 5, 2015 between
Parentco and the Corporation, whereby the parties thereto agreed to carry out the
Arrangement.

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation.

“BCBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia).

“Board” means the board of directors of the Corporation.

“CEO” means chief executive officer.

“CFO” means chief financial officer.

“Corporation” means Torino Power Solutions Inc.

“CSE” means the Canadian Securities Exchange.

“DTCR” means Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating technology owned by the Corporation.

“Final Non-Offering Prospectus” means the (final) non-offering prospectus of the Corporation,
prepared in accordance with NI 41-101, relating to the Corporation and filed with the Principal
Regulator solely for the purpose of complying with Notice 2015-003 Regulatory Guidance on

Plans of Arrangement and Capital Structure, published by the CSE.

“Listing” means the proposed listing of the Shares on the CSE for trading.



“Listing Date” means the date on which the Shares become listed on the CSE.
“MD&A” means management’s discussion and analysis.

“NEO” or “named executive officer” means each of the following individuals:

(a) the Corporation’s CEO;

(b) the Corporation’s CFO;

(c) each of the three most highly compensated executive officers of the Corporation,
including any of its subsidiaries, or the three most highly compensated individuals acting in a
similar capacity, other than the CEO and CFO, at the end of the most recently completed
financial year whose total compensation was, individually, more than $150,000, as determined
in accordance with subsection 1.3(6) of Form 51-102F6 Statement of Executive Compensation,
for that financial year; and

(d) each individual who would be a NEO under paragraph (c) but for the fact that the
individual was neither an executive officer of the Corporation or its subsidiaries, nor acting in a
similar capacity, at that financial year.

“NI 41-101” Means National Instrument 41-101 — General Prospectus Requirements, of the
Canadian Securities Administrators.

“NI 45-106” Means National Instrument 45-106 — Prospectus Exemptions, of the Canadian
Securities Administrators.

“NI 52-110” means National Instrument 52-110 — Audit Committees, of the Canadian Securities
Administrators.

“NP 46-201"” means National Policy 46-201 — Escrow for Initial Public Offerings, of the Canadian
Securities Administrators.

“Parentco” means Cannabix Technologies Inc, a company incorporated pursuant to the BCBCA.
“Preliminary Non-Offering Prospectus” means this preliminary non-offering prospectus of the
Corporation dated January 11, 2016, prepared in accordance with NI 41-101, relating to the
Corporation and filed with the Principal Regulator solely for the purpose of complying with
Notice 2015-003 Regulatory Guidance on Plans of Arrangement and Capital Structure,
published by the CSE.

“Principal Regulator” means the British Columbia Securities Commission.

“Prospectus” means, collectively, the Preliminary Non-Offering Prospectus and the Final Non-
Offering Prospectus (including any Supplementary Material thereto).

“Shares” means the common shares of the Corporation, having no par value.



“SAS” means Smart Autonomous Solutions Inc., a company incorporated pursuant to the
BCBCA on May 13, 2011 that amalgamated with Torino Acquisition Corp. on November 5, 2015
in accordance with the terms of the Amalgamation Agreement.

“Subscription and Assignment Agreement” means the agreement dated June 4, 2012 between
SAS and the University of Manitoba.

“Torino Acquisition Corp” is the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, amalgamated
pursuant to the BCBCA in accordance with the terms of the Amalgamation Agreement.

3. Corporate Structure

The Corporation was incorporated on September 10, 2014 pursuant to the laws of the BCBCA as
“Torino Ventures Inc.” On November 12, 2015, the Corporation changed its name to “Torino
Power Solutions Inc.”. The head office of the Corporation is located at 7934 Government Rd,
Burnaby, British Columbia V5A 2E2 and the registered and records office of the Corporation is
located at 800 — 885 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3H1.

Torino Acquisition Corp. is the Corporation’s only subsidiary and is wholly-owned by the
Corporation.

The diagram below describes the inter-corporate relationship between the Corporation and
Torino Acquisition Corp.:

Torino Power Solutions Inc.
(Formerly Torino Ventures Inc.)
e Reporting issuer in British
Columbia, Alberta and Manitoba.

l 100% owned

Torino Acquisition Corp.
(Completed Amalgamation with SAS
on November 5, 2015.)




Corporate History of the Corporation

The Corporation was incorporated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Parentco. The Corporation
entered into the Arrangement Agreement dated January 5, 2015 with Parentco. The
Arrangement Agreement and the Arrangement were approved by Parentco shareholders on
February 17, 2015 and was approved by the British Columbia Supreme Court on February 26,
2015.

Pursuant to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, on March 12, 2015, Parentco
shareholders of record received one new common share and one reorganization share of
Parentco. Immediately thereafter, all of the reorganization shares were automatically
transferred by Parentco shareholders to the Corporation in exchange for 7,999,894 Shares
which were issued to the Parentco shareholders on a pro rata basis. Lastly, Parentco redeemed
all of the reorganization shares by the transfer to the Corporation of $10,000 cash and the
Hazeur Property, and all assets related thereto. The Arrangement effectively resulted in the
spin out of the Corporation to Parentco shareholders which was carried out in reliance on the
prospectus exemptions set forth in section 2.11 of N1 45-106. As a result of the Arrangement,
the Corporation became a reporting issuer in the Provinces of British Columbia, Alberta and
Manitoba.

Prior to closing the Amalgamation, the sole asset of the Corporation was the Hazeur Property
which was transferred to the Corporation in connection with the closing of the Arrangement.
However, due to current challenges in the mining industry, the Corporation decided to
postpone any business activities in connection with the mining industry and commenced
seeking out alternative business opportunities outside the mining industry. As a result, most of
the Corporation’s business activities to date are solely based upon the consummation of the
Amalgamation with SAS.

For a full description of the Hazeur Property please see the Technical Report titled “NI 43-101
Technical Report On the Monster Lake South property” dated March 12, 2015 prepared for the
Corporation by Jeannot Theberge P.Geo, Terrax Management Inc., a copy of which has been
filed on SEDAR and available for review at www.sedar.com. The Corporation currently has no
plans to spend any funds on this property and is currently investigating options with respect to
hold or divest itself of this property. As at the date of this Listing Statement, the Corporation
does not consider the property to be a material asset to the Corporation.

The Amalgamation between the Corporation and SAS

SAS commenced the development of its business in May 13, 2011.

On July 20, 2015, the Corporation and SAS entered into a binding letter agreement to effect the
Amalgamation. On August 25, 2015, the Corporation incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary

Torino Acquisition Corp. under the BCBCA.

On September 1, 2015, the Corporation completed a 5:1 consolidation of its Shares.


http://www.sedar.com/

On September 3, 2015, the Corporation, SAS and Torino Acquisition Corp. entered into the
Amalgamation Agreement that superseded a binding letter agreement dated July 20, 2015 that
was entered into by the parties. The closing of the Amalgamation Agreement was subject to
the satisfaction of several conditions precedent, including the concurrent closing of a $200,000
financing by the Corporation and receipt of SAS shareholder approval of the Amalgamation.

On November 2, 2015, the Corporation completed a non-brokered private placement for gross
proceeds of $417,500 through the sale of 4,175,000 units at a price of $0.10 per unit. Each unit
was comprised of one Share and one half of a non-transferable common share purchase
warrant exercisable at $0.20 cents per Share for a period of 18 months from the date of closing.

On November 5, 2015, SAS amalgamated with Torino Acquisition Corp. In conjunction with the
Amalgamation, the Corporation issued 12,062,927 Shares to the former shareholders of SAS. A
copy of the Amalgamation Agreement has been filed on SEDAR and available for review at
www.sedar.com

4. Narrative Description of the Business

Summary

The Corporation is commercializing its patented Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating (DTCR)
technology and proprietary system architecture for application in overhead transmission lines
to address the growing demand by electric utilities to adequately increase the capacity of
congested transmission lines of electric utilities in North America and Europe. The Corporation
does not currently generate revenue. The technology is supported by five existing patents and
two pending patents.

The Corporation is seeking conditional approval to list the Shares on the CSE. The Corporation
had its Final Prospectus receipted by the Principal Regulator on March 15, 2016.

Overview of the Business

The Corporation is commercializing its patented DTCR technology and proprietary system
architecture for application in overhead transmission lines to address the growing demand by
electric utilities to adequately increase the capacity of congested transmission lines.

From 2002 to 2012, researchers at the University of Manitoba invested significant time and
expense in the development of Microwave Wireless Sensing solutions that resulted in the filing
of five patents and two patent applications. The earliest patent (Canadian patent 2,486,551)
was granted in 2003 and US patent 7,347,101 was granted in 2004. Subsequently Australian
patent 2006241369 and US patent 7,441,463 were granted in 2006 and the most recent patent
granted in 2012 (US 8,829,924). The DTCR technology remotely monitors the temperature and
stress on a transmission line conductor as well as meteorological conditions to provide accurate
real time data to utility Control Centers and Asset Managers in order to assess and maximize
the capacity of congested electrical transmission lines.
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In June, 2012, SAS acquired all intellectual property rights regarding the DTCR technology from
the University of Manitoba pursuant to the Subscription and Assignment Agreement. In
consideration for such acquisition, SAS agreed to pay $225,000 in cash, issue 2,200,000
common shares deemed at $1.00 per share and issue 500,000 warrants exercisable at $0.50 per
share to the University of Manitoba.

After over a decade worth of research and development attributed to the technology, the
Corporation’s DTCR system is advanced stage and nearing commercialization. The major design
and engineering work of the DTCR system (made up of two components being the Sensor and
Interrogator) was completed in November of 2014. The Sensor component is finalized and
ready for commercialization. To finalize the Interrogator component, the Corporation must
finalize the software user interface for output data, install a third party Global Positioning
System (GPS), and install a third party backup power all of which the Corporation anticipates
will be done within two months of the date of this Listing Statement. See table below which
describes the DTCR system.

Interrogator (Active component) Status Remaining tasks prior to
commercialization.
Description: Box installed on the pole or tower in a safe | Design and engineering e  Third party GPS
zone area. Interrogator sends a microwave signal to the | completed in November installation
sensor and the sensor radiates at a particular 2014. completion.
frequency. Interrogator receives the re-radiated signal, e  Third party
calculates a temperature value and transmits the (backup) power
information to a control centre at a utility company. installation.
Includes a meteorological station measuring air e  User software
ambient temperature, wind speed, wind direction and interface
solar radiation. completion.

Interrogator
Sensor (Passive component) Status Remaining tasks prior to
also known as microwave resonant cavity sensor commercialization.
Description: Hollow aluminum sensor — no electronics Design and engineering None.
in the microwave resonant cavity. Installed on completed in November

transmission line with a hot stick. 2014.




Sensor

As a final step to commercializing the DTCR system, the Corporation will be required to certify it
with third party laboratories. The Corporation has commenced this process and is in
discussions with such laboratories to carry out such testing which consists of basic electronics
testing, safety testing and high and low temperature testing of the Corporation’s system on
transmission lines. The Corporation expects the remaining tasks to finalize the Interrogator to
be completed by April 2016, and thereafter intends to commence the certification process for
the DTCR system which is anticipated to be completed by June 2016. The Corporation does not
anticipate any delay or impediments in achieving commercialization of its DTCR system as the
remaining tasks to finalize the Interrogator rely on standard and established third party GPS,
power backup systems and software development based on user preferences.

During the last 24 months, the Corporation has initiated contact with a number of existing
utility companies including Tri-State G&T Colorado, Manitoba Hydro, Hydro One (Ontario),
NYPE (New York Power Authority), PSEG, Bonneville Power Authority, Los Angeles Water and
Power LAWP, Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E), San Diego Electric, Tennessee Valley Power
Authority, and the Association of National Rural Co-operatives. The purpose of the outreach
has been to introduce the Corporation and its DTCR system, get feedback for its installation and
software integration requirements and gage interest for its solution.

Currently, utilities rely only on collected historical data to make highly conservative estimates of
capacity and the condition of transmission lines. This is essential for maintaining safety
standards and maximizing the operation of the grid, especially during high and low temperature
extremes and in icy conditions.

The Corporation estimates that any electrical utility can increase the capacity of its high voltage
transmission conductors by up to 20 per cent utilizing the Corporation’s sensors, monitoring,
and information systems. The resulting increase in revenue and savings in maintenance and
infrastructure costs is expected to have a material impact on the profitability and efficiency for
an electrical utility.

The Corporation employs environmentally friendly technology to provide continuous
monitoring of power lines and smart grids. The solution and system use proprietary sensors
which measure critical parameters including conductor stress/strain and temperature
combined with the wireless transmission of the collected data to a remote and nearby data




collection platform. This enables operation of the lines utilizing DTCR close to thermal limits and
computation of conductor Sag (Catenaries). As a result, the adoption of the solution provides
transmission operators (users) with the ability to deliver electricity in a more cost effective
fashion by increasing the throughput of the system by up to 20% using the same infrastructure.
This allows the customer (power utility) to achieve a higher gross margin on their existing
services in addition to reducing the need to develop more costly infrastructure expansion
including more power generators and distribution lines.

Additionally, the adoption of our solution into existing and new power distribution networks is
anticipated to provide utilities with the ability to conduct preventative maintenance which is
intended to result in reduced down time, costly repairs and overall system maintenance costs.
The Corporation’s system can monitor and record information providing valuable data to Utility
Asset Managers to aid in the assessment of conductor conditions in order to plan preventive
service and maintenance. As a solution, the Corporation’s monitoring system is intended to be
part of the Smart Grid initiative.

The Corporation plans to sell the products directly to the utility companies and, where
required, to provide reports to generate a recurring revenue stream.

As an alternative, the Corporation plans to provide electrical utilities with a fully outsourced
solution and generate recurring revenue streams from a combination of equipment leasing and
the provision of full service monitoring and reporting services.

Patents held by the Corporation

On June 4, 2012, SAS and the University of Manitoba entered into an Intellectual Property and
Subscription Agreement for the purchase of Canadian and US patent applications entitled, “A
Sensing System Based on Multiple Resonant Electromagnetic Cavities” and International patent
application (PCT) entitled, “Measuring Strain in a Structure using a sensor having
electromagnetic resonator”. In total, the Corporation’s technology is supported by five granted
patents and two pending patents, a summary of patents is provided below (all of which are held
by Torino Acquisition Corp.):

File Date Country App Type Identification Status

Measuring strain in a structure using a sensor having an electromagnetic resonator (US title)

2003-06-26 Canada Nationalized PCT 2,486,551 Granted Patents
2004-12-27 United States Nationalized PCT us 7,347,101 Granted Patents
2003-06-26 Europe Nationalized PCT EP1520159 Patent Pending

Sensing system based on multiple resonant electromagnetic cavities (US title)




2006-09-12 Canada Substantive 2,559,694 Patent Pending
2006-09-12 United States Substantive US 7,441,463 Granted Patents
2006-11-24 Australia Substantive 2006241369 Granted Patents
Method and apparatus for monitoring physical properties

2012-08-20 United States Substantive US 8,829,924 Granted Patents

In consideration for the Subscription and Assignment Agreement, the Corporation, to date has
completed the cash, share and warrant payments to the University of Manitoba, issuing a total
of 2,750,000 common shares and paying $175,000 in cash and issuing 500,000 warrants
(exercisable at $0.50, expiring 12 months after listing on a stock exchange). The cash, share and
warrant payments have fulfilled the payment obligation of the Corporation under the
agreement. There are 2 milestone payments in relation to the Subscription and Assignment
Agreement that are linked to future sales of the product as follows:

Milestone payment 1

Within 30 days of the Corporation achieving cumulative gross sales of ten million dollars
(510,000,000) with respect to the product, licensing revenues and/or sublicensing revenues
relating to the assigned rights and/or the invention, the University shall receive two hundred
fifty thousand ($250,000), plus any applicable taxes, from the Corporation.

Milestone payment 2

Within 30 days of the Corporation achieving cumulative gross sales of twenty million dollars
(520,000,000) with respect to the product, licensing revenues and/or sublicensing revenues
relating to the assigned rights and/or the invention, the University shall receive a further two
hundred fifty thousand ($250,000), plus any applicable taxes, from the Corporation.

Technology

The Corporation’s technology monitors the Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating (DTCR) of
transmission lines. In particular, the technology monitors the temperature and stress of
transmission line conductors as well as instantaneous meteorological conditions at the site, at
time intervals predetermined by the transmission line operator.

The Corporation’s system consists of two major subsystems; a passive part which is a
microwave resonant cavity sensor (sensor) and an interrogator which is an active component.
The sensor is installed on the conductor; the interrogator is installed on the tower in a safe
zone area.

An additional component is a small meteorological station measuring air ambient temperature,
wind speed, wind direction and solar radiation. These measurements are essential for the



dynamic thermal rating calculations. It also helps to calculate the temperature of the centre of
the conductor and information regarding the life time of the conductor.

The patented sensors and proprietary systems enable power utility companies to increase their
capacity by 5 -20%. DTCR offers a methodology to increase transmission line capacity under
various weather and electric load conditions while reducing the risk of failure under
unfavorable conditions. It also offers a means to compute the real time thermal rating of
transmission lines.

The traditional approach of transmission line rating is the static rating. Based on conservative
assumptions, static (constant) rating (how much power could be transmitted though a line) is
specific to each transmission line. This methodology relies on summer and winter static ratings
and weather conditions to define allowable temperature or sag of a given line. Weather
conditions such as environmental temperatures and wind are not static, and affect the
transmission line capacity.

A more recent solution is to carry more energy by converting Alternative Current (AC) three
phase lines to Direct Current (DC) lines. This way, the transmitted power capacity of a DC line
can be increased to 2 1/2 of the original capacity. This approach does not require new
structures or new permitting. It is intended to represent an economical choice for areas of high
constrains with limited opportunities to have new lines.

Traditional AC lines are three phase (3 lines) and all three are energized. When converted to DC
Lines, only two are energized and one is not. The energized lines run very hot and need DTCR to
control the temperature while the non energized line is cooling off. The conductors are
switched in sequence for maximum capacity and efficiency. In short, the DC lines also require
Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating monitoring for Temperature and Stress (Sag).

Building new transmission lines is a capital intensive and difficult proposition due to its high
cost, lengthy public hearings, and difficult permit process. DTCR monitors can be installed on
existing power lines deterring building of new power lines.

The patented technology enables the monitoring of the dynamic thermal circuit rating of
transmission lines. At time intervals predetermined by the requirements of the utility operator,
the technology monitors the temperature and stress of the transmission line conductor as well
as the meteorological conditions.

The system consists of two major subsystems; a passive part which is a microwave resonant
cavity sensor and an interrogator which is an active component. The sensor is installed on the
conductor; the interrogator is installed on the pole in a safe zone area.

An additional component is a small meteorological station measuring air ambient temperature,
wind speed, wind direction and solar radiation. These measurements are essential for the
dynamic thermal rating calculations.

The basic sensing principle for the resonant cavity sensor technology is illustrated in Figure 1
below.
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Figure 1: Principle of Resonant Cavity Sensor

The “interrogator” sends a wireless signal to the sensor which is received by the sensor antenna
and subsequently radiated into the sensor cavity as energy. The energy within the sensor cavity
reaches an equilibrium state after which the energy then radiates back to the interrogator via
the sensor antenna. The signal sent by the sensor and received by the interrogator is directly
proportional to the resonant frequency of the sensor which is directly proportional to the
length of the sensor cavity. Using this simple resonant cavity concept, measurements such as
temperature, strain, or displacement, all of which directly affect the length of the cavity, are
represented and converted into a resonant frequency that can be remotely monitored by the
interrogator. The basic operation of system at site is illustrated in Figure 2 below.
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Figure 2: Basic Operation of System at Site



This data collected by the interrogator will then be transmitted to the Corporation or utility
control center by communications such as:

e cellular network;

e satellite network;

e Radio Frequency transmission;

e SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition); or

e Fibre Optics.
The data received at the utility company control centre is analyzed to determine the upper limit
of the power that can be transmitted over the transmission lines and operation of the
transmission line close to its safety limits. Safety limits of a transmission line could be defined
by allowable sag, temperature and thermal history of the conductor.

Long term collected temperature and stress data from system is analyzed by transmission line
asset managers; allowing them to make decisions regarding the condition of the conductor.
Collected meteorological data can help to fine tune dynamic thermal models for each specific
location. The sensor system integration to a utility operation is illustrated in Figure 3 below.
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Figure 3: Sensor System Integration to (the Corporation data center into) the Utility
Operation

The electrical utility asset manager (Asset Manager) is a professional who, in this capital-
intensive industry, makes decisions regarding operation and maintenance of utility assets
where each failure is disruptive and costly. At the same time, he/she must also adhere to
stringent occupational and environmental safety regulations. The objective of asset
management is to strike an optimal balance between maximizing Overall Asset Productivity
(OAP) and minimizing Total Cost of Ownership (TCO). The asset manager is responsible for



deciding whether it is more cost-effective to continue to maintain, overhaul or replace a failing
asset.

The Corporation’s technology is intended to provide the customer with the capability to:
Monitor current temperature and stress strain conditions;

Accumulate data history;

Forecast future usage patterns;

Monitor and fine tune allowable max/min safety limits (temperature and/or sag limits);
Establish maintenance and upgrade schedules where applicable and

Improve overall reliability of the electrical grid.
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Competition

There are several Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating devices on the market or in advanced stages
of development. None of them have become utility industry standard.

Competing technologies measure either sag or conductor temperature of a single line. A single
system of the Corporation directly measures both sag and temperature of all the three phases.

Technical Performance Comparison Table

Compared to present technologies in the marketplace, the Corporation’s technology is the only
solution that has all the following key attributes as shown below in the Table.
Table: Technical Performance Comparison

Torino System
USI Technology
GeoDigital EPRI sensors

Nexan Cat-1
Therma Rate

Wireless sensor + # + +
Sensor without power
source

Sensor without
electronics, batteries or +
moving parts
Sensor needs no
calibration after +
installation

Sensor could be installed
on energized line

100% recyclable sensor +
Ambient temperature
sensor




Sensor measure
conductor temperature
Line stress/strain sensor
Wind sensor
Solar radiation sensor
Three phase DTCR
Maintenance free sensors
Low manufacturing cost
Works on AC lines
Works on DC lines
No battery in the unit

# Load Cells

+
+
+

I I I S P o e

Competing technologies measure either sag or conductor temperature of a single line. A single
system of the Corporation measures both sag and temperature directly of all the three phases.
To the Corporation’s knowledge, no competitors are measuring all three phases, temperature
and stress/ strain with a single system. The Corporation’s solutions can give valuable
information about the condition and remaining life of the conductor and assist the decision
process regarding refurbishment, replacement or postponement of maintenance of the
conductor. Furthermore, the Corporation’s systems provide information to the control centre
regarding ice buildup on the conductor. Torino sensors are wireless, battery-less sensors
requiring no maintenance. They can be installed on live, energized lines without any alteration
of the transmission line hardware.

Employees

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the Corporation had two employees and three
consultants working on software and engineering development in Vancouver, British Columbia.
The Corporation, in addition to its head office at 7934 Government Road, Burnaby, B.C., V5A
2E2, also has a production office under lease located at #275 - 625 West Kent Avenue North,
Vancouver, BC V6P 6T7.

The Corporation has entered into standard confidentiality agreements with the employee and
consultants that prohibit them from disclosing confidential information obtained during their
employment or engagement with the Corporation. The confidentiality agreements include a
covenant that prohibits them from engaging in any activities that compete with the business of
the Corporation for three years after the end of their employment with the Corporation.

Other Assets - Hazeur Property

On March 12, 2015, by way of plan of arrangement, Parentco transferred 100% ownership of
the Hazeur Property (also known as the Monster Lake South property) to the Corporation. As



consideration for the acquisition of the Hazeur Property, the Corporation issued 7,999,894
common shares to the shareholders of Parentco at a deemed value of $0.02 per share.

For a full description of the Hazeur Property please see the Technical Report titled “NI 43-101
Technical Report On the Monster Lake South property” dated March 12, 2015 prepared for the
Corporation by Jeannot Theberge P.Geo, Terrax Management Inc., a copy of which has been
filed on SEDAR and available for review at www.sedar.com. The Corporation currently has no
plans to spend any funds on this property and is currently investigating options with respect to
hold or divest itself of this property. As at the date of this Listing Statement, the Corporation
does not consider the property to be a material asset to the Corporation.

5. Business Objectives, Milestones, Strategy

The Corporation’s short term business objectives using the funds available are to complete the
Interrogator, or the active component of its DTCR system, the certification of its DTCR system
with third party laboratories and installation of a pilot plant for such system.

Extensive financial and technical resources have been expended on the development of the
DTCR technology since 2002 to bring the DTCR system into the final stages prior to
commercialization. The Company has allocated $20,000 to complete the Interrogator (active
component of the DTCR system), $50,000 for the certification of its DTCR system with third
party laboratories (FCC, UL and Powertech Labs as described below) and $35,000 for
installation of a test pilot. DTCR system testing at third party laboratories will consist of basic
electronics testing, safety testing and high and low temperature testing of our system on
transmission lines. The Corporation expects the remaining tasks to finalize the Interrogator to
be completed by April 2016, and thereafter intends to send the product for DTCR certification.
The Corporation sees no delays or impediments in reaching commercialization as the remaining
tasks to finalize the Interrogator rely on third party established GPS and power backup systems
and software development based on user preferences. In conjunction with certification, the
Corporation is seeking a pilot installation for the DTCR system and has allocated $35,000 for an
installation. After certification is received, the Company intends to commence marketing and
sales efforts for the DTCR system.

The following table presents short term and longer term objectives, milestones and projected
timelines to commercialization the Corporation’s technology.

Objective Milestone/Notes Anticipated Anticipated Completion
Cost Date
Completion of Interrogator e third party GPS $20,000 End of April 2016
(active component of DTCR installation
system) e third party (backup)
power installation
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e user software
interface
completion
Certification of its DTCR system Completion of technical $50,000?) End of June 2016
with third party laboratories. In Certification. In particular:
particular: e FCCPre-scan
e Federal Communications e FCC Approval
Commission (FCC) e UL Safety Approval
e  Underwriter Laboratory e Powertech High
(UL) Voltage Testing
e Powertech Labs of
British Columbia.
Pilot installation of DTCR system 3™ Party installation $35,000 End of June 2016
Total $105,000
(1) Consists of internal personnel costs to finalize the DTCR system.
(2) Consisting of $45,000 for external laboratory expenses and $5,000 for internal personnel costs to assist

with the certification process.
Funds Available and Use of Available Funds

As at February 29, 2016, the Corporation had working capital of approximately $527,706. The
Corporation funds its business using the proceeds from equity financings. The Corporation’s
estimated use of funds for the next twelve months is as follows:

Use of Available Funds Amount (S)
Estimated cost of Prospectus and CSE Listing 20,000
Completion of Interrogator (active component of DTCR system) 20,000
(1)

DTCR Certification (2 50,000
Test Pilot (3) 35,000
Operating expenses for 12 months (4) 310,000
Working capital 92,706
Total 527,706

(1) Consists of internal personnel costs to finalize the DTCR system. See “Overview of the Business”
and “Business Objectives and Milestones”.

(2)  Certification of the Company’s DTCR system with third party laboratories, consisting of $45,000
for external laboratory expenses and $5,000 for internal personnel costs to assist with the
certification process. See “Business Objectives and Milestones”.




(3)  Pilot installation of DTCR system. See “Business Objectives and Milestones”.

(4)  Estimated operating expenses for the next 12 months include: $55,000 for office lease and
administrative expenses; $150,000 for salaries, wages and benefits for personnel excluding
personnel costs anticipated to be incurred in connection with the DTCR Certification and
completion of the Interrogator set out above; $80,000 for a business development person; and
$25,000 for public company operations (audit, transfer agent, securities commissions fees,
annual general meeting).

The Corporation intends to spend the funds available to it as stated in this Listing Statement;
however, there may be circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a reallocation of
funds may be necessary. See “Risk Factors”.

The Corporation funds its business using the proceeds from equity private placements. In the
future, the Corporation may pursue additional private placement debt or equity financing
based upon its working capital needs from time to time, however, there can be no assurance
that such financing will be available, or completed on terms that are favourable to the
Corporation.

6. Selected Consolidated Financial Information

The Annual Financials, Interim Financials and Interim MD&A have been incorporated by
reference into this Listing Statement and can be viewed at www.sedar.com.

The following selected financial information is subject to the detailed information contained in
the financial statements of the Corporation and SAS and related notes included in this Listing
Statement. The selected financial information is derived from and should be read in conjunction
with the Corporation’s unaudited financial statements as at and for the 9 months ended
September 30, 2015, the Corporation’s audited financial statements as at and for the year
ended December 31, 2014, SAS’s unaudited financial statements as at and for the 9 months
ended September 30, 2015, and SAS’s audited financial statements as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2014. The following financial data is prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

The The SAS as at and | SAS as at and
Corporation | Corporation | forthe9 for the Year
as at and for | as atand for | month ended
the 9 month | the Year period ended | December
period ended | ended September 31,2014
Sept. 30, December 30, 2015 (Audited)
2015 31, 2014 (Unaudited) | (S)
(Unaudited) | (Audited) (S)
($) ($)

Revenue Nil Nil Nil Nil
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Total Expenses (107,431) Nil (539,564) (761,065)
Other income Nil Nil 38,446 159,239
Net Loss (107,431) Nil (501,118) (601,826)
Basic and Diluted Nil
Loss per Share (0.02) (0.05) (0.06)
Current Assets 131,803 1 285,610 173,216
Total Assets 154,603 1 2,182,544 2,259,791
Current Liabilities | 15,834 Nil 297,864 123,581
Total Liabilities 15,834 Nil 297,864 123,581
Shareholders’
Fquity 138,769 1 1884680 | >136:210
(Deficiency)

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” and “Financial Statements” in Appendices.

7. Management's Discussion and Analysis

The Corporation

The Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides an analysis of the
Corporation’s financial results for the nine month period ended September 30, 2015, and
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of the Corporation for such period,
and the notes thereto respectively. The Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is
attached to this Listing Statement as Appendix 6.

Certain information included in the Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is
forward-looking and based upon assumptions and anticipated results that are subject to
uncertainties. Should one or more of these uncertainties materialize or should the underlying
assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary significantly from those expected. See
“Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” for further detail.

SAS

The SAS Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides an analysis of the Corporation’s
financial results for the nine month period ended September 30, 2015, and should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements of SAS for such period, and the notes thereto
respectively. SAS’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is attached to this Listing Statement
as Appendix 3.

Certain information included in SAS’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is forward-looking
and based upon assumptions and anticipated results that are subject to uncertainties. Should
one or more of these uncertainties materialize or should the underlying assumptions prove



incorrect, actual results may vary significantly from those expected. See “Caution Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” for further detail.

8. Market for Securities

The Common Shares are not listed on any exchange.

9. Consolidated Capitalization

Since September 30, 2015, the Corporation has effected the following material changes with
respect to its share capital:

On November 2, 2015, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement for gross
proceeds of $417,500 through the sale of 4,175,000 units. Each unit was comprised of one
Share at $0.10 cents per Share, and one half non-transferable common share purchase warrant
exercisable at $0.20 cents per Share for a period of 18 months from the date of closing. The
closing of this private placement exceeded the minimum $200,000 financing required by the
Corporation to close the Amalgamation. The Amalgamation was subsequently closed on
November 5, 2015.

The following table sets out the capitalization of the Corporation as at the dates specified below:

Outstanding as
Outstanding as at the date of
at September 30, this Listing
Description Authorized 2015 Statement
Common Unlimited 5,599,978 (2 27,820,488
Shares
Preferred Unlimited Nil Nil
Shares
Warrants 725,000 3,750,000 6,833,500 ¥
Notes:
1 On an undiluted basis. Does not include any Shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants.
] As of September 30, 2015, the Corporation had 5,599,978 Shares issued and outstanding. Post September 30, 2015,

the Corporation issued the following Shares:

On November 2, 2015, the Corporation completed a non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds of $417,500
through the sale of 4,175,000 units. Each unit was comprised of one Share at $0.10, and one half non-transferable
common share purchase warrant exercisable at $0.20 per Share for a period of 18 months from the date of closing.
On November 5, 2015, the Corporation issued 12,062,927 Shares to former SAS securityholders in connection with
the closing of the Amalgamation Agreement.

On August 15, 2015, SAS completed a convertible financing for proceeds of $361,115. For the convertible financing,
interest accrued at a rate of 10% per annum, had no maturity date and was unsecured. On December 8, 2015, the
proceeds of this financing were converted into Shares of the Corporation at a deemed price of $0.07 per Share, plus
interest, for a total of 5,482,583 Shares.



€)

(4)

On December 14, 2015, the Corporation paid 500,000 Shares in commissions in relation to convertible loans.

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the Corporation had 27, 820, 488 Shares issued and outstanding.

Each of the 3,750,000 warrants are exercisable at $0.10 until expiry on September 2, 2017.

Warrants consist of 500,000 warrants exercisable at $0.50 until expiry on June 29, 2022, 225,000 warrants exercisable at
$0.50 until expiry on October 10, 2017, 3,750,000 warrants exercisable at $0.10 until expiry on September 2, 2017,
2,271,500 warrants exercisable at $0.20 until expiry on April 30, 2017 and 87,000 warrants exercisable at $0.20 until
expiry on May 30, 2017.

10. Options to Purchase Securities

As at the date hereof, the Corporation has not adopted a stock option plan and does not have

any stock options outstanding.

Common Shares

11. Description of the Securities

Holders of the Shares are entitled to receive notice of, and to attend and vote at, all meetings

of the shareholders of the Corporation, and each Share confers the right to one vote, provided

that the shareholder is a holder on the applicable record date declared by the Board.

Prior Sales

The following table summarizes the issuances of Common Shares or securities convertible into
Common Shares for the 12 month period prior to the date of the Listing Statement.

Price per Number and Type Reason for
Date of Issue Security/Exercise Price of Securities Issuance

September 1, 2015 $0.06 1,500,000 Shares Shares for debt @
September 2, 2015 $0.05 2,500,000 Shares private placement®@
November 2, 2015 $0.10 4,175,000 Shares private placement®
November 5, 2015 $0.10 680,000 Shares Shares for debt
November 5, 2015 $0.10 550,000 Shares Payment to University of Manitoba ©®
November 5, 2015 $0.10 515,878 Shares Commission
December 8, 2015 $0.07 5,482,583 Shares Conversion of loan ©
December 14, 2015 $0.10 500,000 Shares Commission ™

Notes:

(1)

On September 1, 2015, the Corporation converted $90,000 of consulting fees owed to Bryan Loree and Ravinder Mlait

into Shares at a deemed price of $0.06 per share for a total of 1,500,000 Shares issued via shares for debt.




2 On September 2, 2015, the Corporation completed a non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds of $125,000
through the sale of 2,500,000 units. Each unit was comprised of one Share at $0.05 cents and one-and one half
transferable common share purchase warrant exercisable at $0.10 cents per Share, expiring on September 2, 2017.

) On November 2, 2015, the Corporation completed a non-brokered private placement for gross proceeds of $417,500
through the sale of 4,175,000 units. Each unit was comprised of one Share at $0.10 cents, and one half non-transferable
common share purchase warrant exercisable at $0.20 cents per Share for a period of 18 months from the date of closing.

() On August 28, 2015, SAS converted $68,000 of consulting fees owed to Suresh Singh and John McLeod into common
shares of SAS at a deemed price of $0.10 per share for a total of 680,000 common shares issued via shares for debt.

(5) On November 5, the Corporation converted $55,000 (the final cash payment owed to the University of Manitoba under
the Subscription and Assighment Agreement) into Shares at a deemed price of $0.10 per share for a total of 550,000
Shares.

) On August 15, 2015, SAS completed a convertible financing for proceeds of $361,115. The convertible financing bears
interest at a rate of 10% per annum, has no maturity date and is unsecured. On December 8, 2015, the proceeds of this
financing were converted into Shares of the Corporation at a deemed price of $0.07 per share, plus interest, for a total of
5,482,583 Shares. A finder’s fee of 515,879 Shares was paid in connection with the financing.

7 On December 14, 2015, the Corporation paid 500,000 Shares in commissions in relation to convertible loans.

Stock Exchange Price
The Shares do not trade on any stock exchange.

12. Escrowed Securities

Current Legacy Escrow

Several arm’s length shareholders of the Corporation are subject to escrow pursuant to an
escrow agreement dated March 11, 2015. This agreement was entered into pursuant to the
Arrangement Agreement on March 12, 2015. The arm’s length shareholders were escrowed
because of prior transactions involving Parentco in connection with the closing of the
Arrangement. The form of escrow agreement is in accordance with National Policy 46-201 —
Escrow for Initial Public Offerings. A total of 135,431 Shares are subject to escrow and will be
released in accordance with the following schedule:

Date of Automatic Timed Amount of Escrowed Securities Released Number of Escrowed Securities
Release Released
On the Listing Date 10% of the Escrowed Securities 13,547
6 months after the Listing Date 15% remaining Escrowed Securities 20,314
12 months after the Listing Date 15% remaining Escrowed Securities 20,314
18 months after the Listing Date 15% remaining Escrowed Securities 20,314
24 months after the Listing Date 15% remaining Escrowed Securities 20,314
30 months after the Listing Date 15% remaining Escrowed Securities 20,314
36 months after the Listing Date 15% remaining Escrowed Securities 20,314




Additional Escrow on Listing

The Corporation has entered into an additional escrow agreement with a modified escrow
release schedule in accordance with National Policy 46-201 — Escrow for Initial Public Offerings
as follows:

Number of securities held in escrow or that are subject to a
Designation of class contractual restriction on transfer Percentage of class
Shares 7,805,907 28%(1)
Notes:

(1) Based on 27,820,488 Shares issued and outstanding as at the date of this Listing Statement.

A detailed breakdown of the Shares that are subject to escrow are as follows:

% Common
Shares at the
Designation of date of Listing
Name Security Quantity statement () (2)
Suresh Singh common 2,353,333 8.46%
shares
Ravinder Mlait common 1,256,777 4.52%
shares
Bryan Loree common 1,445,797 5.20%
shares
University of common 2,750,000
. 9.88%
Manitoba shares
Total 7,805,907 28%

Notes:

@ Based on 27,820,488 Shares outstanding as at the date of this Listing Statement.

Section 3.5 of NP 46-201 provides that all shares of a company owned or controlled by
Principals will be escrowed at the time of the Corporation’s initial public offering, unless the
shares held by the Principal or issuable to the Principal upon conversion of convertible
securities held by the Principal collectively represent less than 1% of the total issued and
outstanding shares of the Corporation after giving effect to the initial public offering.

Although the Corporation is classified as an “emerging issuer” pursuant to NP 46-201, the
Corporation and the persons subject to escrow as set out in the table above have agreed to the
following automatic and modified timed releases of the Shares subject to escrow:



Date of Automatic Timed Release Amount of Escrowed Securities Released

On the earlier of: (i) 2 years from date of receipt of the
Prospectus, or (ii) once the Corporation files financial
statements with the Principal Regulator that show
$100,000 in revenues from arm’s length parties (in either
case, the “First Release”)

1/10 of the Escrowed Securities

6 months after the First Release 1/6 of the remaining Escrowed Securities

12 months after the First Release 1/5 of the remaining Escrowed Securities

18 months after the First Release 1/4 of the remaining Escrowed Securities

24 months after the First Release 1/3 of the remaining Escrowed Securities

30 months after the First Release 1/2 of the remaining Escrowed Securities

36 months after the First Release the remaining Escrowed Securities

Assuming there are no changes to the escrowed securities initially deposited and no additional
escrowed securities are deposited, automatic timed release escrow applicable to the
Corporation will result in a 10% release on the First Release, with the remaining escrowed
securities being released every six months thereafter in accordance with the table above.

Pursuant to the terms of the Escrow Agreement, Suresh Singh, Ravinder Mlait, Bryan Loree, the
University of Manitoba and the Legacy Escrow Holders have agreed to deposit in escrow their
securities of the Corporation with the Equity Financial Trust Company as escrow agent.

Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, 780,590 Shares will be released from escrow on the First
Release.

Shares Subject to Resale Restrictions

The 10,157,583 Shares issued in connection with the private placements/issuances, as
summarized in the table below are subject to a four month hold period pursuant to NI 45-102.

Price per Hold Period Expiry Date
Security/Exercise Number and Type
Date of Issue Price of Securities
November 2, 2015 $0.10 4,175,000 March 5, 2016
December 8, 2015 $0.07 5,482,583 April 9, 2016
December 14, 2015 $0.10 500,000 April 15, 2016

13. Principal Shareholders

To the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Corporation, as of the date of this Listing
Statement, no person beneficially owns or exercises control or direction over, directly or
indirectly, common shares carrying more than 10% of the votes attached to the Shares.



14. Directors and Officers

Name and State
or Province and
Country of
Residence and
Position with the
Corporation

Date of
Appointment

Principal Occupation for the Past Five Years

Number and
Percentage of Voting
Securities Beneficially
Owned, Directly or
Indirectly™

Suresh Singh?
BC, Canada

Director

November 7, 2011

From June 2012 to present Director,
President and Chief Executive Officer of
ZincNyx Energy Solutions, Inc. From 2009 to
2011 served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of Cats Eye Capital
Corporation. From 1999 to 2006 served as
director, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Icron Technologies Inc. From 1993
to 1998 served as a Director and Chief
Operating Officer of PCS Wireless Systems
Inc.

2,353,333 or 8.46%

Bryan Loree®®,
BC, Canada

CFO and Director

September 10,
2014

December 2013 to present, Chief Financial
Officer Cannabix Technologies Inc., June
2010 to present, Chief Financial Officer of
Rockland Minerals Corp.; June 2007 to May
2011, accountant position with Nechako
Minerals Corp., a private mineral
exploration company; January 2008 to May
2011, business development officer with
Syntaris Power Corp., a private renewable
energy company.

1,445,797 or 5.20%

Ravinder Mlait,
BC, Canada

CEO and Director

February 27, 2015

December 2013 to present, Chief Executive
Officer Cannabix Technologies Inc., June
2010 to present, Chief Executive Officer of
Rockland Minerals Corp.; January 2004 to
May 2010, corporate development
positions with Pacific Bay Minerals Ltd.;
January 2004 to November 2007, corporate
advisory consultant to Cusac Gold Mines
Ltd.

1,256,777 or 4.52%

Darren Fast® ()
MB, Canada

Director

December 1, 2013

October 2012 to present, Director of
Technology Transfer, University of
Manitoba; 2005-Dec 2014, President,
Solalta Advisors Ltd.; Jul 2009 to Oct 2012,
Senior Intellectual Property Advisor, Public
Health Agency of Canada.

2,750,000 or 9.8%

M Percentage of Shares outstanding is based on 27,820,488 Shares issued and outstanding as of the date of this Listing

Statement, on an undiluted basis.

@ Audit Committee member

B3 Mr. Fast is the Director of Technology Transfer at the University of Manitoba which controls 2,750,000 Shares.




Background

The following is a brief description of each of the directors and executive officers of the
Corporation, including their names, ages, positions and responsibilities with the Corporation,
relevant educational background, principal occupations or employment during the five years
preceding the date of this Listing Statement, experience in the Corporation’s industry and the
amount of time intended to be devoted to the affairs of the Corporation:

Suresh Singh — Director, 62 years old - Mr. Singh served as a director and President SAS since November,
2011. He provided his services as a consultant to SAS during this period. From June 2012 to present, Mr.
Singh has served as Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of ZincNyx Energy Solutions, Inc., an
early stage energy storage company in Vancouver. From 2009 to 2011 Mr. Singh was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Cats Eye Capital Corporation, listed on TSX Venture Exchange. From 2006 to 2009
Mr. Singh provided consulting services to early stage public Companies. From 1999 to 2006 Mr. Singh
was director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Icron Technologies Inc., a technology company
listed on TSX Venture Exchange. From 1993 to 1998 Mr. Singh was a Director and the Chief Operating
Officer of PCS Wireless Systems Inc., a technology company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange. Mr.
Singh expects to devote 20% of his time to the affairs of the Corporation.

Ravinder Mlait, MBA — Director, Chief Executive Officer, 40 years old — Mr. Mlait has served as a director
of the Corporation since February 2015 and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation since December
2015. From December 2013 to present, Mr. Mlait has served as Chief Executive Officer of Cannabix
Technologies Inc, an early stage technology company listed on the CSE. From June 2010 to present,

Mr. Mlait has served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Rockland Minerals Corp., a mineral
exploration company listed on the TSXV. From January 2004 to May 2010, Mr. Mlait performed
business development services for Pacific Bay Minerals Ltd., a mineral exploration company listed on the
TSXV that carried out exploration activities in Argentina, Quebec and British Columbia. Initially, he was a
corporate communications consultant from January 2004 to November 2007 and later was appointed
Vice Present Business Development from December 2007 to May 2010. Mr. Mlait also acted as a
corporate advisory consultant to Cusac Gold Mines Ltd., a then mining issuer listed on the TSX from
January 2004 to November 2007. Mr. Mlait obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree (Economics) from Simon
Fraser University in 1999 and obtained his Masters of Business Administration from Royal Roads
University in Victoria, British Columbia in 2010. Mr. Mlait expects to devote 35% of his time to the affairs
of the Corporation.

Bryan E. Loree, BA, CMA — Director, Chief Financial Officer, and Corporate Secretary, 39 years old — Mr.
Loree has served as a director of the Corporation since September 2014. From December 2013 to
present, Mr. Loree has served as Chief Financial Officer of Cannabix Technologies Inc, an early stage
technology company listed on the CSE. From July 2010 to present, Mr. Loree has served as Chief
Financial Officer of Rockland Minerals Corp., a mineral exploration issuer listed on the TSXV. From June
2007 to May 2011, Mr. Loree held an accountant position with Nechako Minerals Corp., a private
mineral exploration company. From January 2008 to May 2011, Mr. Loree was a business development
officer with Syntaris Power Corp., a private renewable energy company. Mr. Loree obtained a Diploma
of Technology — Financial Management from the British Columbia Institute of Technology in 2002 and
obtained a Certified Management Accountant designation from the Certified Management Accounts of
British Columbia in 2008. Mr. Loree expects to devote 35% of his time to the affairs of the Corporation.



Darren Fast, PhD — Director, 49 years old — Dr. Fast has served as a director of SAS since 2013. From
October 2012 to the present, Dr. Fast served as Director of Technology Transfer at the University of
Manitoba. From 2005-2014, Dr. Fast was the President of Solalta Advisors Ltd., a consulting firm
working primarily with early stage technology-based companies. From 2009-2012, Dr. Fast was the
Senior Intellectual Property Advisor for the Public Health Agency of Canada. From 2002-2005 Dr. Fast
was the Chief Technology Office of Lombard Life Sciences, managers of the Western Life Sciences
Venture Fund, a fund that invested in early stage life sciences companies. From 1996- 2002, Dr. Fast
was the Manager, Product Planning and Development at Viventia Biotech Inc., a company developing
human monoclonal antibodies for treatment of cancers. Dr. Fast obtained a Bachelor of Sciences
(Biochemistry) in 1988 and a Master of Sciences (Chemistry in 1990) from the University of Manitoba
and a Doctor of Philosophy (Biochemistry) in 1995 from the University of Alberta. Dr. Fast expects to
devote approximately 3% of his time to the affairs of the Corporation.

None of the executive officers of the Corporation have entered into non-competition agreements with
the Corporation. Ravinder Mlait, Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Corporation, and Bryan
Loree, Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Secretary and a director of the Corporation, have entered into
non-disclosure agreements with the Corporation that include restrictions on such officers regarding the
disclosure of confidential information relating to the Corporation. See “Executive Compensation”.

Share Ownership by Directors and Officers

As at the date of this Listing Statement, the directors and executive officers of the Corporation as a
group beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercised control or discretion over an aggregate of
7,805,907 Shares, which is equal to 28.06% of the Shares issued and outstanding as at the date hereof.
The term of office of the directors expires annually at the time of the Corporation’s annual general
meeting. The term of office of the executive officers expires at the discretion of the Board. Ravinder
Mlait, Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Corporation, and Bryan Loree, Chief Financial Officer,
Corporate Secretary and a director of the Corporation, have entered into non-disclosure agreements
with the Corporation that include restrictions on such officers regarding the disclosure of confidential
information relating to the Corporation. No executive officers of the Corporation have entered into
non-competition agreements with the Corporation. See “Executive Compensation”.

Corporate Cease Trade Orders

To the knowledge of the Corporation, no director or executive officer is, or within 10 years before the
date hereof has been, a director, CEO or CFO of any company that: (a) was subject to an order that was
issued while the director or executive officer was acting in the capacity as director, CEO or CFO, or (b)
was subject to an order that was issued after the director or officer ceased to be a director, CEO or CFO
and which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting in the capacity as director,
CEO or CFO.

To the knowledge of the Corporation, no director, executive officer or principal shareholder: (a) is at the
date hereof, or has been with 10 years before the date hereof, a director or executive officer of any
company that, while that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to
act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or



insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors
or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; or (b) has, within 10 years
before the date hereof, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy
or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with
creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director,
executive officer or shareholder.

Penalties or Sanctions

None of our directors, officers or principal shareholders are, or have been within the last 10 years, the
subject of any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by
a Canadian securities regulatory authority, have entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian
securities regulatory authority, or been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or
regulatory body, that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making an
investment decision.

Personal Bankruptcies

To the best of the Corporation’s knowledge, no existing or proposed director or officer of the
Corporation, nor any shareholder holding sufficient securities of the Corporation to affect materially the
control of the Corporation, nor any personal holding company of any such person has, within the ten
years before the date of this Listing Statement become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation
relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangements or
compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets
of that person.

Conflicts of Interest

The directors of the Corporation are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the
best interests of the Corporation and to disclose any interests, which they may have in any project or
opportunity of the Corporation. If a conflict of interest arises at a meeting of the Board of Directors, any
director in a conflict will disclose his interest and abstain from voting on such matter.

To the best of the Corporation’s knowledge, and other than as disclosed herein, there are no known
existing or potential conflicts of interest among the Corporation, its promoters, directors and officers or
other members of management of the Corporation or of any proposed promoter, director, officer or
other member of management as a result of their outside business interests except that certain of the
directors and officers serve as directors and officers of other companies, and therefore it is possible that
a conflict may arise between their duties to the Corporation and their duties as a director or officer of
such other companies.



15. Capitalization

Number of
Securities
(non-diluted)

Number of
Securities (fully-
diluted)

%of Issued
(non-diluted)

% of
Issued
(fully diluted)

Public Float

Total outstanding (A)

27,820,488

34,653,988

100%

100%

Held by Related Persons or
employees of the Issuer or Related
Person of the Issuer, or by persons or
companies who beneficially own or
control, directly or indirectly, more
than a 5% voting position in the
Issuer (or who would beneficially own
or control, directly or indirectly, more
than a 5% voting position in the
Issuer upon exercise or conversion of
other securities held) (B)

7,805,907

9,205,907

28.06%

26.57%

Total Public Float (A-B)

20,014,581

25,448,081

71.94%

73.43%

Freely-Tradeable Float

Number of outstanding securities
subject to resale restrictions,
including restrictions imposed by
pooling or other arrangements or in a
shareholder agreement and
securities held by control block
holders (C)

14,522,372

21,355,872

52.20%

61.63%

Total Tradeable Float (A-C)

13,298,116

13,298,116

47.80%

38.37%

Public Securityholders (Beneficial)

Included (i) beneficial holders holding securities in their own name as registered shareholders; and (ii)
beneficial holders holding securities through an intermediary where the Issuer has been given written
confirmation of shareholdings. For the purposes of this section, it is sufficient if the intermediary
provides a breakdown by number of beneficial holders for each line item below; names and holdings of
specific beneficial holders do not have to be disclosed. If an intermediary or intermediaries will not

provide details of beneficial holders, give the aggregate position of all such intermediaries in the last

line.




Class of Security:

Common Shares

Size of Holding Number of holders Total number of securities
1-99 securities 308 13,383
100 — 499 securities 295 72,723
500 — 999 securities 88 60,867
1,000 — 1,999 securities 59 82,738
2,000 — 2,999 securities 30 73,265
3,000 — 3,999 securities 23 78,344
4,000 — 4,999 securities 6 27,358
5,000 or more securities 58 2,071,279

Convertible and Exchangeable Securities

Description of Security (include
conversion / exercise terms, including
conversion / exercise price)

Number of convertible / exchangeable
securities outstanding

Number of listed securities issuable
upon conversion / exercise

Warrants (Issued on June 29, 2012,
exercisable at $0.50, expiring on June
29, 2022

500,000

500,000

Warrants (Issued on October 10, 2012,
exercisable at $0.50, expiring on
October 10, 2017)

225,000

225,000

Warrants (Issued on Sept 2, 2015,
exercisable at $0.10, expiring Sept 2,
2017.)

3,750,000

3,750,000

Warrants (Issued on Oct 30, 2015,
exercisable at $0.20, expiring on April
30, 2017)

2,271,000

2,271,000

Warrants (Issued on Nov 25, 2015,
exercisable at $0.20, expiring on May
30, 2017)

87,000

87,000

16. Executive Compensation

Compensation to be paid to the officers and directors of the Company is determined by the board of

directors of the Company.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets out information regarding compensation paid or accrued to the Corporation’s
NEOs during the Corporation’s three most recently completed financial years ended December 31, 2014,
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:



Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation
($) All
Share- Option- | Annual | Long- Other
based based Incenti | term Pension Compen- Total
Name Salary Awards | Awards ve Incentive | Value sation Compensation
and Principal Position Year | (S) (S) (S) Plans Plans (S) (S) (S)
2014 12,500 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 12,500
Suresh Singh 2013 | 24,000 | Nil il Nil Nil Nil Nil 24,000
Directorl!)
2012 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2014 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Bryan Loree
CFO and Director® 2013 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2012 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2014 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Ravinder Mlait
CEO and Director® 2013 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2012 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
0 Mr. Singh was appointed as the President of SAS effective May 13, 2011 to November 5, 2015. Following the

Amalgamation (November 5, 2015), Mr. Singh was not appointed as an officer of the Corporation. All amounts paid to Mr.
Singh set out in the table above were paid by SAS prior to the Amalgamation.

2} Mr. Loree was appointed as the CFO of the Corporation effective December 1, 2015. The Corporation was incorporated
on September 10, 2014.

B)  Mr. Mlait was appointed as the CEO of the Corporation effective December 1, 2015. The Corporation was incorporated
on September 10, 2014.

The following table sets forth the details of all compensation provided to the Company’s directors, other

than the NEOs, during the Company’s most recently completed financial year (December 31, 2014).

Option- Non-equity
Fees Share-based | based incentive plan Pension All other
earned awards awards compensation | value compensation | Total
Name (s) (s) (s) (s) (s) (s) (s)
Darren Fast Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Pension Plan Benefits

The Company does not currently provide any pension plan benefits to its executive officers, directors, or

employees.

Defined Benefits Plans

The Company does not have a pension plan that provide for payments or benefits at, following, or in

connection with retirement, excluding defined contribution plans.

Defined Contribution Plans




The Company does not have a pension plan that provides for payments or benefits at, following or in
connection with retirement, excluding defined benefit plans.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company does not have any deferred compensation plan with respect to any NEO.

Employment Contracts and Termination and Change of Control Benefits

The Corporation does not have any employment or consulting contracts.

17. Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers

Aggregate Indebtedness

No directors, executive officers and employees and no former directors, executive officers and
employees of the Corporation are or were indebted to the Corporation in connection with a
purchase of securities or for any other reason as at the date of this Listing Statement.

Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers under Securities Purchase and Other
Programs

No directors or executive officers of the Corporation, and associates of such directors or
executive officers, are or were indebted to the Corporation as at the date of this Listing
Statement.

18. Risk Factors

This section discusses factors relating to the Company’s business that should be considered by
both existing and potential investors. The information in this section is intended to serve as an
overview and should not be considered comprehensive and the Company may face risks and
uncertainties not discussed in this section, or not currently known to us, or that we deem to be
immaterial. All risks to the Company’s business have the potential to influence its operations in
a materially adverse manner.

Risks Relating to our Business

The Corporation currently does not generate revenue from its operations, and as a result,
we face a high risk of business failure.

The Corporation has a history of operating losses and may never achieve profitability in the
future. The Corporation is an early stage technology company; accordingly, it has not generated
any business income from its proprietary systems to monitor the Dynamic Thermal Circuit
Rating.



The Corporation expects to be involved in research and development of its Dynamic Thermal
Circuit Rating (DTCR) monitoring system, working to achieve certification for its technology and
then performing pilot tests to determine its commercial viability. This process may take several
years and require significant financial resources without income. The Corporation expects these
expenses to result in continuing operating losses for the foreseeable future.

The Corporation’s ability to generate future revenue or achieve profitable operations is largely
dependent on its ability to attract the experienced management and know-how to develop and
commercialize its DTCR monitoring system. Successfully developing a DTCR monitoring system
into marketable solution may take several years and significant financial resources and the
Corporation cannot assure that it can achieve these objectives.

Patents & IP

The Corporation through its agreements with the University of Manitoba holds certain rights to
existing patents and patent pending technology but cannot guarantee their final patent
approval or commercial viability.

Industry Risks

The market for DTCR monitoring system is characterized by evolving industry standards,
changes in end-user requirements and frequent new product introductions and enhancements.
The introduction of products embodying new technologies and the emergence of new industry
standards and service offerings could render the Corporation’s existing products and products
currently under development obsolete. The Corporation's success will largely depend upon its
ability to evolve its products and services to sufficiently keep pace with technological
developments and respond to the needs of its existing and prospective customers. Failure to
anticipate or respond adequately to technological developments or future customer
requirements, or any significant delays in product development or introduction, could damage
the Corporation’s competitive position in the market place and effect commercialization plans.
There can be no assurance that the Corporation will be successful in developing and marketing
new products or product enhancements or service offerings on a timely basis.

Current and future competitors could have a significant impact on our ability to generate
future revenue and profits

The markets for our products are intensely competitive, and are subject to rapid technological
change and other pressures created by changes within our industry. We expect competition to
increase and intensify in the future as additional companies enter our markets, including
competitors who may offer similar solutions but provide them through different means. We
may not be able to compete effectively with current competitors and potential entrants into
our marketplace. We could experience diminished market share if our current or prospective
competitors introduce new competitive products; add new functionality to existing products,
acquire competitive products, reduce prices, or form strategic alliances with other companies.



If competitors were to engage in aggressive pricing policies with respect to their products, or if
the dynamics in our marketplace resulted in increasing bargaining power by the consumers of
our products and services, we might need to lower the prices we charge for the products we
plan to offer. This could result in lower revenues or reduced margins, either of which may
materially and adversely affect our business and operating results.

We may become involved in legal matters that may materially adversely affect us

From time to time in the ordinary course of our business, the Corporation may become
involved in various legal proceedings, including commercial, product liability, employment, class
action and other litigation and claims, as well as governmental and other regulatory
investigations and proceedings. Such matters can be time-consuming, divert management’s
attention and resources and cause the Corporation to incur significant expenses. Furthermore,
because litigation is inherently unpredictable, and can be highly expensive, the results of any
such actions may have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business, operations or
financial condition.

Investment in our current research and development efforts may not provide a sufficient,
timely return

The development of new software products and strategies is a costly, complex and
time-consuming process, and the investment in technology product development often
involves a prolonged time until a return is achieved on such an investment. We have made, and
will continue to make, significant investments in technology development and related product
opportunities. Investments in new products are inherently speculative and risky. Commercial
success depends on many factors including the degree of innovation of the products developed,
sufficient support from our strategic partners, and effective distribution and marketing.
Accelerated product introductions and short product life cycles require high levels of
expenditures for new development. These expenditures may adversely affect our operating
results if they are not sufficiently offset by revenue increases. We believe that we must
continue to dedicate a significant amount of resources to our development efforts in order to
maintain our competitive position. However, significant revenue from new product and service
investments may not be achieved for a prolonged period of time, if at all. Moreover, new
products and services may not be profitable, and even if they are profitable, operating margins
for new products and businesses may not be as lucrative as the margins we previously
experienced for our legacy products and services.

Protection of proprietary technology can be unpredictable and costly.

The Corporation’s success will depend in part upon successful new patent applications for its
technology and protecting existing patents that the Corporation holds. Obtaining such patent
protection can be costly and the outcome of any application for such can be unpredictable. In
addition, any breach of confidentiality by a third party by premature disclosure may preclude



the obtainment of appropriate patent protection, thereby affecting the development and
commercial value of the Corporation’s technology and products.

Competition

The planned business to be carried out by the Corporation will be highly competitive and
involve a high degree of risk. There can be no assurance that the Corporation will be the only
DTCR developer in North America or globally. In its efforts to achieve its objectives, the
Corporation will compete with other companies that may have greater resources, many of
which will not only develop technology but also manufacture and sell similar products on a
worldwide basis.

Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk

The Corporation may become subject to risks against which it cannot insure or against which it
may elect not to insure. Settling related liabilities would reduce funds available for core
business activities. Settlement of uninsured liabilities could have a material adverse effect on
our financial position.

Conflicts of Interest

Our executive officers and directors will devote only that portion of their time which, in their
judgment and experience, is reasonably required for the management and operation of our
business. Management may have conflicts of interest in allocating management time, services
and functions among the Corporation and any present and future ventures which are or may be
organized by our officers or directors and/or their affiliates. Management are not required to
direct the Corporation as their sole and exclusive function, and they may have other business
interests and engage in other activities in addition to those relating to the Corporation. This
includes rendering advice or services of any kind to other investors and creating or managing
other businesses.

It is possible, however, that our directors and officers may owe similar consideration to another
organization(s). It is possible that these and other conflicts of interest are resolved in a way that
has a material adverse impact on the Corporation.

Dependence on Key Personnel

The Corporation depends on support from existing directors and officers and its ability to
attract, and retain, new directors, officers and other personnel with appropriate skill sets.
Inability to retain key team members or find new professionals to serve in important roles could
have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business. There can be no assurance that
we will be able to attract or retain the quality of personnel required in the future.



Financial Liquidity

The Corporation has not yet generated revenues and will likely operate at a loss as it looks to
establish its first commercial DTCR products. The Corporation may require additional financing
in order to execute its business plan. Our ability to secure required financing will depend in part
upon on investor perception of our ability to create a successful business. Capital market
conditions and other factors beyond our control may also play important roles in our ability to
raise capital. The Corporation can offer no assurance that it will be able to successfully obtain
additional financing, or that future financing occurs on terms satisfactory to our management
and/or shareholders. If funds are unavailable in the future, or unavailable in the amounts that
we feel the business requires, or unavailable on acceptable terms, we may be required to cease
operating or modify our business plans in a manner that undermines our ability to achieve our
business objectives.

Financial Statements Prepared on Going Concern Basis

The Corporation’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under
which an entity is considered to be able to realize its assets and satisfy its liabilities in the
ordinary course of business. The Corporation’s future operations are dependent upon the
successful completion of financing and the creation of operations deemed successful according
to the standards of our industry. The Corporation cannot guarantee that it will be successful in
obtaining financing in the future or in achieving business objective set forth internally or
externally. Our consolidated financial statements may not contain the adjustments relating to
carrying values and classification of assets and/or liabilities that would be necessary should the
Corporation be unable to continue as a going concern.

We do not have any business liability, disruption or litigation insurance, and any business
disruption or litigation we experience might result in our incurring substantial costs and
the diversion of resources.

Insurance companies offer limited business insurance products and do not, to our knowledge,
offer business liability insurance suitable to management. While business disruption insurance
is available, we have determined that the risks of disruption, cost of such insurance and the
difficulties associated with acquiring such insurance on commercially reasonable terms make it
impractical for us to have such insurance. As a result, except for director’s liability and fire
insurance, we do not have any business liability, disruption or litigation insurance coverage for
our development operations. Any business disruption or litigation may result in our incurring
substantial costs and the diversion of resources.

Our Articles of Association contain provisions indemnifying our officers and directors
against all costs, charges and expenses incurred by them.

Our Articles of Association contain provisions with respect to the indemnification of our officers
and directors against all costs, charges and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an
action or satisfy a judgment, actually and reasonably incurred by them in a civil, criminal or



administrative action or proceeding to which they are made a party by reason of their being or
having been a director or officer of the Corporation.

Costs of Maintaining a Public Listing

As a result of seeking a public listing, the Corporation will incur greater legal, accounting and
other expenses related to regulatory compliance than it would have had it remained a private
entity. The Corporation may also elect to devote greater resources than it otherwise would
have on communication and other activities typically considered important by publicly traded
companies.

No Public Trading Market

Currently there is no public market for the Securities of the Company, and there can be no
assurance than an active market for the Offered Securities will develop or be sustained at any
time. If an active public market for the Corporation’s securities does not develop, the liquidity
of an investor’s investment may be limited and the share price may decline.

Share Price Volatility and Speculative Nature of Share Ownership

If the Corporation successfully lists on a Canadian exchange, this may result in many legacy
shareholders being able to freely trade their shares. Factors both internal and external to the
Corporation may significantly influence the price at which our shares trade, and the volatility of
our share price. Quarterly operating results and material developments reported by the
Corporation can, and likely will, influence the price of shares.

Sentiment toward technology stocks, as well as toward the stock market in general, is among
the many external factors that may have a significant impact on the price of the Corporation’s
shares. The Corporation is a relatively young company that is not generating revenue and does
not possess significant cash reserves. As such, it should be considered a speculative investment.
There is no guarantee that a liquid market will be developed or maintained for the
Corporation’s shares on any potential exchange.

We do not intend to pay dividends.

We have never paid any cash dividends and currently do not intend to pay any dividends for the
foreseeable future. To the extent that we require additional funding currently not provided for
in our financing plan, our funding sources may prohibit the payment of a dividend. Because we
do not intend to declare dividends, any gain on an investment in the Corporation will need to
come through an increase in the price of our Shares. This may never happen and investors may
lose all of their investment in the Corporation.

19. Promoters



The Company has no promoter or investor-relations person and has not had such a person or
such activities for more than three years. Officers of the Company handle all queries from
shareholders.

20. Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the Company is not a party to any material legal
proceedings or any regulatory actions. The Company does not contemplate any material legal
proceedings and is not aware of any material legal proceedings to be contemplated against it.

21. Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions

No director, executive officer, security holder, associate or affiliate of the Company has any
material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction within the three years before the date of
this Listing Statement, or in any proposed transaction, that has materially affected or will
materially affect the Company or a subsidiary of the Company.

22. Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars

Auditors

The auditors of Corporation are Kanester Johal Chartered Accountants, located at 3993 Henning
Dr #208, Burnaby, BC, V5C 6P7.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The registrar and transfer agent of the Shares is TMX Equity Transfer Services located at 650
West Georgia Street, Suite 2700, Vancouver, B.C. V6B 4N9.

23. Material Contracts

Except for contracts made in the ordinary course of business and those mentioned above, the
following are the only material contracts entered into by the Corporation and SAS within two
years prior to the date hereof which are currently in effect and considered to be currently
material:

1. The Subscription and Assignment Agreement between SAS and University of Manitoba dated June 4, 2012
can be viewed on SEDAR under the profile of the Corporation.

2. Lease agreement dated May 6, 2014. The Corporation has a monthly lease for an office located at 275-625
West Kent Avenue, Vancouver, BC. The lease was entered into on May 6, 2014 and calls for monthly
payments of $3,072 plus GST. The Lease contract is on a month to month basis and can be terminated by
providing 1 month prior written notice by either the Corporation or the lessor. The Lease agreement can
be viewed on SEDAR under the profile of the Corporation.



3. Amalgamation Agreement dated September 3, 2015. (See section on the Amalgamation between the
Corporation and SAS.) The Amalgamation Agreement dated September 3, 2015 can be viewed on SEDAR
under the profile of the Corporation.

4. The Arrangement Agreement, dated January 5, 2015 between Parentco and the Corporation can be
viewed on SEDAR under the profile of Cannabix Technologies Inc.

5. The Escrow Agreement, dated March 11, 2015 between the Corporation, Equity Financial Trust Company
and Securityholders of the Corporation.

6. The Escrow Agreement dated March 11, 2016 between the Corporation, Equity Financial Trust Company
and Securityholders of the Corporation.

24. Interest of Experts

No person whose profession or business gives authority to a statement made by such person
and who is named in this Listing Statement has received or will receive a direct or indirect
interest in the Corporation’s property or any associate or affiliate of the Corporation.

Kanester Johal Chartered Accountants has confirmed that it is independent of the Corporation
in accordance with the Code of Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants
of British Columbia.

DeVisser Gray LLP Chartered Accountants has confirmed that it is independent of the
Corporation in accordance with the Code of Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia.

As at the date hereof, none of the aforementioned persons beneficially owns, directly or
indirectly, securities of the Corporation or its associates and affiliates. In addition, none of the
aforementioned persons nor any director, officer or employee of any of the aforementioned
persons, is or is expected to be elected, appointed or employed as, a director, senior officer or
employee of the Corporation or of an associate or affiliate of the Corporation, or as a promoter
of the Corporation or an associate or affiliate of the Corporation.

25. Other Material Facts

To management’s knowledge, there are no other material facts relating to the Corporation that
are not otherwise disclosed in this Listing Statement or are necessary for the Listing Statement
to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the Corporation.



26. Certificate of Issuer

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, the Company hereby applies for
the listing of the above mentioned securities on the CSE. The foregoing contains full, true, and
plain disclosure of all material information relating to the Company. It contains no untrue
statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be
stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading
in light of the circumstances in which it was made.

Dated at the City of Vancouver, British Columbia, this 15th day of March, 2016.

Ravinder Mlait, Bryan Loree
Director and CEO Director and CFO



27. Financial Statements & Appendices

The following financial statements are included herein:

APPENDIX “1” SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

APPENDIX “2” SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC. UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

APPENDIX “3” SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS FOR PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

APPENDIX “4” TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC. (FORMERLY TORINO VENTURES INC.) AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

APPENDIX “5” TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC. (FORMERLY TORINO VENTURES INC.)
UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

APPENDIX “6” TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC. (FORMERLY TORINO VENTURES INC.)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2015

APPENDIX “7”

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER




APPENDIX 1 — SAS DEC 31, 2014 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013




Kanester Johal §

Chartered Accountants Narinder 5. Jahal, CA (604) 451-8300
Direct Line: (B04) 451-8350
e-mail; njohakftkjca.com Sudbe 208
3853 Hanning Drhve
Burnatyy, B.C. V5C 6P7
Satpal 5. Johi, CA Canada
Direct Line; (604} 451-8360 Fesc: {04 451-8301
a=mal: sjehifikjca.com infoifkjca.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Sharcholders of
Smart Autonomous Solutions Inc.,

Report on the Financial Statements

We have auvdited the accompanying financial statements of Smart Autonomous Solutions Inc., which
comprise the statements of financial position &t December 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and January 1,
2013, and the statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 20014 and 2013, and the related notes, which comprise a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finaneial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal controls as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are firee from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or emor.,

Anditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design aodit procedures that are
appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness af
the entity's internal contrel. An auditor also includes evaluating the appropriatensss of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide
& basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Smart Autonomous Solutions Ine. ag at December 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and January 1, 2013 and

its financial performance and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

CA®

Member of the Institute of Charterad Accountants of B.C.
"a hip ol gralsasissal carparali




Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1 in the financial statements which describes
condition and matters that indicate the existence of material uncertainties that may cast a significant

doubt upon Company”s ability to continue as a going concern.

Burnaby, BC KANESTER JOHAL
Tuly 24, 2015 Chartered Professional Accountants

KJ



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Statements of Financial Position

As At December 31, December 31, January 1,
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 2014 2013 2013
Assets
Current
Cash § 103,926 £ 237449 £ Bl14953
Accounts receivable (Mote 3) 66,491 07,916 21,607
Prepaid expense 2,799 2,248 2,518
Scientific research and development credit
receivable - 124,439 19,136
173,216 462,052 858,214
Deposits - 2,522 2,522
Property and Equipment (Note 4) 14,283 31,742 756
Intangibles Assets (Note 5) 2,072,292 2317.292 2,400,000
Total Asscts $ 2,259,791 b 281 3,608 $3.261 .4‘9.2_
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 123,581 § 75572 § 66,862
Share Capital And Deficit
Share Capital (MNote 6) 3,236,002 3,236,002 3,236,002
Contributed Surplus 225,000 225,000 225,000
Deficit (1,324,792) (722,966) (266,372
2,136,210 2,738,036 3,194,630
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 3 2,259,791 $2813,608 $3.261.492
Going Concern (Note 1)
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 11)
Approved On Behalf Of The Board:
Dimﬂ“ “Suresh Smg}!” Dimc‘.ﬂr “Alex KEanavev”

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis.)



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Statements OF Loss And Comprehensive Loss

For The Years Ended December 31, 2004 And 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 2014 2013
Operating Expenses
Accounting and legal 5 30,860 ¥ 16369
Amortization 262,458 145,035
Bank and interest charges 672 257
Consulting 150,038 190,175
Development expense 26,553 44,440
Dues, fees and licenses - 551
Duty and brokerage 1,447 5,428
Entertainment and promaotion - 959
Foreign Exchange = 1,624
Insurance 7,258 5,374
Internet 9.389 5,018
Promotion 2,500 4218
Office and general 7,500 2,377
Fent 30,777 46,348
Placement fees 3,000 -
Telephone 1,074 T4
Travel 1,721 3,438
Other = 2,045
Wapes and benefits 216,713 186,052
Loss From Operations (T61,065) (661,002)
Other Income and Expenses
Interest Income (2,130) (6,941)
Scientific and Research Development Credit - (105,303)
Industrial Ressarch Assistance Program Credit {157,100 (02,164)
Loss Before Income Tax (601,826) (456,594)
Net and Comprehensive Loss for the year £ (601,826) $ (456,594)
Basic and Fully Diluted Loss Per Share (0.05%) £ (0.044)
Weighted Average Number of Commeon Shares Outstanding 10,317,045 10,317,049

{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Statements Of Changes in Equity
For The Years Ended December 31,2014 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) Number of Shares  Capital Stock Contributed Surplus Deficit Total Equity
Balance as at December 31, 2012 10,317,049 § 3,236,002.00 $ 225,000 $(266,372) $ 3,194,630
Net and comprehensive loss

for the year - - - (456,594) (456,594)
Balance as at December 31, 2013 10,317,049 3,236,002 225,000 (722,966) 2,738,036

Net and comprehensive loss
for the year - - - (601,826) (601,826)

Balance as at December 31,2014 10,317,049 § 3,236,002 $ 225,000 $§  (1,324,792) $ 2,136,210




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Statements OF Cash Flows
For The Years Ended December 31, 2014 And 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 2014 2013
Operating Activities
Met and comprehensive loss for the year ¥ (601.826) (456,594)
ltems not affecting cash:
Amortization 262,458 145,035
(339,368) (311,559)
Met change in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable 31,425 {76,309)
Prepaid expenses (331) 271
Deposits 2,522 -
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities 48,010 B, 709
Scientific research and development credit receivable 124 439 (105,303)
(133,523) (484.191)
Investing Activities
Additions to intangible assets - (50,0000
Additions to property and equipment - (43,313)
- (93,313)
Decrease In Cash (133,523) (577.504)
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 237,449 £14,953
Cash and equivalents, end of year £ 103926 237 449
Cash and equivalents consists of::
Bank F 103,926 34,497
Cash equivalents - 202,952
§ 103,926 237,449

(The accompanying nofes are an infegral part of these financial statements.)

KJ



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

MNotes To The Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 20014 and 20013
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

1. MNatwre of Activities and Going Concern

Smart Autonomous Solutions Ine, (the "Company"™) was incorporated under the Company Act of
British Columbia on May 13, 2011. The Company is a technology company involved in
developing commercial applications for optimizing the current carrying capacity of grid
infrastructure and transmission lines. The Company has not yet generated revenues from
operations, accordingly, the Company is considered to be an enterprise in the development stage.

The address of the Company's corporate office and principal place of business is Suite T05 - 625
West Kent Avenue North, Vancouver, B.C., V6P 6T7, Canada,

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on June XX, 2013,

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis, which assumes that the
Company will continue operations for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets
and discharge its obligations in the normal course of operations. These financial statements do not
include any adjustments to the amounts and classifications of assets and liabilities that might be

necessary should the Company be unable to continuc as a going concern. In assessing whether the
going concern assumption is appropriate, management takes into account all available information
shout the future, and prior operating results. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the
Company incurred a net and comprehensive loss of $601,826 (2013 - $456,594) and has an
accumulated deficit at December 31, 2014 of $1,324,792 (2013 - $722,966). The Company's
ability to continue its operations will depend upon, but not be limited to, obtaining additional
financing and generating revenues sufficient to cover its operating costs. These uncertainties cast
significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a geing concern.

Management is of the opinion that it will be in a position to raise ongoing financing a8 needed;
however, there is no certainty that these and other strategies will be sufficient to permit the
Company to continue as a going concern,

If the going concern assumption was not appropriate for these financial statements then
adjustments would be necessary to the carrying value of assets and liabilities, the reperted
expenses and the balance sheet classifications used and such amounts would be material.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The: principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below, These policics have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian penerally accepted
accounting principles as set forth in Part 1 of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada
(CPA Canada) Handbook — Accounting, which incorporates International Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (*IASBE™). The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments.

KJ



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Motes To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 20014 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (contd..)

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with [FRS requires the use of certain eritical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas invalving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are also further disclosed in this note, in the significant management estimation and judgment in
applying accounting palicies section.

Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the functional currency of
the Company.

b) Transaciions and balances

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the prevailing
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities, and revenue and expense
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rate prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange gaing and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are recognized in statement of loss and

comprehensive loss,

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss
within “exchange expense®,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously,

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.

Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of the finaneial instrument. At
initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories
depending on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired:




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Motes To The Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (contd...)
a) Financial assets ai fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives are also included in this category unless they are
designated as hedges.

Financial instruments in this category are recognized initially and subsequently at fair wvalue.
Transaction costs are expensed in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are classified a5 current assets except for the portion expected to
be realized or paid bevond twelve months of the statements of financial position date, which is
classified as non-current asset.

b} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.

Loans and receivables are recognized initially at the amount expected to be received, less, when
material, a discount to reduce the Ioans and receivables to fair value, Subsequently, loans and
receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective intevest method less a provision for
impairment. Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for instruments with
maturities greater than twelve months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as
non-current assets.

¢} Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this eategory or
not classified in any of the other categories.

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs and
are subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). When an available-for-sale asset is sold or
impaired, the accumulated gains or losses are moved from accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) to the statement of loss and comprehensive loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets, unless the investment
matures within twelve months, or management expects to dispose of them within twelve months.

d) Financial liabilities at amoriized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at the amount required to be paid,
less, when material, a discount to reduce the payables to fair value. Subsequently, they are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest mathod.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within twelve months.
Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

KJ



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Motes To The Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (conrd..)
The Company has classified its financial instruments as follows:

Category Financial instrument

Loans and receivables Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Financial liabilities at amortized cost Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics

Financial instruments cavried at fair value

Finaneial instruments carried at fair value on the statements of financial position are measured
using a fair value hicrarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level | - valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3 - valvation techmiques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Transaction costs

Transaction costs related to financial instruments that are not classified as assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, are recognized in statement of financial position as an adjustment
to the cost of the financial instrument upon initial recognition and amortized using the effective
interest rate method, Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as deferred
costs under non-current assets and are amortized over the term of the facility.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that oceurred after initial
recognition (a “loss event™) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 1f such evidence exists, the Company recognizes an
impairment loss, as follows:




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
MNotes To The Finaneial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 20013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (conrd..)
a) Finameial assets carried at amaortized cost

The impairment loss is the difference between the amortized cost of the loan or receivable and the
present value of the estimated future eash flows, discounted uszing the instrument’s original
effective interest rate. The carryving amount of the asset is reduced by this amount cither directly or
indirectly through the use of an allowance account,

Impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent periods
if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event

occurring after the impairment was recognized.

Impairment losses as well as reversals are recognized in the statement of loss and comprehensive
loss,

b} Available-for-sale financial assets

The impairment loss is the difference between the original cost of the asset and its fair value at the
measurement date, less any impairment losses previously recognized in the statement of loss and
comprehensive loss. This amount represents the cumulative loss in accumulated other
comprehensive income that is reclassified to the statement of loss and comprehensive loss,
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets may not be reversed.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers amounts held in bank accounts and all highly liquid instruments with
ariginal maturities of three months or less on the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents.

Property, equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation, accurmulated
impairment losses and subsequent reversals, if applicable. Property and equipment are amortized at
various rates designed to amortize the assets over their estimated useful lives. The annual

amortization rates are as follows:

Rate
Camputers equipment 55% declining balance
Development equipment 55% declining balance

However, “major overhauls and replacements”™ are capitalized to the statement of financial position
as a separate component, with the replaced part or previous overhaul derecognized from the
statement. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Motes To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2013

{Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (contd...)

Construction in progress is not depreciated until the assets are put inte use. Costs are only
capitalized if they are directly attributable to the construction or development of the assets.

Residual values, method of depreciation and useful life of the assets are reviewed annoally and
adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost, net of accumulated amortization,
accumulated impairment losses and reversals, iF applicable. Intangible assets acquired through a
business combination are recognized at fair value at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives according to the following annual terms:

Period

Intellectual Property 20 years

Impairment of non-financial assels

Mon-financial assets with finite lives are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. In addition, non-
financial assets that are not amortized are subject to an annuwal impainment assessment. Any
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). The Company
evaluates impairment losses for potential reversals when events or changes in circumstances
warrant such consideration.

Income taxes

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferved tax. Tax is recognized in the statement
of loss and comprehensive loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss) or directly in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive income (loss) or directly in equity, respectively.

a) Current fax

The Current income taxes are recognized for the estimated income taxes payable or receivable on
taxable income or loss for the current year and any adjustment to income taxes payable in respect
of previous years. Current income taxes are determined using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the vear-end date.

K<J



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Motes To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)
&) Deferred rax

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that are enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the
statement of financial position and are expected to apply when the related deferred incorme tax
asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax asgets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be used,

Deferred income tax is provided for on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
veversal of the temporary differsnce is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against curmrent tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for future

operating losses,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognized as interest expense.




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Motes To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {confd..)
Government assistance and investment tax credits

Government assistance and investment tax credits are recorded as either a reduction of the cost of
the applicable assets, or credited against the related expense incurred in the statement of
comprehensive loss, or grants related to income are presented as part of profit or loss, either
separately or under a general heading such as 'Other income’, 25 determined by the terms and
conditions of the agreements under which the assistance is provided to the Corporation or the
nature of the expenditures which gave rise to the credits. Government assistance and investment
tax credit receivables are recorded when their receipt is reasonably assured,

Research and development expenses

Research expenses are charged to the statement of loss and comprehensive loss in the period they
are incurred. Development expenses are charged to the statement of loss and comprehensive loss,
except for those that meet the following criteria and are capitalized: the feasibility of the product
has been established, management intends to manufacture the product and has the capacity to use
or sell it, the future economic benefits are likely to occur, the market for the product is defined,
and the Company has the resources to complete the project and can reliably measure development
costs. Research and development expenses charged to the statement of loss and comprehensive
loss and included in the calculation of scientific research and development credit claimed for the
year were have not been segregated yet (2013-5191,063). No research and developiment expenses
have been recorded as intangible assets as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

Share capital

Share capital is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of shares
and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity. When share capital is repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognized as a
deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a
deduction from equity. When treasury shares are subsequently reissued, the amount received is
recognized as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is
transferred to or from retained earnings.

Share issue costs and warrants

Costs associated with the issuance of shares are charged directly to share capital. Proceeds
received on issuance of units, consisting of common shares and warrants, are allocated entirely to
common shares,




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Motes To The Financial Statemenis
Years Ended December 31, 20014 and 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Daollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (confd..)
Share-based payments

Where equity-settled share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the options at the
date of grant is charged to the statement of comprehensive loss/income over the vesting period,
Performance vesting conditions arc taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at each reporting date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognized over the vesting period is based on the number of options that eventually vest, Non-
vesting eondilions and market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options
granted. As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made imespective of
whether these vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for Failure
to achieve a market vesting condition or where a non-vesting condition is not satisfied.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before and after the modification, is also charged 1o
the statement of comprehensive loss/income over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to employees, they are recorded at the fair value of the
equity instrument granted at the grant date. The grant date fair value is recognized in
comprehensive loss/income over the westing period, described as the period during which all the
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

Where equity instruments are granted to non-employees, they are recorded at the fair value of the
goods or services received in the statement of comprehensive loss/income and deficit.

When the value of goods or services received in exchange for the share-based payment eannot be
reliably estimated, the fair value is measured by use of a valuation model.

All equity-settled share-based payments are reflectad in contributed surplus, until exercised. Upon
exercise, shares are issued from treasury and the amount reflected in contributed surplus is
credited to share capital, adjusted for any consideration paid.

Where a grant of options is cancelled or settled during the vesting period, excluding forfeitures
when vesting conditions are not satisfied, the Company immediately accounts for the cancellation
as an acceleration of vesting and 1ccognizes the amount that otherwise would have been
recognized for services received over the remainder of the vesting period. Any payment made to
the employee on the cancellation is accounted for as the repurchase of an equity interest except to
the extent the payment exceeds the fair value of the equity instrument granted, measured at the
repurchase date. Any such excess is recognized as an expense.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net eamings for the period attributable to equity
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period.

Diluted sarnings per sharc assume the conversion, exercise or contingent issuance of securities
only when such conversion, exercise or issuance would have a dilutive effect on the income per
share. The treasury stock method is used to determine the dilutive effect of the warrants and share
options and the if<converted method is used for convertible debentures.

K.J



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Motes To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Daollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cond..)
Significant management estimation and judgment in applying accounting policies

The preparation of financizl statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and diselosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of income and expenses during the reporting period. The preparation of the financial statements
also requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the accounting policies.

On an on-going basis, management ewaluates its estimates and assumptions in relation to assels,
liabilities and expenses, Management uses historical experience and various other factors it
believes to be reasonable under the gmiven circomstances, as the basis for its estimates and
assumptions. Revisions to sccounting estimales are recognized prospectively from the period in
which the estimates are revised. Actual cutcomes may differ from those estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and assumptions where there is significant risk of material adjustments to assets and
liabilities in future accounting pericds include the impairment and wseful lives of equipment,
allowance for doubtful accounts, fair value measurements for financial instruments, share-based
payments, and the recoverability and measurement of deferred tax assets.

The following are the critical judgments that have been made in applying the Company's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts in the financial

statements:
fncome faxes and recovery of deferred fax asseis

The measurement of ineome taxes payable and deferred income tax assets and liabilities requires
management to make judgments in the interpretation and application of the relevant tax laws. The
actual amount of income taxes only becomes final upon filing and acceptance of the tax return by
the relevant authorities, which oceurs subsequent to the issuance of the financial statements.

Intangible assets

Judgment is required in determining whether costs incurred relating to the ongoing development of
intangible assets meet the criteria for capitalization, In making this determination management
assesses whether costs represent improvements to the underlying assets and whether the intangible
assets are able to generate probable future economic benefits for the Company.

Going concern

The assessment of the validity of the going concern assumption, given facts and circumstances
deseribed, requires sipnificant judgment by management relating to the Company's ability to
achieve profitable operations, raise debt andfor equity financing in the futuwre and meet its
obligations as they eome due.




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Motes To The Finaneial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2013
{Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (conrd..)

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from estimates, The estimates and
assumptions that are eritical to determining the amounts reported in the financial statements relate
to the following:

Tmpaivment af assets

When there are indications that an asset may be impaired, the Company is required to estimate the
asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of value-in-use and fair value
less costs to sell. Determining the value-in-use requires the Company to estimate expected future
cash flows associated with the assets and a suitable discount rate in order to caleulate present
value. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not record any impairment of non-
financial assets.

Usaful life of property and equipment and intangible assels

Property and equipment and intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life of the
assets. Changes in the estimatad useful lives could significantly increase or decreass the amount of

amortization recorded during the period.
Share-based compensation

The Company applies the fair value method of accounting for share-based payments pranted to
employees and other individuals providing similar services. The fair value of the options is
determined using &n option pricing model that takes into account, as of the grant date, the exercise
price, the expected life of the option, the current price of the underying stock and its expected
volatility, expected dividends on the stocl, and the risk free interest rate over the expected life of
the option. Each tranche of an option that vests over time is considered a separate award and the
fair value of each tranche is expensed over its vesting period with the corresponding credit to
contributed surplus,

Warranis
The Company is required to make certain estimates when determining the fair value of warrants.

The Company uses the Black-sholes pricing model to determine the fair value. The Black-Scholes
option pricing model requires the input of subjective assumptions, such as stock price volatility.
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SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTTONS INC.
Mates To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (conrd...)
Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

The Company has identified new and revised accounting pronouncements that have been issued
but are not yet effective and determined that the following may have an impact on the Company:

[n May 2014, the JASE issued IFRS 15, “Revenues from Contracts with Customers”, to specify
how and when to recognize revenue as well as requiring the provision of more information and
relevant disclosure. [FRS 15 supersedes [AS 18, “Revenue™, JAS 11, “Construction Contracts”™,
and other revenue-related interpretations. The standard will be effective on January 1, 2017 for the
Company with earlier adoption permitted. The Company is currently evalvating the impact of this
standard on its financial statements.

In July 2014, the IASE amended IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, to bring together the
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the IASB™s project to
replace IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement™. The standard supersedes
all previous versions of [FRS ¢ and will be effective on Januvary 1, 2018 for the Company with
earlier application permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impaet of this standard on

its financial statements.

J.  Accounts Receivable

2014 2013
Other receivables 56,090 § 81,153
GST/HST receivable 10,401 16,763
Taotal accounts receivable $ 66,491 §F 97916

All of the Company’s accounts reeeivable are short term. The net carrying value of accounts
receivable is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value. The Company reviews all

amounts periodically for indications of impairment and the amounts impaired have been provided
for as an allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Company’s exposure lo eredil risks and impairment losses related to accounts receivable is
disclosed in Note 9.




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Notes To The Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

4.

FProperty and Equipment

Cost
Computer Development Total
Lquipment Equipment

January 1, 2013 -] 1.997 % - 5 1,907
Additions: 11,537 31,776 43,313
December 31,2013 13,444 31,776 45,220
Additions - - -
_December 31,2014 § 13444 S 31,776 % 45220

Accumulated Amortization

Computer  Development Taotal
Equipment Equipment
Januvary 1, 2013 5 1L,I51 % - 8 1,151
Additions: 3,588 8.739 12,327
December 31, 2013 4,739 8,739 13,478
Additions 4,788 12,671 17,459
December 31, 2014 5 9527 & 21410 F 30,937

Carrying Value

Computer  Development Total
Equipment Equipment
January 1, 2013 3 756 % - & T50
December 31, 2013 b 8,705 § 23037 § 31,742
December 31, 2014 3 3917 % 10366 2§ 14,283




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Motes To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Daollars)

5. Intangible Assets
Intellectual Property

On Qetober 8 2011, the Company entered into an option agreement with the University of
Manitoba which granted the Company an option to acquire rights to certain intellectual property of
the University and as part of the consideration for such grant, the Company puid 525,000 to the
University.

On June 28, 2012 the Company exercised their option to acquire the rights to the intellectual
property pursuant to a subscription and assignment agreement entered into between the Company
and University of Manitoba. In consideration the Company agreed to pay $225,000 as upfront fee,
issue 2,200,000 shares and a eommon share purchase warrant which would allow the University to
purchase 500,000 common shares of the Company at a price of $0.50 per share and milestone
pavments of $500,000 subject to fulfillment of certain predstermined conditions as outlined in the
agreement. During fiscal 2012, the Company issued the 2,200,000 shares and the common share
purchase warrant and also paid $125,000 cash for the upfront fees. The Company paid another
$50,000 cash during the fiscal year 2013, As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, $50,000 of the
upfront fee is still payable to the University of Manitoba and has been included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.

Cost
Intellectual Total
Property
January 1, 2013 § 2,400,000 5 2,400,000
Additions: 50,000 50,000
December 31, 2013 2,450,000 2,450,000
Additions - -
December 31, 2014 £ 2,450,000  § 2,450,000
Accumulated Amortization
Intellectual Taotal
Properly
January 1, 2013 5 = ¥ -
Additions: 132,708 132,708
December 31, 2013 132,708 132,708
Additions 245,000 245,000
December 31, 2014 § 377,708 § 377,708
Carrying Value
Intellectual Total
Property
Januwary 1, 2013 $ 2,400,000 & 2,400,000
December 31, 2013 $2317.292  §2317.292
December 31, 2014 § 2,072,290 % 2,071,292




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTITONS INC.

Notes To The Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

6. Share Capital
fal Authorized:
An unlimited number of common shares, participating, with no par value, entitling the holder to
one vote per share;

(b)) Changes in issued share capital

During the current and prior year, no new share wene issued.

) Shave prrchase warranis
Qutstanding share purchase warrants at December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Expiry Prices Outstanding Granted Exercised Expired Outstanding

(%) January 1, December
2014 31,2014
October 10,  $1.00 225,000 - - - 225,000.00
2015
June 29, $0.50 500,000 - - - 500,000.00
2022

7. Income Taxes

The following table reconciles the expected income laxes recovery at the Canadian statutory
income tax rates to the amounts recognized in the statements of comprehensive loss for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Loss hefore taxes 5 (601,826) % (456,594)
Statutory tax rates 0.2600 0.2500
Expected income tax recovery (156,475) (114,149)
Mon-deductible items 20,280 21,053
Temporary differences (91,375) 37,379
Share issuance costs 19,521 18,952
Unrecognized tax benefits 208,049 306,705
Income tax expense 5 - ¥ -

The Company has the following deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset
has been recognized:

2014 2013
Mon-capital losses carryforwards £ 421,307 % 196,849
Book value of asset in excess of tax values (54.,430) 36,590
Share issuance costs 15,812 45333
Valuation allowance (392,689) (278,772)
Deferred tax asset (liability) 5 - 5 -




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Motes To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

7. Income Taxes (conifi..)

As at December 31, 2014, the Company has non-capital loss carryforwards of $1,637,026 (2013 —
£764,461), which may be carried forward to apply against future year income tax for Canadian
income tax purposes, subject to the final delermination by taxation authorities, expiring in the

following years:
Expiry Amount
2031 g 71,729
2032 309,877
2033 304,342
2034 951,078
$ 1,637,026

8. Related Party Transactions

Related parties include shareholders with a significant ownership interest in the Corporation. The
revenue and costs recognized from transactions with such parties reflect the prices and terms of
sales and purchase transactions with related parties, which are in accordance with normal trade
practices. Transactions betwesn the Corporation and its subsidiaries, if any, are eliminated on

consolidation.
The Company had the following transactions with related parties:

2014 2013
Consulting fess b 53,500 % 49,837

As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the balances due to related parties comprise of
consulting fees payable in the amount of $26,000 (2013 - $Nil).

KJ
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Motes To The Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Dallars)

9 Financial Instruments
(a) Fair value:

The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and accounts payable and acerued liabilities. The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, and trade and other payables approximate their carrying values because of
the short-term naturc of these instruments.

Fair value measurements recognized in the statement of financial position must be categorized in
accordance with the following levels:

(i) Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets Tor identical assets or liabilities;

(ii) Level 2; Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

(iii} Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

b} Fingneiol instriment Fisk expostre and management

The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks. The
Board of Directors approves and monitors the risk management processes, inclusive of
documented investment policies, counterparty limits, and controlling and reporting structures. The
type of risk exposure and the way in which such exposure is managed is provided as follows:

Liguidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when due. The Company manages its liquidity risk through
budgeting, ongoing management and forecasting of operating cash flows, reviews of trade
raceivables, management of cash, and use of equity financings when appropriate. The Company
believes that it will gencrate sufficient funds from operations and financing activities to cover the
expected short and long term cash requirements.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because they are demominated in currencies that differ from the respective functional
cumrency, The Company's functional and reporting currency is the Canadian dollar. The
Company’s exposure to forsign eurrency risk is primarily related to fluctuations in the value of the
Canadian dollar relative to the United States dollar (*USD™) as some of the Company’s expenses
are in USD. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments to cover the variability of
cash flows in foreign currencies.




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTTONS INC.
Motes To The Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2013

(Expressed in Canadian Daollars)

9 Financial Instruments (eonfd..)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. Trade receivables are the most significant financial instrument that is
exposed to credit visk. The Company provides credit to its customers in the normal course of
operations. As at year-end, the Company's risk is minimal as its receivables consist of receivables
from Industrial Research Assistance Program ("IRAP") and Canada Revenue Apency ("CRA™) for
GST ITCs. The Company believes that its exposure to credit risk is low. The maximum exposure
to loss arising from trade receivables is equal to their total camying amounts.

Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of deferred cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Corporation is exposed to interest rate
risk arising primarily from fluctuations in interest rates on its cash, cash equivalents and shortterm
investments. The Corporation limits its exposure to interest rate risk by continually monitoring and
adjusting portfolio duration to align to forecasted cash requirements and anticipated changes in
interest rates. Based on cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2014, the Company is not
exposed 1o any risk as there are no interest bearing short-term investments or cash equivalents,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise from changes in market factors such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and commadity and equity prices. Management does not believe that the
Company is exposed to any material market risk.

10 Capital Management

The Company defines its capital as all components of shareholders' equity and cash. The
Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to have sufficient capital to be able to fund its development activities for benefit of its
shareholders',

In order to maintain its capital structure, the Company is dependent on equity funding and when
necessary, raises capital through issuance of equity instruments, primarily comprised of commeon
ghares. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
economic conditions. The Company, upon approval from its Board of Directors, will make
changes to its capital structures as deemed appropriate under specific eircumstances.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements or debt covenants, and
does not presently utilize any quantitative measures to monitor its capital. The Company's overall
strategy with respect to management of capital remains unchanged from the yvear ended December
31,2014
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11.

12.

Contingencies and Commitments

In connection with the acquisition of intellectwal property from University of Manitoba, the
Company is required to make the milestone payments as follows:

{a) A payment of $250,000 within 30 days of the Company achieving a cumulative gross sales of
£10 Million with respect to the product, licensing revenues andfor sublicensing revenues
relating to the assigned rights and/or the invention.

(k) A payment of $250,000 within 30 days of the Company achieving a cumulative gross sales of
20 Million with respect to the product, licensing revenues and/or sublicensing rewvenues
relating to the assigned rights andfor the invention.

Operating Segments

The The Company operates in a single reportable operating segment, the development of
commercial applications for optimizing the current carrying capacity of grid infrastructure and
transmission lines. Segmented peographic information is as follows:

The following table allocates total assets by peographic location:

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Canada 5 2,259,791 3 2,813,608




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.,
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13. FIRST-TIME  ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2 REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS™)

The Company's {inancial statements for the year-ending December 31, 2014 are the first annual
financial statements that will be prepared in accordance with [FRS. IFRS [, First Time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards, requires that comparative financial information be
provided. As a result, the first date at which the Company has applicd IFRS was January 1, 2013
{the "Transition Date ). IFRS | requires first-time adopters to retrospectively apply all efTective
IFRS standards as of the reporting date, which for the Company will be December 31, 2013.
However, it also provides for certain optional exemptions and certain mandatory exceptions for
first time IFRS adoption. Prior to transition te IFRS, the Company did not prepare its financial
stalements using any Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

In preparing the Company's opening IFRS financial statements, the Company has adjusted the
amounts reported previously in the financial statements

The IFRS 1 applicable exemptions and exceptions applied in adoption of IFRS are as follows:
MANDATORY EXCEPTIONS

Estimates

The estimates previously made by the Company are not revised for the application of IFRS except
where necessary to reflect any difference in accounting policy or where there was objective
evidence that those estimates were in error. As a result, the Company has not used hindsight to
revise estimates,

Reconciliation's of amowmis previously reported i the Statements of Financial Position,
Statements of Comprehensive Loss/Income and Statements of Cash Flow to IFRS

IFRS 1 requires an entity to reconcile the statements of financial position, comprehensive loss and
cash flows for prior periods prepared under previous accounting framewark to [FRS. Adoption of
IFRS have resulted in no material adjustments to the statement of financial position, the statements
of loss and comprehensive loss and the statements of cash flows. Accordingly, no reconciliation's

aof cash flows have been provided.
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3983 Henning Drive
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Dinect Line! (G0£) £51-8380 Faac: (64) 451-8301
e-mail: sjohlf kjca.com intofikjca.com

To the Directors of
Smart Autonomous Sclutions Inc.

In accondance with our engagement letter dated Movember 3, 2045, we have performed interim review of
the statemeanis of financial position of Smart Autonomous Solutions Inc. as at Seplember 30, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, and the statements of comprahensive loss for the three-month and nine-manth perlods
endead September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the statemens of changes in equity and cash flows for the nine-
month period then ended. These financtal statemeants are the responsibility of Smart Autonomous Selution
Inc.'s management, -

We have performed our interim reviews in accordance with Canadian generally accapled standards for a
review of interim financial statements by an entity's auditar,

An interim review is substantially kass in scope than an audil, the objective of which Is the expression of an
oplnlon regarding the financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, An interim
review does not provide assurance that we would become aware of any or sl gignificant matters that might
be identified in an audit.

Based on our interim reviaws, we are not aware of any material modification that needs to be made for
thésa interim financial statements to be in accordance with the International Finaneial Reporting Standards,

We have previously audited, in accordance with Canadian generally accepied auditing standards, the
statement of financial position of Smart Autonomous Solulion Inc.'s as at December 31, 2014, and the
related statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then endad (not
presented herein). In our report dated July 22, 2015, we expressed an unmedified audit apinion on those
financial statements. In our opinian, the information set forth in the accompanying Interim statement of
financlal positien as at December 31, 2014 Is faidy stated, in &l material respects, in relation o the financial
staternents from which it has been derived.

The repaort is solely for the use of the audit committes of Smart Autonomous Solution Inc. to assist it in
discharging ils regulatory obligation lo review these financial statements, and should not be used for any
other purpase.

Lo
Bumaby, B.C. KAMESTER JOHALLLP

December 21, 2015 Chartered Prafessional Accountants

CA"

Mamber af the Instibute of Chartared Accountants of BLC.

ol n




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Condensed Interim Statements of financial position

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Unaudited)
September 30,  December 31,
2015 2014
$ $
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 274,714 103,926
Amounts receivable (Note 3) 10,253 66,491
Prepaid expenses 643 2,799
Total current assets 285,610 173,216
Non-current assets
Property and equipment (Note 4) 8,392 14,283
Intangible assets (Note 5) 1,888,542 2,072,292
Total assets 2,182,544 2,259,791
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 78,337 123,581
Convertible notes (Note 6) 199,527 -
Deposit 20,000 -
Total liabilities 297,864 123,581
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (Note 8) 3,485,590 3,236,002
Contributed surplus 225,000 225,000
Deficit (1,825,910) (1,324,792)
Total shareholders’ equity 1,884,680 2,136,210
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 2,182,544 2,259,791

Nature of Operations and Continuance of Business (Note 1)
Contingencies and Commitments (Note 13)
Subsequent Events (Note 15)

Approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on December 21, 2015:

/sl ““Suresh Singh”

/sl “Alex Kanayev”

Suresh Singh, Director

Alex Kanayev, Director



SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.

Condensed Interim Statements of operations and comprehensive loss

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Unaudited)
Three months ~ Three months Nine months Nine months
ended ended ended ended
September 30,  September 30,  September 30,  September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
$ $ $ $
Revenue - - - -
Operating expenses
Professional fees 39,411 593 39,934 6,605
Bank and interest charges 5,040 - 5,838 32
Consulting fees 78,095 28,940 116,305 120,745
Development expense - 7,499 3,758 20,092
Duty and brokerage - 183 616 1,151
Insurance 2,156 - 3,642 1,437
Internet 1,261 1,309 5,671 8,082
Promotion - - - 2,500
Office and general 3,050 2,212 7,104 5,007
Rent 12,185 12,290 33,669 31,110
Amortization expense 63,214 65,615 189,642 196,844
Travel - - 1,200 896
Wages and benefits 49,883 57,099 132,185 170,254
Total operating expenses 254,295 175,740 539,564 564,755
Net loss before other income (254,295) (175,740) (539,564) (564,755)
Other income and expenses
Interest Income - 1,459 - 2,130
Industrial Research Assistance Program Credit 38,446 15,785 38,446 60,616
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period (215,849) (158,496) (501,118) (502,009)
Loss per share, basic and diluted (0.02) (0.02) (0.05) (0.05)
Weighted average shares outstanding 10,943,288 10,317,049 10,528,089 10,317,049




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Condensed Interim Statements of changes in equity

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Unaudited)
Total
Share capital Contributed shareholders’
Number of Amount surplus Deficit equity
shares $ $ $ $

Balance, December 31, 2013 10,317,049 3,236,002 225,000 (722,966) 2,738,036
Net and comprehensive loss - - - (305,165) (305,165)
Balance, September 30, 2014 10,317,049 3,236,002 225,000 (1,028,131) 2,432,871
Net and comprehensive loss - - - (296,661) (296,661)
Balance, December 31, 2014 10,317,049 3,236,002 225,000 (1,324,792) 2,136,210
Shares issued pursuant to finders’ fee 1,515,878 151,588 - - 151,588
Shares issued for intellectual property 550,000 55,000 - - 55,000
Shares returned to treasury (1,000,000) (25,000) - - (25,000)
Shares issued pursuant to shares for debt 680,000 68,000 - - 68,000
Net and comprehensive loss - - - (501,118) (501,118)
Balance, September 30, 2015 12,062,927 3,485,590 225,000 (1,825,910) 1,884,680




SMART AUTONOMOUS SOLUTIONS INC.
Condensed Interim Statements of cash flows
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Unaudited)
Three months  Nine months Nine months
Three months  ended ended ended ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
$ $ $ $
Operating activities
Net loss for the period (215,849) (158,496) (501,118) (502,009)
Items not involving cash:
Amortization 63,214 65,615 189,642 196,844
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Amounts receivable (3,753) 14,370 5,039 8,625
Prepaid expenses 2,156 - 2,156 -
Deposits - - - -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (41,572) (1,359) (45,244) 4,931
Scientific research and development credit receivable - 105,059 - 124,439
Industrial research assistance program credit receivable - - 51,198 81,153
Net cash used in operating activities (195,804) 25,189 (298,327) (86,017)
Investing activities
Additions to intangible assets - - - -
Additions to property and equipment - - - -
Net cash used in investing activities - - - -
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes 199,527 - 199,527 -
Shares issued as finders’ fees 151,588 - 151,588 -
Shares issued for debt 68,000 - 68,000 -
Shares returned to treasury (25,000) - (25,000) -
Shares issued pursuant to IP purchase agreement 55,000 - 55,000 -
Related party advance 20,000 - 20,000 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 469,115 - 469,115 -
Increase (decrease) in cash 273,311 25,189 170,788 (86,017)
Cash, beginning of the period 1,403 126,243 103,926 237,449
Cash, end of period 274,714 151,432 274,714 151,432
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Shares issued pursuant to IP purchase agreement 55,000 - 55,000 -
Shares issued as finder’s fees 151,588 - 151,588 -
Shares issued pursuant to debt 68,000 - 68,000 -

Supplemental disclosures:
Interest paid - -
Income taxes paid - -




2.

Nature of Operations and Continuance of Business

Smart Autonomous Solutions Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the Company Act of British
Columbia on May 13, 2011. The Company is a technology company involved in developing commercial
applications for optimizing the current carrying capacity of grid infrastructure and transmission lines. The
Company has not yet generated revenues from operations, accordingly, the Company is considered to be an
enterprise in the development stage.

The address of the Company’s corporate office and principal place of business is Suite 705 — 625 West Kent
Avenue North, Vancouver, B.C., V6P 6T7, Canada.

These condensed interim financial statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared on the going
concern basis, which assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business. These financial statements do not include any adjustments to the amounts and
classifications of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a
going concern. In assessing whether the going concern assumption is appropriate, management takes into
account all available information about the future, and prior operating results. As at September 30, 2015, the
Company has no source of revenue, generates negative cash flows from operating activities, and has an
accumulated deficit of $1,825,910. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The continued operations of the Company are dependent on its ability to generate
future cash flows or obtain additional financing. Management is of the opinion that sufficient working capital
will be obtained from external financing to meet the Company’s liabilities and commitments as they become
due, although there is a risk that additional financing will not be available on a timely basis or on terms
acceptable to the Company. These factors may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. These financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that may be necessary if the Company
is unable to continue as a going concern.

Significant Accounting Policies

(@) Basis of Preparation

These interim financial statements, including comparatives, have been prepared using accounting policies
consistent with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (‘IAS”) 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The accounting policies in these Interim Financial Statements are consistent with the policies the
Company adopted in its Annual Financial Statements as at, and for the year ending, December 31, 2014.
These accounting policies were disclosed in detail in note 2 of the Company’s December 31, 2014 Annual
Financial Statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are
presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.

(b) Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Company’s management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Significant areas requiring the use of estimates include the recoverability of intellectual property,
measurement of share-based payments, and deferred income tax asset valuation allowances.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Use of Estimates and Judgments (continued)



(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

The application of the Company’s accounting policy for intellectual property acquisition costs requires
judgment in determining whether it is likely that future economic benefits are likely either from future
exploitation or sale or where activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of
the existence of reserves. The deferral policy requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions about future events or circumstances, in particular whether an economically viable extraction
operation can be established. Estimates and assumptions made may change if new information becomes
available. If, after the acquisition cost is capitalized, information becomes available suggesting that the
recovery of expenditure is unlikely, the amount capitalized is written off in the statement of operations in
the period when the new information becomes available.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of
issuance, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value to be cash equivalents.

Government Assistance and Investment Tax Credits

Government assistance and investment tax credits are recorded as either a reduction of the cost of the
applicable assets, or credited against the related expense incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Loss,
or grants related to income are presented as part of profit or loss, either separately or under a general
heading such as ‘Other Income’, as determined by the terms and conditions of the agreements under which
the assistance is provided to the Corporation or the nature of the expenditures which gave rise to the
credits. Government assistance and investment tax credit receivables are recorded when their receipt is
reasonably assured

Research and Development Costs

Research expenses are charged to the Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss in the period they are
incurred. Development expenses are charged to the Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, except
those that meet the following criteria and are capitalized: the feasibility of the product has been
established, management intends to manufacture the product and has the capacity to use or sell it, the
future economic benefits are likely to occur, the market for the product is defined, and the Company has
the resources to complete the project and can reliably measure development costs. Research and
development expenses charged to the Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss are included in the
calculation of scientific research and development credit claimed for the year ended December 31, 2014
have not been segregated yet. No research and development expenses have been recorded as intangible
assets as at September 30, 2015 and 2014.

Impairment of Non-Current Assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there are any indications of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment, if any.



2.

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

(s))

(h)

Impairment on Non-Current Assets (continued)

Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. The
recoverable amount is determined as the higher of fair value less direct costs to sell and the asset’s value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value.
Estimated future cash flows are calculated using estimated recoverable reserves, estimated future
commaodity prices and the expected future operating and capital costs. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the estimated future cash flows reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

If the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the carrying amount of the
asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount through an impairment charge to the statement of
income.

Assets that have been impaired are tested for possible reversal of the impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstance indicate that the impairment may have reversed. When an impairment
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of depreciation, depletion and amortization) had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset or CGU in prior periods. A reversal of impairment is recognized as a gain in
the statement of operations.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost, net of accumulated amortization,
accumulated impairment losses and reversals, if applicable. Intangible assets acquired through a
business combination are recognized at fair value at the date of the acquisition. Intangible assets
are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives according to the following annual
terms:

Period

Intellectual Property 10 years

Financial Instruments
(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss)
are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a
transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is
recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts

Significant accounting policies (continued)



(h) Financial Instruments (continued)
(i) Non-derivative assets (continued)
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss when the financial asset is held for
trading or it is designated as fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if: (i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; (ii) it is a part
of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Company manages and has an actual pattern
of short-term profit taking; or (iii) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value with any gain or
loss recognized in the statement of operations. The net gain or loss recognized incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Cash and cash equivalents are classified as fair value
through profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are recognized on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at fair
value, including transaction costs. The Company does not have any assets classified as held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-
for-sale and that are not classified in any of the previous categories. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses and foreign currency
differences on available-for-sale equity instruments, are recognized in other comprehensive income
and presented within equity in the fair value reserve. When an investment is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive income is transferred to the statement of operations.
The Company does not have any assets classified as available-for-sale.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are initially recognized at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and
receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Loans and receivables are comprised of amounts receivable.

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive income or loss are reclassified to the statement of
operations in the period. Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future
cash flows of the investments have been impacted. For marketable securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the securities below their cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.



For all other financial assets objective evidence of impairment could include:
« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
« default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
« it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as amounts receivable, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. The carrying
amount of financial assets is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of amounts receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When an amount receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in the
statement of operations.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through the
statement of operations to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognized. In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment losses previously
recognized through the statement of operations are not reversed through the statement of operations.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized directly in equity.

(if) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Company initially recognizes debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that
they are originated. All other financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss) are recognized initially on the trade at which the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

(iii) Share capital

Common shares are classified as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of common
shares and stock options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(i) Foreign Currency Translation

The functional and reporting currency is the Canadian dollar. Transactions denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the transaction date or at an average rate.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange in



)

effect at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary items are translated using the historical
rate on the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in the statement of
operations.

Income Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to
items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity is recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity and not in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

(1)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. The treasury stock method is used for the calculation of diluted loss per share, whereby
all “in the money” stock options and share purchase warrants are assumed to have been exercised at the
beginning of the period and the proceeds from their exercise are assumed to have been used to purchase
common shares at the average market price during the period. When a loss is incurred during the period,
basic and diluted loss per share are the same as the exercise of stock options and share purchase warrants
is considered to be anti-dilutive. As at September 30, 2015, the Company had 725,000 (2014 — 725,000)
share purchase warrants outstanding that were excluded from calculation of diluted loss per share.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in the Company’s net assets that results from transactions,
events and circumstances from sources other than the Company’s shareholders and includes items that are
not included in the statement of operations.

(m) Share-based Payments

The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognized as
stock-based compensation expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-
market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as
an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market
performance conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting
conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such
conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.
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Where equity instruments are granted to parties other than employees, they are recorded by reference to
the fair value of the services received. If the fair value of the services received cannot be reliably
estimated, the Company measures the services received by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the counterparty renders service.

All equity-settled share-based payments are reflected in share-based payment reserve, unless exercised.
Upon exercise, shares are issued from treasury and the amount reflected in share-based payment reserve is
credited to share capital, adjusted for any consideration paid.

Reclassifications

Certain of the prior year’s figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The mandatory adoption of the following new and revised accounting standards and interpretations on
January 1, 2014 had no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements for the years presented:

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — In December 2011, the 1ASB issued an amendment to
clarify the meaning of the offsetting criterion and the principle behind net settlement, including identifying
when some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement.

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets — In May 2013, the IASB issued an amendment to address the disclosure of
information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets or a CGU for periods in which an impairment
loss has been recognized or reversed. The amendments also address disclosure requirements applicable
when and asset’s or a CGU’s recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
The following standards will be effective January 1, 2016:

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — In December 2014, the IASB issued amendments to 1AS 1
to address perceived impediments to preparers exercising their judgement in presenting their financial
statements by clarifying that information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing
immaterial information, materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, and even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations do apply. The amendments also
clarify that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be disaggregated and aggregated as
relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these statements and clarification that an entity's share of
other comprehensive income of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures should be presented in
aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets — In May 2014, the IASB issued
amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38. The amendments clarify that the use of revenue-based methods to
calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits
embodied in the asset. The amendments also clarifies that revenue is generally presumed to be an
inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible
asset. This presumption, however, can be rebutted in certain limited circumstances.

A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and interpretations, are not yet
effective for the period ended September 30, 2015, and have not been applied in preparing
these financial statements.

IFRIC 21 - Levies

In May 2013, the 1ASB issued IFRIC 21, Levies (“IFRIC 21”), an interpretation of IAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (“IAS 37”), on the accounting for levies imposed by
governments. 1AS 37 sets out criteria for the recognition of a liability, one of which is the requirement for
the entity to have a present obligation as a result of a past event (“obligating event”). IFRIC 21 clarifies
that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant



legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. Management does not expect that the adoption of this
standard will have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company.

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
The following standard will be effective January 1, 2017:
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers which supersedes IAS 11, Construction Contracts, IAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13,
Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18,
Transfers of Assets from Customers, and SIC 31, Revenue — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services. IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive five-step framework for the timing and measurement of
revenue recognition.
The following standard will be effective May 1, 2018:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The IASB will replace IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement in its entirety with IFRS 9 which is intended to reduce the complexity in the classification

and measurement of financial instruments.

The Company has not yet completed the process of assessing any impact that the new and amended
standards may have on its financial statements and has not early adopted any of these future requirements.

3. Accounts Receivable

September 30, September 30,

2015 2014
$
$

Industrial Research  Assistance
Program receivable

- 15,785
GST/HST receivable 10,253 8,137
Total accounts receivable 10,253 23,922

All of the Company’s accounts receivable are short term. The net carrying value of accounts receivable is
considered a reasonable approximation of fair value. The Company reviews all amounts periodically for
indications of impairment and the amounts impaired have been provided for as an allowance for doubtful
accounts.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to accounts receivable is disclosed in
Note 11.

4. Property and Equipment

Nine month period ended September 30, 2015:

Cost




Computer Development

Equipment Equipment Total
$ $ $
Balance, December 31, 2013 13,444 31,776 45,220
Additions: - - -
Balance, September 30, 2014 13,444 31,776 45,220
Additions: - - -
Balance, December 31, 2014 13,444 31,776 45,220
Additions: - - -
Balance, September 30, 2015 13,444 31,776 45,220
Accumulated Amortization
Computer Development
Equipment Equipment Total
$ $ $
Balance, December 31, 2013 4,739 8,739 13,478
Additions: - - _
Balance, September 30, 2014 4,739 8,739 13,478
Additions: 4,788 12,671 17,459
Balance, December 31, 2014 9,527 21,410 30,937
Additions: 1,615 4,277 5,892
Balance, September 30, 2015 11,142 25,685 36,829
Carrying Value
Computer Development
Equipment Equipment Total
$ $ $
December 31, 2013 8,705 23,037 31,742
September 30, 2014 8,705 23,037 31,742
December 31, 2014 3,917 10,366 14,283
September 30, 2015 2,301 6,090 8,391

Intangible Assets
Intellectual Property

On October 8, 2011, the Company entered into an option agreement with the University of Manitoba which
granted the Company an option to acquire rights to certain intellectual property of the University and as part of
the consideration for such grant, the Company paid $25,000 to the University.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

On June 28, 2012 the Company exercised their option to acquire the rights to the intellectual property pursuant
to a subscription and assignment agreement entered into between the Company and University of Manitoba. In
consideration the Company agreed to pay $225,000 as upfront fee, issue 2,200,000 common shares and a
common share purchase warrant which would allow the University to purchase 500,000 common shares of the
Company at a price of $0.50 per share and milestone payments of $500,000 subject to fulfillment of certain
predetermined conditions as outlined in the agreement. During fiscal 2012, the Company issued the 2,200,000
shares and the common share purchase warrant and also paid $125,000 cash for the upfront fees. The Company
paid another $50,000 cash during the fiscal year 2013. As at September 30, 2014, $50,000 of the upfront fee
was still payable to the University of Manitoba and was included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
On August 28, 2015, the Company issued the 550,000 common shares to the University of Manitoba as shares
for debt to fulfill the purchase option.



Cost

Intellectual
Property Total
$ $
Balance, December 31, 2013 2,450,000 2,450,000
Additions: - -
Balance, September 30, 2014 2,450,000 2,450,000
Additions: - -
Balance, December 31, 2014 2,450,000 2,450,000
Additions: - -
Balance, September 30, 2015 2,450,000 2,450,000
Accumulated Amortization
Intellectual
Property Total
$ $
Balance, December 31, 2013 132,708 132,708
Additions: - -
Balance, September 30, 2014 132,708 132,708
Additions: 245,000 245,000
Balance, December 31, 2014 377,708 377,708
Additions: 183,750 183,750
Balance, September 30, 2015 561,458 561,458
Carrying Value
Intellectual
Property Total
$ $
December 31, 2013 2,317,292 2,317,292
September 30, 2014 2,317,292 2,317,292
December 31, 2014 2,072,292 2,072,292
September 30, 2015 1,888,542 1,888,542

Convertible Notes

On August 15, 2015, the Company issued $361,115 bearing interest at 10% per annum convertible notes with
an aggregate principal amount of $361,115. Each convertible note entitles the holder to convert to ordinary
shares at a conversion price equal to 80% of the issue price share of initial public offering or other financing
undertaken in conjunction with the Going Public Transaction, subject to approval from any relevant stock
exchange. The convertible notes also include an automatic conversion feature whereby any outstanding
principal and any unpaid accrued interest will be automatically converted into shares at a conversion price
equal to 80% of the value of such shares on the date of conversion. Also see Note 15.

Related Party Transactions

Related parties include shareholders with a significant ownership interest in the Corporation. The revenue and
costs recognized from transactions with such parties reflect the prices and terms of sales and purchase
transactions with related parties, which are in accordance with normal trade practices. Transactions between
the Corporation and its subsidiaries, if any, are eliminated on consolidation.

The Company had the following transactions with related parties:
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11.

September 30, September 30,

2015 2014
$ $
Consulting fees 68,250 29,384

As at September 30, 2015 and September 30, 2014, the balances due to related parties comprise of consulting
fees payable in the amount of $Nil (2014 - $Nil)
Share Capital

Authorized: Unlimited common shares without par value

Unlimited preferred shares without par value

On August 28, 2015, the company issued 550,000 common shares to the University of Manitoba pursuant to
the intellectual property purchase agreement to fulfill payable of $50,000.

On August 28, 2015, the Company issued 680,000 common shares to Directors and a consultant for
consulting fees accrued during 2015.

On August 28, 2015, the Company repurchased 1,000,000 common shares and returned them to treasury.

On August, 28, 2015, the Company issued 1,515,878 common shares as finders’ fees pursuant to the
convertible debt issued by the Company during the period.

Share Purchase Warrants

As at September 30, 2015, the following share purchase warrants were outstanding and exercisable:

Number of  Exercise
warrants price
outstanding $ Expiry date

225,000 1.00  October 10, 2017
500,000 0.50  June 29, 2022 (or 12 months after a stock exchange listing)

725,000

Stock Options
As at September 30, 2015, there were no stock options issued and outstanding.

Financial Instruments and Risks

(@) Fair Values

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s
statement of financial position as at September 30, 2015 as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using




(b)

Quoted prices in

active markets for Significant
identical Significant other  unobservable Balance,
instruments observable inputs inputs
September 30,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2015
$ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalents 274,714 - - 274,714

The fair values of other financial instruments, which include amounts receivable and accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, approximate their carrying values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these
instruments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of a loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. Trade receivables are the most significant financial instrument that is exposed to credit risk.
The Company provides credit to its customers in the normal course of operation. As at September 30,
2015, the Company’s risk is minimal as its receivable consist of receivables from Industrial Research
Assistance Program (“IRAP”) and Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) for GST ITCs. The Company
believes that its exposure to credit risk is low. The maximum exposure to loss arising from trade
receivables is equal to their total carrying amounts.

11. Financial Instruments and Risks (continued)

©

(d)
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®

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because they are denominated in currencies that differ from the respective functional currency. The
Company’s functional and reporting currency is the Canadian dollar. The Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is primarily related to fluctuations in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the United
States dollar (“USD”) as some of the Company’s expenses are in USD. The Company does not use
derivative financial instruments to cover the variability of cash flows in foreign currencies.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Company currently settles its financial obligations out of cash. The ability to do this relies on the
Company raising equity financing in a timely manner and by maintaining sufficient cash in excess of
anticipated needs.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of the loss that may arise from changes in market factors such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and commodity and equity prices. Management does not believe that the Company
is exposed to any material market risk.

Interest rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of deferred cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk arising
primarily from fluctuation in interest rates on its cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments. The
Corporation limits its exposure to interest rate risk by continually monitoring and adjusting portfolio
duration to align to forecasted cash requirements and anticipated changes in the interest rates. Based on
cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2015, the Company is not exposed to any risk as there are no
interest bearing short-term investments or cash equivalents.
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Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to maintain its ability to continue as a going concern and to provide returns
to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders. The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity comprised of issued share capital and share-based payment reserve.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of economic conditions. The
Company, upon approval from its Board of Directors, will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues or by undertaking other activities as deemed appropriate under the specific circumstances.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements or debt covenants, and does not
presently utilize any quantitative measures to monitor its capital. The Company’s overall strategy with respect
to capital risk management remains unchanged from the year ended December 31, 2014.

Contingencies and Commitments

In connection with the acquisition of intellectual property from the University of Manitoba, the Company is
required to make the milestone payments as follows:

(&) A payment of $250,000 within 30 days of the Company achieving a cumulative gross sales of $10 Million
with respect to the product, licensing revenues and/or sublicensing revenues relating to the assigned rights
and/or the invention.

(b) A payment of $250,000 within 30 days of the Company achieving a cumulative gross sales of $20 Million
with respect to the product, licensing revenues and/or sublicensing revenues relating to the assigned rights
and/or the invention.

Segmented Information

The Company operates in a single reportable operating segment, the development of commercial applications

for the optimizing the current carrying capacity of grid infrastructure and transmission lines. Segmented

geographic information is as follows:

The following table allocates total assets by geographic location:

As of September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
$ $
Canada 2,374,341 2,505,236

15. Subsequent Events

(@ On November 6, 2015, the Company completed a three-cornered amalgamation whereby Smart
Autonomous Solutions Inc. ("SAS") has amalgamated with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Torino Ventures
Inc. (Torino Acquisition Corp). The Amalgamation was filed with British Columbia Registry Services as of
November 5, 2015. In conjunction with the Amalgamation, Torino issued 12,062,927 common shares to
securityholders of SAS.

(b) On November 13, 2015, the amalgamated entity changed its name to Torino Power Solutions Inc.

(c) On December 14, 2015, the Company issued 5,482,583 common shares pursuant to the convertible debt
agreements. The Company has now converted all of the debt and accrued interest into common shares and



no longer has any long-term term liabilities. In connection with the conversion, the Company issues
500,000 common shares as commission which will be recorded as share issuance costs.



APPENDIX 3 - SAS, SEP 30, 2015 MD&A

Smart Autonomous Solutions Inc.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE 9 MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with the unaudited financial
statements and notes thereto for the nine month period ended September 30, 2015 of Smart Autonomous Solutions
Inc. (the “Company™). Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™).

All dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this report are forward-looking statements, which reflect our management’s expectations
regarding our future growth, results of operations, performance and business prospects and opportunities including
statements related to marijuana breathalyzer technology development and future mineral property interests,
availability of financing and projected costs and expenses. Forward-looking statements consist of statements that
are not purely historical, including any statements regarding beliefs, plans, expectations or intentions regarding the
future. Such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results, performance or
developments to differ materially from those contained in the statements. No assurance can be given that any of the
events anticipated by the forward-looking statements will occur or, if they do occur, what benefits we will obtain
from them. These forward-looking statements reflect management’s current views and are based on certain
assumptions and speak only as of the date of this report. These assumptions, which include management’s current
expectations, estimates and assumptions about its Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating (DTCR) technology. A number
of risks and uncertainties could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements, including: (1) a downturn in general economic conditions, (2) inability to develop an
effective DTCR technology (3) delays in technology development (4) industry competition (5) the uncertainty of
government regulation (6) potential negative financial impact from regulatory investigations, claims, lawsuits and
other legal proceedings and challenges, (7) inability to finance (8) other factors beyond our control.

There is a significant risk that such forward-looking statements will not prove to be accurate. Investors are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. No forward-looking statement is a
guarantee of future results. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.
Additional information about these and other assumptions, risks and uncertainties are set out in the section entitled
“Risk Factors” below.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated under the laws of the province of British Columbia on May 13, 2011. The
Company’s primary business is the development and commercialization of its patented DTCR technology and
proprietary system architecture for application in overhead transmission lines. The Company is privately held. On
June 4, 2012, Smart Autonomous Solutions Inc. (“SAS”) entered into a binding Intellectual Property and
Subscription Agreement with the University of Manitoba for the purchase of Canadian and US patent applications
entitled, “A Sensing System Based on Multiple Resonant Electromagnetic Cavities” and International patent
application entitled, “Measuring Strain in a Structure using a sensor having electromagnetic resonator”.  In
consideration for the Intellectual Property and Subscription Agreement, SAS, paid the University of Manitoba a total
of 2,500,000 common shares and $250,000 in cash.

TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT

On June 4, 2012 Smart Autonomous Solutions (“SAS”) and University of Manitoba entered into an Intellectual
Property and Subscription agreement for the purchase of Canadian and US patent applications entitled, “A Sensing
System Based on Multiple Resonant Electromagnetic Cavities” and International patent application (PCT) entitled,
“Measuring Strain in a Structure using a sensor having electromagnetic resonator”. In total, the Company’s



technology is supported by five granted patents and two are in process (patent pending), a summary of patents is

provided below:

File Date

Country

App Type

Identification

Status

Measuring strain

in a structure using a sensor having an electromagnetic resonator (US title)

2003-06-26 Canada Nationalized PCT 2,486,551 Granted Patents
2004-12-27 United States Nationalized PCT US 7,347,101 Granted Patents
2003-06-26 Europe Nationalized PCT EP1520159 Patent Pending

Sensing system based on multiple resonant electromagnetic cavities (US title)

2006-09-12 Canada Substantive 2,559,694 Patent Pending
2006-09-12 United States Substantive US 7,441,463 Granted Patents
2006-11-24 Australia Substantive 2006241369 Granted Patents
Method and apparatus for monitoring physical properties

2012-08-20 United States Substantive US 8,829,924 Granted Patents

The SAS — University of Manitoba agreement also includes a provision for “Technology Rights” which covers all
technical information, know-how, processes, procedures, compositions, methods, formulas, protocols, techniques or
data developed by the Inventors at the University relating to the Invention, and in the possession of the University,
which are not covered by the Patent Rights, but which in the opinion of the University, are necessary for practicing
the inventions and discoveries disclosed and validly claimed in the Patent Rights (collectively, the “Technology
Rights”); and any future Improvements.

Milestone payments to the University of Manitoba
Milestone payment 1

Within 30 days of the Corporation achieving cumulative gross sales of Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000) with
respect to the Product, licensing revenues and/or sublicensing revenues relating to the Assigned Rights and/or the
Invention, the University shall receive Two Hundred Fifty Thousand ($250,000), plus any applicable taxes, from the
Corporation (“Milestone payment No.1”).

Milestone payment 2

Within 30 days of the Corporation achieving cumulative gross sales of Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000) with
respect to the Product, licensing revenues and/or sublicensing revenues relating to the Assigned Rights and/or the
Invention, the University shall receive a further Two Hundred Fifty Thousand ($250,000), plus any applicable taxes,
from the Corporation (“Milestone payment No.2”).

AMALGAMATION WITH TORINO VENTURES INC.

Effective November 5, 2015, the Corporation amalgamated with Torino Acquisition Corp. (a wholly owned
subsidiary of Torino Ventures Inc., a reporting issuer in B.C., Alberta and Manitoba).

OVERALL PERFORMANCE
The Company was incorporated on May 13, 2011. As an early stage technology development company, the

Company has not generated revenues to date from the development its Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating (DTCR)
technology and anticipates that it will continue to require equity financing to fund operations until such time a



commercial product is developed and generates revenues on a profitable basis. The Company is focussed on
technology development and management anticipates that expenses will increase during the foreseeable future as the
Company carries out development and seeks certifications for its product offering, conducts trial installations of its
product and seeks listing on a Canadian exchange. The Company has incurred costs in connection with the DTCR
business. Net loss for the nine month period ending on September 30, 2015 was 501,118.

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

The following information sets out the Company’s audited annual information for the year ended December 31,
2014.

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

®)
Net Income (L0ss) (601,826)
Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss)
Per Share (0.06)
Total assets 2,259,791
Total non-current financial liabilities Nil

As an early stage technology company, the Company has not generated any revenues to date from its technology
holdings. The Company incurred a net loss before other income of $601,826 during the year ended December 31,
2014. The total expenses before other income was $761,065. During the year ended December 31, 2014 technology
development costs, consulting, and wages were higher due to the Company ramping up development in preparation
for future pilot programs. The Company incurred development costs of $26,553 in 2014 compared to $44,440 in
2013. In 2014 the Company incurred consulting fees of $150,038 (2013 - $190,175) and wages and benefit expenses
of $216,713 (2013 - $186,052). Amortization expenses were $262,458 for the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to $145,035 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Professional fees (accounting and legal) were $30,866
in 2014 compared to $16,869 in 2013. The remainder of the expenses were similar during the company’s regular
operations from such items as overhead and rent. The Company anticipates that expenses will rise in connection
with the Company’s focus on developing the technology along with seeking a listing on a Canadian stock exchange.
See the discussion under the headings “Liquidity” and “Capital Resources” for more information.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Nine months ended September 30, 2015

During the nine months ended September 30, 2015, the Company incurred expenses of $501,118, primarily of
consulting fees of $116,305, amortization expenses of $189,642, wages and benefits of $132,185, professional fees
(legal & Accounting) of $39,934, rent expenses of $33,669, development expense of $3,758, office and
miscellaneous of $22,871, and travel related expenses of $1,200. Net loss for the nine month period ended
September 30, 2015 was $501,118.

The Company is working to commercialize its Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating (DTCR) technology.

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following is a summary of the Company’s financial results for the 3 most recently completed quarters:

Quarter Quarter Quarter
Ended Ended Ended
Sept 30, 2015 | June 30, 2015 March 31,
$ $ 2015
$
09/30/2015 06/30/2015 03/31/2015
Revenue Nil Nil Nil
Net income (loss) (215,849) (147,269) (138,000)




Loss per share, (0.02) (0.02) (0.01)
basic and diluted

On a quarter-by-quarter basis the loss can fluctuate significantly due to research & development activities during the
period.

During the period ended September 30, 2015, the Company incurred expenses of $254,295 compared to $110,125
for the period ended September 30, 2014. Expenses were comprised of primarily consulting fees of $78,095
compared to $28,940 for the period ended September 30, 2014, wages and benefits of $49,883 compared to $57,099
in 2014, amortization fees of $63,214 compared to $66,615 in 2014. Professional fees (legal & Accounting) for the
period ending September 30, 2015, were $39,411 compared to $593 for the period ending September 30, 2014,
Office and miscellaneous of $9,351 compared to $3,704 for the period ended September 30, 2014, rent expenses of
$12,185 compared to $12,290 in 2014, insurance expense of $2,156 compared to $nil for the period ended
September 30, 2014, and development expenses of $nil for the period ended September 30, 2015 compared to
$7,499 for the period ended September 30, 2014. Net loss for the period ended September 30, 2015 was $215,489
compared to a net loss of $158,496 for the period ended September 30, 2014.

An analysis of the quarterly results over the last three quarters shows significant changes in financial performance
during the quarter ended September 30, 2015, compared to the other two quarters. There is a significant increase in
expenditures and net loss for the Company during this quarter due to the Company incurring costs related to its
research and development, consulting, wages and benefits, and amortization costs. and stock-based compensation.
During the quarter ended September 30, 2015, the Company incurred expenses related to amortization of intellectual
property, computer equipment, and development equipment of $63,214. The Company also incurred professional
fees of $39,411 in preparation for applying for a listing on a Canadian stock exchange. Management anticipates
general and administrative expenditures to increase slightly or remain similar to the last three quarters. Research &
development costs and consulting fees will increase, and investor communications fees will increase slightly.
Additional expenditures are anticipated such as stock-based compensation, exchange and transfer agent fees,
additional insurance, investor communications fees, and advertising and promotion.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and on a going concern basis. This assumes the Company will be able to continue in operation
for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

The Company has not begun commercial sales of any of its technology holdings. The Company finances technology
development by raising private capital. The Company may encounter difficulty sourcing future financing in light of
the recent economic downturn.

The Company had cash of $274,714 at September 30, 2015 and $103,926 at September 30, 2014, and the Company
had a working capital deficiency of $12,254 at September 30, 2015 and working capital of $49,635 at September 30,
2014.

On August 28, 2015 SAS converted $68,000 of consulting fees owed to a Director and a consultant of the Company
into common shares of SAS at a fair value of $0.10 per share for a total of 680,000 common shares issued via shares
for debt.

On August 28, 2015 SAS completed a convertible financing for proceeds of $361,115. The convertible financing
bear interest at a rate of 10% per annum and has no maturity date and is unsecured. On December 14, 2015, the
proceeds of this financing were converted into common shares of SAS at a deemed price of $0.07 per share for a
total of 5,482,583 common shares. A finder’s fee of 1,515,879 shares was paid in connection with the financing.

On June 28, 2012 SAS completed issued 2,200,000 shares at a deemed price of $1.00 per share to the University of
Manitoba in relation to the Subscription and Assignment Agreement. The University of Manitoba was also granted
500,000 warrants exercisable at $0.50, expiring 12 months after listing on an Exchange.

On March 28, 2012 SAS completed a Unit private placement for total proceed of $250,200. A total of 278,000
common shares were issued at $0.90 per share.

On March 5, 2012 SAS completed a Unit private placement for total proceed of $812,000. A total of 812,000
common shares were issued at $1.00 per share.



On November 24, 2011 SAS completed a private placement for total proceed of $240,409. A total of 1,402,049
common shares were issued at $0.20 per share.

On May 13, 2011 SAS issued total of 5,625,000 common shares at $0.005 per share.

On May 13, 2011, the Company issued and returned to treasury, one incorporation share.

If additional funds are required, the Company plans to raise additional capital primarily through the private
placement of its equity securities. Under such circumstances, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to
obtain further funds required for the Company’s continued working capital requirements. Due to the recovery from
the global financial crisis, the Company may find it increasingly difficult to raise the funds required to continue the
Company’s operations. Share prices have undergone significant decreases and any issuance of the Company’s
equity securities in the near future may result in substantial dilution to the Company’s existing shareholders.

Operating Activities

The Company used net cash of $298,327 in operating activities during the nine month period ended September 30,
2015 (2014 - $86,017).

Financing Activities

The Company received net cash of $469,115 from financing activities during the nine month period ended
September 30, 2015 (2014 - $Nil).

Investing Activities

The Company used cash of $nil in investing activities during the nine month periods ended September 30, 2015 and
2014.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(@ During the nine month period ended September 30, 2015, the amount of 68,250 (2014 — $29,384) was paid
in consulting fees to the Directors or Officers of the Company.

PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into a binding amalgamation agreement on September 3, 2015 and is in the process of
amalgamating with Torino Acquisition Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of Torino Ventures Inc., a British
Columbia company incorporated on September 10, 2014. Effective November 5, 2015, the Corporation
amalgamated with Torino Acquisition Corp. The amalgamated public company entity will be named Torino Power
Solutions Inc.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(d) On November 6, 2015, the Company completed a three-cornered amalgamation whereby Smart
Autonomous Solutions Inc. ("SAS") has amalgamated with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Torino Ventures
Inc. (Torino Acquisition Corp). The Amalgamation was filed with British Columbia Registry Services as of
November 5, 2015. In conjunction with the Amalgamation, Torino issued 12,062,927 common shares to
securityholders of SAS.

(e) On November 13, 2015, the amalgamated entity changed its name to Torino Power Solutions Inc.
(f) On December 14, 2015, the Company issued 5,482,583 common shares pursuant to the convertible debt

agreements. The company has now converted all of the debt and accrued interest into common shares and
no longer has any long-term term liabilities. In connection with the conversion, the Company issues



500,000 common shares as commission which will be recorded as share issuance costs.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and interpretations, are not yet effective for the nine
month period ended September 30, 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements.

New standards:

IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”

IAS 16, “Plant and Equipment”

IAS 38, “Intangible Assets”

IFRIC 21, “Levies”

The Company has not early adopted these revised standards and is currently assessing the impact that these
standards will have on the financial statements.

Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been issued but have future
effective dates are either not applicable or are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, amounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
and due to related parties. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to
significant interest rate, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair values of these
financial instruments approximate their carrying values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these
instruments.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE FOR VENTURE ISSUERS WITHOUT SIGNIFICANT REVENUE

During the nine month period ended September 30, 2015 and year end 2014, the Company incurred the following
expenses:

Quarter Ended

Year End
September 30, 2015 | December 31, 2014
Research & Development 3,758 26,553
General and administrative costs 535,806 734,512

An analysis of material components of the Company’s general and administrative expenses is disclosed in the
unaudited financial statements for the nine month period ended September 30, 2015 to which this MD&A relates.

DISCLOSURE OF OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA
Common Shares
The Company’s common shares are not listed on any exchange. The Company’s authorized share capital consists of

an unlimited number of common shares without par value. As at September 30, 2015 the Company had 12,62,927
common shares issued and outstanding.



Share Purchase Warrants

As at September 30, 2015, the following share purchase warrants were outstanding and exercisable:

Number of  Exercise
warrants price
outstanding $ Expiry date

500,000 0.50 June 29, 2022

225,000 0.50 October 10, 2017

725,000

Stock Options
The Company had no stock options outstanding as at September 30, 2015.
RISK FACTORS

Much of the information included in this report includes or is based upon estimates, projections or other forward-
looking statements. Such forward-looking statements include any projections or estimates made by the Company
and its management in connection with the Company’s business operations. While these forward-looking
statements, and any assumptions upon which they are based, are made in good faith and reflect the Company’s
current judgment regarding the direction of its business, actual results will almost always vary, sometimes
materially, from any estimates, predictions, projections, assumptions, or other future performance suggested herein.
Except as required by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances occurring after the date of such statements.

Such estimates, projections or other forward-looking statements involve various risks and uncertainties as outlined
below. The Company cautions readers of this report that important factors in some cases have affected and, in the
future, could materially affect actual results and cause actual results to differ materially from the results expressed in
any such estimates, projections or other forward-looking statements. In evaluating the Company, its business and
any investment in its business, readers should carefully consider the following factors:

Risks Related to the Company’s Business

Because of the unique difficulties and uncertainties inherent in early stage technology development, the Company
faces a high risk of business failure, including the following:

The Corporation currently does not generate revenue from its operations, and as a result, we face a high risk
of business failure.

The Company has a history of operating losses and may never achieve profitability in the future. The Company is an
early stage technology company; accordingly, it has not generated any business income from its proprietary systems
to monitor the Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating.

The Company expects to be involved in research and development of its Dynamic Thermal Circuit Rating (DTCR)
monitoring system, working to achieve certification for its technology and then performing pilot tests to determine
its commercial viability. This process may take several years and require significant financial resources without
income. The Company expects these expenses to result in continuing operating losses for the foreseeable future.

The Company’s ability to generate future revenue or achieve profitable operations is largely dependent on its ability
to attract the experienced management and know-how to develop and commercialize its DTCR monitoring system.



Successfully developing a DTCR monitoring system into marketable solution may take several years and significant
financial resources and the Company cannot assure that it can achieve these objectives.

Industry Risks

The market for DTCR monitoring system is characterized by evolving industry standards, changes in end-user
requirements and frequent new product introductions and enhancements. The introduction of products embodying
new technologies and the emergence of new industry standards and service offerings could render the Company’s
existing products and products currently under development obsolete. The Company's success will largely depend
upon its ability to evolve its products and services to sufficiently keep pace with technological developments and
respond to the needs of its existing and prospective customers. Failure to anticipate or respond adequately to
technological developments or future customer requirements, or any significant delays in product development or
introduction, could damage the Company’s competitive position in the market place and effect commercialization
plans. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in developing and marketing new products or
product enhancements or service offerings on a timely basis.

Current and future competitors could have a significant impact on our ability to generate future revenue and
profits

The markets for our products are intensely competitive, and are subject to rapid technological change and other
pressures created by changes within our industry. We expect competition to increase and intensify in the future as
additional companies enter our markets, including competitors who may offer similar solutions but provide them
through different means. We may not be able to compete effectively with current competitors and potential entrants
into our marketplace. We could experience diminished market share if our current or prospective competitors
introduce new competitive products; add new functionality to existing products, acquire competitive products,
reduce prices, or form strategic alliances with other companies. If competitors were to engage in aggressive pricing
policies with respect to their products, or if the dynamics in our marketplace resulted in increasing bargaining power
by the consumers of our products and services, we might need to lower the prices we charge for the products we
plan to offer. This could result in lower revenues or reduced margins, either of which may materially and adversely
affect our business and operating results.

We may become involved in legal matters that may materially adversely affect us

From time to time in the ordinary course of our business, we may become involved in various legal proceedings,
including commercial, product liability, employment, class action and other litigation and claims, as well as
governmental and other regulatory investigations and proceedings. Such matters can be time-consuming, divert
management’s attention and resources and cause us to incur significant expenses. Furthermore, because litigation is
inherently unpredictable, and can be highly expensive, the results of any such actions may have a material adverse
effect on our business, operations or financial condition.

Investment in our current research and development efforts may not provide a sufficient, timely return

The development of new software products and strategies is a costly, complex and time-consuming process, and the
investment in technology product development often involves a prolonged time until a return is achieved on such an
investment. We have made, and will continue to make, significant investments in technology development and
related product opportunities. Investments in new products are inherently speculative and risky. Commercial success
depends on many factors including the degree of innovation of the products developed, sufficient support from our
strategic partners, and effective distribution and marketing. Accelerated product introductions and short product life
cycles require high levels of expenditures for new development. These expenditures may adversely affect our
operating results if they are not sufficiently offset by revenue increases. We believe that we must continue to
dedicate a significant amount of resources to our development efforts in order to maintain our competitive position.
However, significant revenue from new product and service investments may not be achieved for a prolonged period
of time, if at all. Moreover, new products and services may not be profitable, and even if they are profitable,
operating margins for new products and businesses may not be as lucrative as the margins we previously
experienced for our legacy products and services.

Protection of proprietary technology can be unpredictable and costly.
The Company’s success will depend in part upon successful new patent applications for its technology and

protecting existing patents that the Company holds. Obtaining such patent protection can be costly and the outcome
of any application for such can be unpredictable. In addition, any breach of confidentiality by a third party by



premature disclosure may preclude the obtainment of appropriate patent protection, thereby affecting the
development and commercial value of the Company’s technology and products.

Competition

The planned business to be carried out by the Company will be highly competitive and involve a high degree of risk.
There can be no assurance that the Company will be the only DTCR developer in North America or globally. In its
efforts to achieve its objectives, the Company will compete with other companies that may have greater resources,
many of which will not only develop technology but also manufacture and sell similar products on a worldwide
basis.

Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk

The Company may become subject to risks against which it cannot insure or against which it may elect not to insure.
Settling related liabilities would reduce funds available for core business activities. Settlement of uninsured
liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our financial position.

Conflicts of Interest

Our executive officers and directors will devote only that portion of their time which, in their judgment and
experience, is reasonably required for the management and operation of our business. Management may have
conflicts of interest in allocating management time, services and functions among the Corporation and any present
and future ventures which are or may be organized by our officers or directors and/or their affiliates. Management
are not required to direct the Corporation as their sole and exclusive function, and they may have other business
interests and engage in other activities in addition to those relating to the Corporation. This includes rendering
advice or services of any kind to other investors and creating or managing other businesses.

It is possible, however, that our directors and officers may owe similar consideration to another organization(s). It is
possible that these and other conflicts of interest are resolved in a way that has a material adverse impact on the
Company.

Dependence on Key Personnel

The Company depends on support from existing directors and officers and its ability to attract, and retain, new
directors, officers and other personnel with appropriate skill sets. Inability to retain key team members or find new
professionals to serve in important roles could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business. There can
be no assurance that we will be able to attract or retain the quality of personnel required in the future.

Financial Liquidity

The Company has not yet generated revenues and will likely operate at a loss as it looks to establish its first
commercial DTCR products. The Company may require additional financing in order to execute its business plan.
Our ability to secure required financing will depend in part upon on investor perception of our ability to create a
successful business. Capital market conditions and other factors beyond our control may also play important roles in
our ability to raise capital. The Company can offer no assurance that it will be able to successfully obtain additional
financing, or that future financing occurs on terms satisfactory to our management and/or shareholders. If funds are
unavailable in the future, or unavailable in the amounts that we feel the business requires, or unavailable on
acceptable terms, we may be required to cease operating or modify our business plans in a manner that undermines
our ability to achieve our business objectives.

Financial Statements Prepared on Going Concern Basis

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under which an entity is
considered to be able to realize its assets and satisfy its liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s
future operations are dependent upon the successful completion of financing and the creation of operations deemed
successful according to the standards of our industry. The Company cannot guarantee that it will be successful in
obtaining financing in the future or in achieving business objective set forth internally or externally. Our
consolidated financial statements may not contain the adjustments relating to carrying values and classification of
assets and/or liabilities that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

We do not have any business liability, disruption or litigation insurance, and any business disruption or
litigation we experience might result in our incurring substantial costs and the diversion of resources.



Insurance companies offer limited business insurance products and do not, to our knowledge, offer business liability
insurance suitable to management. While business disruption insurance is available, we have determined that the
risks of disruption, cost of such insurance and the difficulties associated with acquiring such insurance on
commercially reasonable terms make it impractical for us to have such insurance. As a result, except for directors
liability and fire insurance, we do not have any business liability, disruption or litigation insurance coverage for our
development operations. Any business disruption or litigation may result in our incurring substantial costs and the
diversion of resources.

BOARD APPROVAL

The board of directors of the Company has approved this MD&A.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

401-905 West Pender St
Vancouver BC V6C 1L6
t 604.687.5447

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT f 604.687.6737

To the Directors of Torino Ventures Inc.,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Torino Ventures Inc. which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2014, and the statements of comprehensive loss and changes in equity for the period from
incorporation on September 10, 2014 to December 31, 2014, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Torino Ventures
Inc. at December 31, 2014 and its financial performance for the period from incorporation on September 10, 2014 to
December 31, 2014 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that the Company
has no current sources of revenue and is dependent upon its ability to secure new sources of financing. These conditions,

along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Vancouver, BC

January, 2015

TORINO VENTURES INC.



Statement of financial position

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

December 31,
2014
$

Assets
Current assets

Subscription receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital (note 3)

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Nature of operations and continuance of business (Note 1)

Approved on behalf of the Board on January 8, 2015:
/sl “‘Bryan Loree”

Bryan Loree, Director



TORINO VENTURES INC.
Statement of comprehensive loss

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Period from
incorporation on
September 10, 2014
to December 31,
2014
$

Revenue

Operating expenses

Net loss and comprehensive loss

Loss per share, basic and diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding




TORINO VENTURES INC.

Statement of changes in equity

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Share capital

Number Amount Deficit Total

of shares $ $ $

Incorporation share 1 1 - 1
Net loss - - - -
Balance, December 31, 2014 1 1 - 1




Nature of Operations

Torino Ventures Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated on September 10, 2014 under the BC Business
Corporations Act as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cannabix Technologies Inc. (“Cannabix™), a public
company the common shares of which trade on the TSX Venture Exchange. The head office of the Company
is located at 800 — 885 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3H1. The registered and
records office of the Company is located at the same address.

The Company’s primary business is to be, upon completion of the Plan Arrangement described below, the
identification, evaluation and acquisition of mineral properties, as well as exploration of mineral
properties once acquired.

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes that the Company
will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. As at December
31, 2014, the Company has no source of revenue, does not generate cash flows from operating activities, and
has not accumulated any deficit. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The continued operations of the Company are dependent on its ability to generate future
cash flows from operations or obtain additional financing. Management is of the opinion that sufficient
working capital will be obtained from external financing to meet the Company’s liabilities and commitments as
they become due, although there is a risk that additional financing will not be available on a timely basis or on
terms acceptable to the Company. These financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that may be
necessary if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern.

The audited financial statements have been prepared for inclusion in a Management Information Circular of
Cannabix, which contains the details of a Plan of Arrangement (the “Arrangement”). Pursuant to the
Arrangement, Cannabix intends to exchange each of its issued and outstanding common shares for one New
Common Share and one Class 1 Reorganization Share. All of the Class 1 Reorganization Shares will be
transferred by the shareholders of Cannabix to the Company, in exchange for 8,000,000 common shares of the
Company to be issued to the shareholders of Cannabix on a pro-rata basis. Finally Cannabix will then redeem
all of the Class 1 Reorganization Shares by transferring to the Company an amount equal to $162,230,
consisting of the value of its Hazeur mineral property interest, located in the Province of Quebec and $10,000
of cash.

The Hazeur property is expected to be acquired by the Company for $152,230, representing its carrying
amount in the financial statements of Cannabix, inclusive of $129,430 in exploration costs expensed by
Cannabix for accounting purposes, as there will be no substantive change in its ownership upon completion of
the Plan of Arrangement.

Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

These audited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC"). These
audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are based on
historical costs, modified where applicable. They are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency.



2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Company’s management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Significant areas requiring the use of estimates include the useful life and recoverability of impairment of
mineral property costs, determination of reclamation provisions, measurement of share-based payments,
fair values of financial instruments, and deferred income tax asset valuation allowances.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of
issuance to be cash equivalents.

Mineral Property Costs

The Company records its interests in mineral properties and areas of geological interest at cost. All direct
and indirect costs related to the acquisition of these interests are capitalized on the basis of specific claim
blocks or areas of geological interest until the properties to which they relate are placed into production,
sold or management has determined there to be an impairment in value. These costs will be depleted using
the unit-of-production method based on the estimated proven and probable reserves available on the
related property following commencement of production.

The amounts shown for mineral properties represent costs, net of write-offs, option proceeds and
recoveries, and do not necessarily reflect present or future value. Recoverability of these amounts will
depend upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain
financing necessary to complete development, and future profitable production. The Company reviews the
carrying values of mineral properties when there are any events or change in circumstances that may
indicate impairment. Where estimates of future cash flows are available, an impairment charge is recorded
if the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the property is less than
the carrying amount. An impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of
the property exceeds the fair value of the property.

Mineral Exploration and Development Costs

Exploration costs are charged to operations as incurred. When it has been established that a mineral
deposit is commercially mineable and a decision has been made to formulate a mining plan (which occurs
upon completion of a positive economic analysis of the mineral deposit), the costs subsequently incurred
to develop the mine on the property prior to the start of the mining operations are capitalized.



2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

9

(h)

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional and reporting currency is the Canadian dollar. Transactions denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the transaction date or at an average rate.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange in
effect at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary items are translated using the historical
rate on the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in profit or loss.

Income Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to
items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity is recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity and not in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Financial Instruments

All financial assets are initially recorded at fair value and classified into one of four categories: held to
maturity, available for sale, loans and receivable or at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). All
financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and classified as either FVTPL or other financial
liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events
where it is probably that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. If the effect is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. At each
financial position reporting date presented, the Company has not incurred any decommissioning costs
related to the exploration and evaluation of its mineral properties and accordingly no provision has been
recorded for such site reclamation or abandonment.



2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

)

(k)

(0

Flow-through Shares

The resource expenditure deductions for income tax purposes related to exploration and development
activities funded by flow-through share arrangements are renounced to investors in accordance with
Canadian tax legislation. On issuance, the premium recorded on the flow-through share, being the
difference in price over a common share with no tax attributes, is recognized as a liability. As expenditures
are incurred, the deferred income tax liability associated with the renounced tax deductions is recognized
through profit and loss with a pro-rata portion of the deferred premium.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. The treasury stock method is used for the calculation of diluted loss per share, whereby
all “in the money” stock options and share purchase warrants are assumed to have been exercised at the
beginning of the period and the proceeds from their exercise are assumed to have been used to purchase
common shares at the average market price during the period. When a loss is incurred during the period,
basic and diluted loss per share are the same as the exercise of stock options and share purchase warrants
is considered to be anti-dilutive.

Stock-based payments

The Company grants share-based awards to employees, directors and consultants providing similar
services as an element of compensation. The fair value of the awards is recognized over the vesting period
as share-based compensation expense and contributed surplus. The fair value of share-based payments is
determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using estimates at the date of the grant. At each
reporting date prior to vesting, the cumulative expense representing the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and management’s best estimate of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest is
computed. The movement in cumulative expense is recognized in the statement of income with a
corresponding entry within equity, against contributed surplus. No expense is recognized for awards that
do not ultimately vest. When stock options are exercised, the proceeds received, together with any related
amount in contributed surplus, are credited to share capital.

Share-based payments arrangements with non-employees in which the Company receives goods or
services as consideration for its own equity instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based
payment transactions, unless the fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the Company cannot reliably
estimate the fair value of the goods or services received, the Company will measure their value by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.

(m) Accounting standards and amendments issued but not yet effective

The following standard will be adopted effective January 1, 2019:

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, Classification and Measurement



(a)

Share Capital

Authorized: Unlimited common shares without par value
Unlimited preferred shares without par value
Share issuance for the period ended December 31, 2014:

On September 10, 2014, the Company issued 1 share to Cannabix Technologies Inc. pursuant to the
incorporation of the Company.

Financial Instruments and Risks
Fair Values

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2014 as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted prices in
active markets for

identical Significant other Significant
instruments observable inputs unobservable inputs Balance,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) December 31, 2014
$ $ $ $

Cash - - - -

(b) Credit Risk

The Company does not currently have any financial instruments that are potentially subject to credit risk.
(c) Foreign Exchange Rate and Interest Rate Risk

The Company is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange rate or interest rate risk.
(d) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Company currently settles its financial obligations out of cash. The ability to do this relies on the
Company raising equity financing in a timely manner and by maintaining sufficient cash in excess of
anticipated needs.

(e) Price Risk

The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commaodity prices. The Company’s ability to raise
capital to fund exploration and development activities is subject to risks associated with fluctuations in the
market price of commodities.

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to maintain its ability to continue as a going concern and to provide returns
to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders. The capital structure of the Company consists of all
components of shareholders’ equity comprised of issued share capital, contributed surplus and deficit.



Capital Management (continued)

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of economic conditions. The
Company, upon approval from its Board of Directors, will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues or by undertaking other activities as deemed appropriate under the specific circumstances.

Segmented Information

The Company operates in one industry and in only one geographic segment within the mineral resource
industry with all current exploration activities conducted in Canada.
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TORINO VENTURES INC.
Statement of financial position
(Unaudited - Expreased in Canadian dollars)

September 30, December 31,

2015 2014
5 b
Aszets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 101,560

Amounts receivable 10,243

Subscription receivable -

Deposits (note 9) 20,000
Total current assets 131,803
MNon-current azsets

Exploration and evaluation assets (Note 3) 22 800
Total aszsets 154 603
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 15,834
Total liabilities 15,634
Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital (note 3) 236,200

Subscriptions receivable 10,000

Deficit (107 431)
Total sharehaolders' equity 138,769
Total liakilities and shareholders’ equity 154,603

Mature of operations and continuance of business (Mote 1)

Approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on Movember 26, 2015:

/s “Ravinder Mlait™
Ravinder Miait, Director

/s/ “Bryan Loree”

Bryan Loree, Director

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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TORINO VENTURES INC.
Statement of comprehensive loss
(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

From period of
incorporation on

Mine months Three monthe  September 10,
ended ended 2014 to

September 30, September 30, September 30,

2015 2015 2014
5 5 5

Revenue - - -
Consulting fees 102,000 36,000 -
Professional fees 2613 2613 -
Transfer agent fees 2,764 1,887 -
Bank charges & interest 54 18 -
Met loss and comprehensive loss (107 ,431) (40,518) -
Loss per share, basic and diluted (0.02) (0.01) —
Weighted average shares ocutstanding 5,649 804 7,199 982 1

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of theze financial statements)
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TORINO VENTURES INC.

Statement of changes in equity

(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Share capital
Mumber of Arnount Shiare Deficit Total
shares Subscripiion
Receivable
b b b1 b

Incorporation share 1 1 - - 1
Met loss - - - - -
Balance, September 30, 2014 &
Decemibxer 31, 2014 1 1 - — 1
Incorporation share cancelled (1) (13 - - (1)
Shares issuwed pursuant to plan of
armangement 7,999 984 32,800 - - 32,800
Consolidation of plan of
amangement shares (5:1) (6,400,006) - - - -
Shares issued for debt 1,500,000 90,000 - - 90,000
Shares issued pursuant to private
placement 2,500,000 115,000 10,000 - 125,000
Share issue costs - {1,60:0) - - (1,600}
Net loss - — (107, 431)  (107,431)
Balance, September 30, 2015 5,099 975 236,200 10,000 (107 431) 138,769

{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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TORINO VENTURES INC.
Statements of cash flows
(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Mine months

Three months

From period of
incorporation on

ended ended September 10, 2014
September 30, September 30, to September 30,
2015 2015 2014
3 - 3

Operating activities
MNet loss for the period (107,431) (40,518) -
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Amounts receivable (10,243) (10,199) -

Accounts payable and accrued liahilities 15,834 (50,308) -
Met cash used in operating activities (101,840) (101,025) -
Investing activity

Amalgamation deposit 20,000 (20,000} -
Met cash used in investing activities (20,000 (20,000} -
Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of common shares 223,400 213,400 1
Met cash provided by financing activities 223 400 213,400 1
Increase in cash 101,560 92,375 1
Cash, beginning of the period - 9,185 -
Cash, end of period 101,560 101,560 1
Mon-cash investing and financing activities:

Shares issued pursuant to mineral property option

agreements 22,800 22,800 -

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)



TORINO VENTURES INC.

Motes to the financial statements

September 30, 2015

(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

1.

Hature of Operations

Torino Ventures Inc. (the “Company™) was incorporated on September 10, 2014 under the BC
Business Corporations Act as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cannabix Technologies Inc.
(“Cannabix”), a public company the commen shares of which trade on the CSE. The head office of
the Company is located at 800 — B85 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia VEC 3H1.
The reqgistered and records office of the Company is located at the same address. On March 12,
2015, the Company completed the Plan Arrangement described below and the Company's primary
business is to be the identification, evaluation and acqguisition of mineral properties, as well as
exploration of mineral properties once acquired.

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concemn basis, which assumes that the
Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the nomal course of
business. As at September 30, 2015, the Company has no source of revenue, does not generate
cash flows from operating activities, and has an accumulated deficit of $107,431. These factors raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The continued
operations of the Company are dependent on its ability to generate future cash flows from operations
or obtain additional financing. Management is of the opinicn that sufficient working capital will be
obtained from external financing to meet the Company's liabilities and commitments as they become
due, although there iz a risk that additional financing will not be available on a timely basis or on
terms acceptable to the Company. These financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that
may be necessary if the Company is unable to continue as a going concem.

Pursuant to the Arrangement, Cannabix exchanged each of its issued and outstanding common
shares for one Mew Common Share and one Class 1 Reorganization Share. All of the Class 1
Reorganization Shares were transferred by the shareholders of Cannabix to the Company, in
exchange for 7,999 984 common shares of the Company, which were then issued to the
shareholders of Cannabix on a pro-rata basis. Cannabix then redeemed all of the Class 1
Reorganization Shares by transferring to the Company an amount equal to $32 800, consisting of
the value of its Hazeur mineral property interest, recorded at its carmying amount in the accounts of
Cannabix, and $10,000 of cash.

Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

These interim financial statements, including comparatives, have been prepared using
accounting policies consistent with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS5®) and in
accordance with Intemational Accounting Standard (*LAS™) 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements
are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.

(k) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Company's
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimatez and underlying assumpfions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.



TORINO VENTURES INC.

Motes to the financial statements

September 30, 2015

(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(e

(d)

(e)

(f

Usze of Estimates (continued)

Significant areas requiring the use of estimates include the useful life and recoverability of
impairment of mineral property costs, determination of reclamation provisions, measurement of
share-based payments, fair values of financial instruments, and deferred income tax asset
valuation allowances.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less at
the time of issuance to be cash equivalents.

Mineral Property Coats

The Company records its interests in mineral properiies and areas of geclogical interest at cost.
All direct and indirect costs related to the acquisition of these interests are capitalized on the
basis of specific claim blocks or areas of geological interest until the properties to which they
relate are placed into production, sold or management has determined there to be an impairment
im value. These costs will be depleted using the unit-of-production method based on the
estimated proven and probable reserves available on the related property following
commencement of production.

The amounte shown for mineral properties represent costs, net of write-offs, option proceeds
and recoveries, and do not necessarily reflect present or future value. Recoverability of these
amounts will depend upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the
Company to obtain financing necessary to complete development, and future profitable
production. The Company reviews the cammying values of mineral properties when there are any
events or change in circumstances that may indicate impairment. Where estimates of future
cash flows are availakle, an impaiment charge is recorded if the estimated undiscounted future
net cash flows expected to be generated by the property is less than the cammying amount. An
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the camying amount of the property
exceeds the fair value of the property.

Mineral Exploration and Development Costs

Exploration costs are charged to operations as incummed. When it has been established that a
mineral deposit iz commercially mineable and a decision has been made to formulate a mining
plan (which occurs upon completion of a positive economic analysis of the mineral deposit), the
cozts subseguently incumred to develop the mine on the property prior to the start of the mining
operations are capitalized.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional and reporting currency is the Canadian dollar. Tranzactions denominated in
forgign cumencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the transaction date or at
an average rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rate of exchange in effect at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary items
are translated using the historical rate on the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are included in profit or loss.



TORINO YVENTURES INC.

Motes to the financial statements

September 30, 2015

(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

(h)

(i)

Income Taxes
Current income fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorties. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive
income or equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss.
Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in the tax returmns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.
Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. The carmying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and recognized only to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is setiled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reperting
period. Deferred income fax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liakilities and the
deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Financial Instruments

All financial assets are initially recorded at fair value and classified into one of four categornes:
held to maturty, available for sale, loans and receivable or at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVYTPL"). Al financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and clazsified as either
FWTPL or other financial liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past
eyvents where it iz probably that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. If the effect
is material, provisions are determined by dizcounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time wvalue of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liabkility. At each financial position reporting date presented,
the Company has not incurred any decommissioning costs related to the exploration and
evaluation of its mineral properties and accordingly no provision has been recorded for such site
reclamation or abandonment.



TORINO VENTURES INC.

Motes to the financial statements

September 30, 2015

(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

a

(k)

(n

Flow-through Shares

The resource expenditure deductions for income tax purposes related to exploration and
development activities funded by flow-through share arrangements are renounced to investors in
accordance with Canadian tax legislation. On issuance, the premium recorded on the flow-
through share, being the difference in price over a common share with no tax attributes, is
recognized as a liability. As expenditures are incurred, the defermred income tax liability
associated with the renounced tax deductions is recognized through profit and loss with a pro-
rata portion of the defemed premium.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the pericd. The treasury stock method is used for the calculation of diluted
loss per share, whereby all “in the money™ stock options and share purchase warrants are
assumed to have been exercised at the beginning of the period and the proceeds from their
exercize are assumed to have been used to purchase common shares at the average market
price during the percd. When a loss is incurred during the period, basic and diluted loss per
share are the same as the exercise of stock options and share purchase warrants is considered
to be anti-dilutive.

Stock-based payments

The Company grants share-based awards to employees, directors and consultants providing
similar services as an element of compensation. The fair value of the awards is recognized over
the wvesting period as share-based compensation expense and contributed surplus. The fair
value of share-based payments is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
using estimates at the date of the grant. At each reporting date prior to vesting, the cumulative
expense representing the extent to which the vesting pericd has expired and management’s best
estimate of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest iz computed. The movement in
cumulative expense is recognized in the statement of income with a comesponding entry within
equity, against contributed surplus. Mo expense is recognized for awards that do not ullimately
vest. When stock options are exercised, the proceeds received, together with any related
amount in contributed surplus, are credited to share capital.

Share-based payments amangements with non-employees in which the Company receives
goods or services as consideration for itz own eguity instruments are accounted for as equity-
settled share-based payment transactions, unless the fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If
the Company cannot reliably estimate the fair value of the goods or services received, the
Company will measure their value by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
granted.

{m) Accounting standards and amendments issued but not yet effective

The following standard will be adopted effective January 1, 2019:

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments, Glassification and Measurement



TORING VENTURES INC.

Motes to the financial statements

September 30, 2015

(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

3.

Mineral Property Costs

Balance, December 31, 2014 -

Additions 22 800
Balance, September 30, 2015 22,800

Dwuring the nine month period ended September 30, 2015, the Company acquired a 100% interest in
the Hazeur Property, consisting of 6 claims located in the Province of Quebec, from Cannabix upon
redemption of the Class 1 Reorganization Shares (Mote 1).

Related Party Transactions

During the nine month period ended September 30, 2015, the amount of $102,000 was accrued as
consulting fees to Directors of the Company. On August 28, 2015, 390,000 was settled with the
issuance of 1,500,000 common shares to two Directors of the Company.

At September 30, 2015, $12.000 iz payable to Directors of the Company for consulting fees. The
amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Share Capital

Authorized: Unlimited common shares without par value
Unlimited preferred shares without par value

Share issuance for the pericd ended September 30, 2015

{a) On September 2, 2015, the Company issued 2500000 units at $0.05 per unit for gross
proceeds of $123,400. Each unit consisted of one common share and one and one-half share
purchase warrants. Each whole share purchase warrant entitles the holder to acguire one
additional common share at an exercise price of 3010 wuntil September 2, 2017. No
conzsideration or value was allocated to the warrants as they had no intrinsic value at the time the
units were issued. The Company paid a finders’ fee of $1,600 in connection with the private
placement.

(b} On September 2, 2015, the Company issued 1,500,000 common shares at a deemed value of
$0.06 per share as debt setlement with two Directors of the Company.

{c) On March 11, 2015, the Company issued 7,999 5584 shares pursuant to the plan of arrangement
with Cannabix Technologies Inc. On September 1, 2015, the Company completed a
conadlidation of the outstanding common shares on the basis of one post-consolidation common
share for five pre-consolidation common shares resulting in 1,599,978 common shares
outstanding.

Share issuance for the pericd ended December 31, 2014:

On September 10, 2014, the Company issued 1 share to Cannabkix Technologies Inc. pursuant
to the incorperation of the Company. This incorporation share was cancelled duning the period
ended September 30, 2015.
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TORINO VENTURES INC.

Motes to the financial statements

September 30, 2015

{Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

5. Share Capital (continued)

A summary of the changes in the Company’'s share purchase wamants during the period ended
September 30, 2015 is as follows:

Weighted
average
exercise

Mumber of price
wamants -]
Balance, December 31, 2014 - -
lssued 3,750,000 010
Balance, September 30, 2015 3,750,000 010

As at September 30, 2015, the following share purchasze wamrants were outstanding:

Mumber of  Exercise
warrants price
outstanding 5 Expiry date

3750,000 0.0 September?2, 2017

6. Financial Instruments and Rizsks

{a) FairValues

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company's statement

of financial position as at September 30, 2015 as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted prices in

active markets Significant
for identical Significant other unobservable Balance,
instruments observable inputs inputs September 30,
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2015
b b b 3
Caszh 101,560 — — 101,560

{b) Credit Risk

The Company does not currently have any financial instruments that are potentially subject to

credit rizk.

{c) Foreign Exchange Rate and Interest Rate Risk

The Company is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange rate or interest rate risk.

{d) Liquidity Risk

Liguidity rizk iz the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Company currently settles its financial obligations out of cash. The akility to do this
relies on the Company raising equity financing in a timely manner and by maintaining sufficient

cash in excess of anticipated needs.
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TORINO VENTURES INC.

Motes to the financial statements

September 30, 2015

(Unaudited - Expressed in Canadian dollars)

.

Financial Instruments and Risks {continued)
(e} Price Risk

The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity prices. The Company's ability
to raise capital to fund exploration and development activities iz subject to risks associated with
fluctuations in the market price of commodities.

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to maintain its ability to continue as a going concemn and to
provide retums to sharsholders and benefits to other stakeholders. The capital structure of the
Company consists of all components of shareholders' equity comprised of issued share capital,
contributed surplus and deficit.

The Company manages itz capital structure and makesz adjustments to it in light of economic
conditions. The Company, upon approval from its Board of Directors, will balance its overall capital
structure through new share issues or by undertaking other activities as deemed appropriate under
the specific circumstances.

Segmented Information

The Company operates in one industry and in only one geographic segment within the mineral
resource industry with all current exploration activities conducted in Canada.

Subsequent Events

On MNovember 2, 20153, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement for gross
proceeds of $407,200 through the sale of 4,075,500 Units. Each Unit is comprized of one common
share ("Common Share™) at $0.10 cents, and one half mon-transferable common share purchase
warrant ("Warrant") exercisable at 30.20 cents per common share for a penod of 18 months from the
date of closing.

On November 6, 2015, the Company completed a three-cornered amalgamation whereby Smart
Autonomous Solutions Inc. ("SAST) amalgamated with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(Torino Acquisition Corp). The Amalgamation was filed with British Columbia Registry Services as of
Movember 5, 2015. In conjunction with the Amalgamation, Torino iesued 12,062 927 common shares
to security holders of 3AS. The Company had previously paid a $20,000 deposit to SAS on August
14, 2015 pursuant to the binding LOI dated July 20, 2015.

On November 12, 2015, the Company completed a name change, and i now known as Torino
Power Solutions Inc.
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APPENDIX 6— TORINO SEP 30, 2015 MD&A

Torino Ventures Inc.

MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED September 30, 2015

This Managemernt ‘s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A™) should be readin conjunction with the unaudited financial
statements and notes thereto fortheperiod ended September 30, 2015 of Torino Ventures Inc. (the “Company™).
Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Eeporting Standards
(“IFRS"™).

All dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian deollars unless otherwise indicated.

CAUTIONAEY NOTE EEGARDING FOEWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this report are forward-looking statements, which reflect our management’s expectations
regarding our future growth, results of operations, perfonmance andbusiness prospects and opportunities including
statements related to the development of existing and future property interests, availability of financing and
projected costs and expenses. Forward-looking statements consist of statements that are not purely historical,
mcluding any statemernts regarding beliefs, plans, expectations orintentions regarding the future. Such statements
are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results, performance or developments to differ matenally
from those contained in the stateaments. No assurance can be given that ary ofthe events anticipated by the forward-
looking statements will oceur or, if they do occur, what benefits we will obtain from them. These forward-looking
statemernts reflect management’s current views and are based on certain assumptions and speak only as ofthe dateof
thisreport. These asswmptions, which include management’s current expectations, estimmates and assunptions about
current mineral property interests, the global economic envirormment, the market price and demand for conumodities
and our ahility to manage our property interests and operating costs, may prove to be incomrect. A number of nsks
and uncertainties could cause owr actual results to differmatenially fromthose expressed orimplied by the foreard-
looking statements, ncluding: (1) a downhem in general econontc conditions, (2) a decreased demand or price of
preciousmetals (3) delays inthe start of projects with respect to our property interests, (4) mability to locate and
acqure additional propertyinterests, (3) the uncertainty of govermment regulation and politics in the province of
Chiebec regarding mining and mineral exploration, (6) potential negative financial impact from regulatory
mvestigations, claims, lawsuts and otherlegal proceedings and challenges, and(7) other factors beyond our control.

There is a significant nsk that such forward-locking statements will not prove to be accurate. Investors are
cautionednot to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. No forward-looking statement is a
guarantee of future results. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new mformation, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.
Additional infonmation aboutthese and other asswmptions, nsks and uncertainties are set out in the section entitled
“Risk Factors™ below.

DESCEIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated under the laws of the province of Brtish Columbia on September 10, 2014, The
Comparryis a jurior mineral exploration comparry engagedin the business of acquiring, explonng and evaluating
natural resource properties andis currently focused on gold exploration in the province of Quebec, Canada. The
Company completed a plan of amrangement {“Amrangement Agreement™) on March 12, 2015 with Cannabix
Technologies Inc (“Cannabix ™) andis a reporting issuerin British Columbia, Alberta and Maritoba. The Company
iz not listed on any exchange.

For further details, please see the amangement agreement of the Company dated January 10, 2013, which is
available on SEDAR. at www.sedar.com This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MDE&A™) shouldbe read in



For finther details, please see the arrangement agreement of the Company dated Januwary 10, 2015, which is
available en SEDAR at worw_sedar com This Management's Discussion and Analysis (MDE&EA™) should be read m
conjunciion with the unaundited financial statements and notes thereto for the penod ended September 30, 2015 of
Torine Ventwes Ine. (the “Company™. Such financial statements have been prepared mm accordance wath
International Finaneial Reporting Standards (“TFES™).

The Company currently has one matenal exploration property, the Monster Lake South Gold Property (also known
as the “Hazeur Property”™) located in Quebec, Canada, the details of which are et out below. The Company has not
vet determined whether 1ts property interests contain reserves that are economically recoverable. The recoverabihity
of amounts shown for resource properties and related deferred exploration expenditures are dependent upon the
discovery of economically recoverable reserves, confirmation of the Company’s mterest m the underlying mmeral
claims, the abibty of the Company to obtam necessary financing to complete the development of the resource
property and upon foture profitable production or proceeds from the disposition thereof

PLAN OF AREANGEMENT

On January 3, 2015 the Company entered info an Awangement Agreement with Cannabix Technologies Inc.
Pursuant to the amrangement agreement, the Company was transferred 100% of the Monster Lake Scuth Gold
Property (also known as the “Hazeur Property™ and 310,000 cash In consideration fiw the property amd
$10,000 cash the Company issued 7,999 894 common shares of Torine to shareholders of Cannabix on a pro
rata basis pursuant to 2 plan of arrangement under the Busmes: Corporations Act (British Columbia).

Shareholder and final cowt approval from the Supreme Cowrt of Brinsh Columbia for the Amanpement were
obtamed on February 17, 2015 and Felwuary 26, 2015, respectively, and the closing date of the Arranpement was
March 12, 2015, Readers may refer to the arrangement agreement of the Company dated Jammary 10, 2015, which 1=
available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and may also refer to the Cannabix Information Corenlar dated January 14,
2015, for addihonal mformaton concerming the Armangement, available on SEDAF. at wwrwr sedar com.

AMATLGAAMATION WITH SMART ATTONOMOTUS SOLUTIONS

On July 20, 2015 the Company entered mto 2 nding Letter of Intent (“LOI™) with Smart Autonomous Solutions
Inc. ("SAS"™) which cutlmed the general terms to which Tormo would amalgamate and complete a share exchange
for the 1ssued and outstanding securities of SAS in exchanpe for secunties of Torno by way of a three-cormered
amalgamation wherebv 545 would amalzamate with a whelly-owned subsidiary of Torme, with the resulting
amalgamated entity becommg a wholly-owned subsidiary of Torne. On August 25, 2015, the Company regmistered
wholly owned subsidiary in Brifish Columbia, Tonno Acqusition Corp. to facihtate the amalgamation with SAS.
On September 3, 20135, the LOI was suparseded by 2 bindng Amalgamation A greement which ameng other things
called for SAS shareholder approval for the transachon, 5:1 consolidation of Torno and completion of 3 mumimum
520:0,000 equuty financmg by Tonmo. Subsequent to the pertod, on November 3, 2015, Tonne Acqgmsition Corp.
closed the amalgamation with SAS. In conjunchon with the amalgamation, the Company 135ued 12,062,927
common shares to securitvholders of SAS.

EXFLORATION PROPERTY
MONSTER LAKE S0UTH GOLD PROPERTY - QUEBEC, CANADA

On March 12, 2015, by way of plan of amangement the Company was fransfarred 100% owmership of the Hazeur
Property (also known as the Monster Lake South property). As consideration for the acqusiton of the Hazewr
Property, the Company 1ssued 7,999 804 Common Shares to Cannabix shareholders at 2 deemed value of $0.02 per
share.

For a full deseniption of the Hazeur Property, in addition to the proposed two-stage work program thereon, please
see the Technical Report titled NI 43-101 Techmical Report On the Monster Lake South property dated March 12,
2015 prepared for the Company by Jeannot Theberge P.Geo, Termax Management Inc., a copy of which has been
filed on SEDAR and available for review at www.sedar.com. The Company will be requred to raize additonal
funds in erder to keep all the Monster Lake South claims in good standing in relation to clamm renewal costs required



by the MEERN. The Company will add and or drop claims based on geological menit and as financal resources
allow.

OVEERALL PERFORMANCE

The Company was incorporated on September 10, 2014 and completed its plan of arrangement on March 12, 2015
and became a reporting issuer in Brtish Columbia, Alberta and Manxtoba. The Company 15 not hsted on any
exchange. Az an exploration stage company, the Company has not generated revenues to date from 1ts properties and
antcipates that i will confinue to require equity fimancng to fund operations wntl such tome as its properhes are put
mnte commercial production on a profitable basis. The Company 15 involved m muneral exploration activifies. As a
result, the Company incwred costs in connection with the acquisition of the Hazeur zold property. Met loss for the
vear ended December 31, 2014 was Snil. Dhomg the six month penod ended September 30, 2015 the Company had
an operatng loss of $107,431. Managements mtends to concentrate 1ts activifies on the gold sector and review other
business opporfunities and anticipates that expenses will likely increase during the foresseable future as it cammes out
its busmess.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Quarter ended September 30, 2015

Dunngz the quarter ended September 30, 2015, the Company mewred expenses of $40.518, pnmanly accrued
consulting fees of 536,000, transfer agent and filing fees of 51,887, professional fees (accounting and legal) of
£2.613, and bank fees of $18. Met loss for the period ended September 30, 2015 was $40.518.

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS
The following 15 a summary of the Company’s financial results for the fowr most recently completed quarters:

Cmarter Qumarter Cmarter Omarter
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September June 30, March 31, Diecember 31,
an, 15 2015 2014
1015 § $ £
$
09/30/2015 06/30/2005 03/31/2015 12312014
Fevenue Hil Hil Hil Hil
Wet income (laoss) {40,518) (36,738) 30,175) Hil
Loss per share, (0.01) {0010 (0.0 0.00
basic and diluted

As a mineral exploraton company, the Company has not generated any revenues to date from 1tz propertes. On a
quarter-tv-quarter basis the loss can fluctuate sigmificantly due to exploration activities during the period.

Dunng the gquarter ended September 30, 2015, the Company mewred expenses of 540,518, pnmanly accrued
consulting fees of 536,000, transfer agent and filing fees of 51,887, professional fees (accounting and legal) of
£2.613, and bank fees of $18. Met loss for the period ended September 30, 2015 was $40.518.

An analysiz of the quarterly results over the last two quarters shows hitfle vanaton i financial performance quarter
by quarter. Since the Company was incorporated on September 10, 2014 theve are no financial statements available
prior to the wvear-end December 31, 2014, Management anticipates expenditures to increases as the Company
mitiates exploration. Chher expenditures should mereaze going forward as management anticipate additional costs
related to the Company’s activities.



USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company has completed 2 plan of arrangement 2z of harch 12, 2013, and a subsequent fmancing on September
2, 2013 for gross proceeds of 5123 400. The Company has rzized thizs money for working capital and to complete the
amzlgamation with Smart Autencmoens Solutions Ine.

LIQUIDITY

The Company has not begun commercial production on any of its resource properties and accordmgly, the Company
does not generate cash from operations. The Company fmances exploration activities by raismg capital from equity
matksts. The Company may encounter difficulty sourcmg future fmancing m light of the recent economic downthum.

The Company had cash of 5101360 zt September 30, 2015 (2014 - SNil) znd working capital of S113,967 =t
September 30, 2013 (2014 - 81).

On September 2, 2015, the Company completed 2 non-brokerad private placement for gross procseds of $123.400
through the sale of 2,500,000 Units. Ezch Unit 15 comprised of one common share ("Common Share") at $0.03
cents, and ons-and one half transfersble commoen share purchase warrant ("Warrant") exercisable at $0.10 cents per
common share, expiring on September 2, 2017,

On September 1, 2015, the Company consclidated it commeon shares on 2 3:1 basis.

On March 12, 20135, the Company issued 7,999,804 common shares i accordance with the Arrangement A preement
with Cannabix Technologies Inc.

If zdditionzl fumds are required, the Company plans to rzise additionz] capitsl primerily through the private
plzcement of its equity securities. Under such circumstances, there is no assuranee that the Company will be able to
obtam further funds required for the Company’s contmued working capitzl requirements. Due to the recovery from
the global fmancizl crisis, and overall malaise m the jumior exploraton'mmmg sector, the Company may fmd it
mereasmgly difficult to raise the fimds required to contmue the Company’s operations. Share prices have undergone
sipnificant decrezses and any issuance of the Company’s equity securities m the near fiture may result in substantial
dilution to the Company’s existing shareholders.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company helds 2 100% mtersst m the Monster Lake South property and 15 not required to make any further
expendimire commitments on this property. All share and cash payments related to the honster Lake South property
have been paid m full.

The Company will be required to raize additional funds m order to keep zll the claims on the Monster Lake South
property m good standing i relation to claim renewal costs required by the MEEN. The Company will add and or
drop clzims based on geelogical merit and 2s fmanecial resources allow.

Operating Activities

The Company used net cash of 5101,025 m operating activities durimg the peried ended September 30, 20135 (2014 -
SIN).

Financing Activities

The Company received net cash of 5223 400 m fmanemg zctivities during the peried ended September 30, 2013
(2014 - SNi).

Investing Activities

The Company used cash of 520,000 n mvesting zctivities durmg the period ended September 30, 2015 (2014 -
SINAI).



OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has not entered mto anv off-balance sheet amangements.

TREANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Dhuring the penod ended September 30, 2013, the Company acerued 36,000 m consulting fees to Directors of the
Company.

FROPOSED TRANSACTIONS
There are no propesed transachons that have not been disclosed heremn

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 2, 20135, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement for zross proceeds of 5407 300
through the sale of 4,075,500 Units. Each Unit 15 comprised of one commeon share ("Common Share™) at 50.10
cents, and one half non-transferable common share purchase warrant ("Warrant") exercizable at 50.20 cents per
common share for a period of 18 months from the date of closing.

On November 6, 2013, the Company completed a three-cornered amalgamation whereby Smart Autonomous
Selutions Ine. ("SAS") amalgamated with a whelly-owned subsidiary of the Company (Torme Aecqusition Ceorp).
The Amalpamanon was filed with British Columbia Eegistry Sarmaces as of November 5, 2015, In conjunction with
the Amalgamation, Torno 1ssued 12062927 common shares to securitvholders of 5AS. The Company had
previcusly paid a £20,000 depo=it to SAS on August 14, 2015 pursuant to the binding 10T dated July 20, 2015.

On Movember 12, 2015, the Company completed a name change, and 15 now known as Torme Power Solutions Inc.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and mterpretations, are not yet effective for the penod
ended September 30, 2015, and have not been applied m prepanng these financial statements.

Mew standard IFRS 9. “Financial Inshuments™

Amendments to LTAS 32, “Fmaneial nstruments: Presentation”

The Company has not early adopted these revised standards and is corvently assessing the impact that these
standards will have on the financial statements.

Orther accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been 1:smed but have future
effective dates are erther not applicable or are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial
statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER INSTREUMENTS

The Company's financial mstroments consist of cash, amounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued halihities,
and due to related parties. Unless otherwize noted, 1f 15 management’s opimon that the Company 1s not exposed to
sigmificant mterest rate, currency or credit nsks ansmg from these financal mstruments. The far values of these
financial mstmmments approximate their cammving values due to the relatively short-term matwity of thess
nstruments.



ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE FORE VENTURE ISSUERS WITHOUT SIGNIFICANT REVENTE

Druning the three month penod ended September 30, 2015, the Company incwred the following expenses:

Quarter Ended
September 30, 2015
Exploration costs $mal
General and administrative costs $40,518

An analysiz of material components of the Company’s general and admimshative expenses i1s disclosed n the
unzudited financial statements for the period ended September 30, 20135 to which thiz MDW&A relates. An analysis of
the matenial components of the mineral property acquisition costs 15 disclosed in the notes to the unaudited financial
statements for the penod ended September 30, 2015 to which thas MD&A relates.

The Company had one exploration property during the period ended September 30, 2015 and contrels 100% of the
Monster Lake South property and has no existing work commitments.

DISCLOSTUEE OF OUTSTANDING SHAFRE DATA
Common Shares

The Company’s common shares are not histed on any exchanpe Az at November 26, 2015, the Company had
21,637,905 common shares 15sued and outstanding.

Share Purchase Warrants

As at September 30, 2015, the following share purchase warrants were outstanding:

Mumber of Exercise
warrants price
3,750,000 0.10 September 2, 2017
3,750,000

————

Steck Options
The Company has not granted stock options.
RISK FACTORS

Much of the information meluded in this report includes or 1z based upon estimates, projections or other forward-
locking statements. Such forward-locking statements melude any projections or estimates made by the Company
and ifs management in connection with the Company’s busmess operations. While these forward-locking
statements, and any assumphons upon which they are based, are made in good fauth and reflect the Company’s
current judgment regarding the direction of its business, actual results will almost always vary, somefimes
materially, from any estimates, predichons, projections, assumptons, or other fitwre performance suggested herein.
Except as requred by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances ocownng after the date of such statements.

Such eshimates, projections or other forward-locking statements invelve varous risks and uncertamties as cutlined
below. The Company cautions readers of this report that important factors m some cases have affected and, m the
future, could matenally affect actual results and cause actual results to differ matenially from the results expressed in
any such estimates, projections or other forward-locking statements. In evaluating the Company, 1ts business and
any nvestment m its business, readers should carefully consider the following factors:

Rizks Related to the Company's Business



Becausze of the unigue difficulties and uncertainties inkerent in mineral exploration ventures, the Comparny faces a
high risk af businesz failure.

Potential mnvestors should be aware of the difficulties normally encountered by mineral exploration companies and
the high rate of failure of such enterpnzes. The hkebhood of suceess must be conmidered m hight of the problems,
expenses, difficulties, complications and delavs encountered m connection with the exploration program that the
Company mtends to undertake on 1ts properties and any addihonal properties that the Company may acqgure. These
potential problems melude unanticipated problems relating to exploratton, and additional costs and expenses that
may exceed cwrent estimates. The expenditres to be made by the Company in the exploration of its properties may
not result in the discovery of mineral deposits. Any expenditwres that the Company may make m the exploration of
any other muneral property that 1t mav acqure may not result mm the discovery of any commercially exploitable
mineral deposits. Problems such as wnusual or unexpected geclogical formations and other conditions are mmvolved
m all mmeral exploration and often result m unsuccessful exploration effort=. If the results of the Company’'s
exploration do not reveal viable commercial mineralization, the Company may decide to abandon some or all of 1ts
property mterests.

Loss of Interest In Properties

The Company's ability to mamtam an interest in the properties optioned by the Company will be dependent on 1ts
ahility to raise addinonal finds by equty financing. Failure to obtain additional financing may result m the
Company being unable to make the perodic payments required to keep the property mnterests m good standing and
could result m the delay or postponement of further exploration and or the partial or total loss of the Company's
interest m the properties optioned by the Company, meluding the Cruzhfying Property.

Because of the speculative nature of the exploration of mineval properties, there is ne assurance that the Company s
exploration activities will rezult in the discovery of any guantitiez of mineral deposiis on itz cwrrent properties or
any other additional properties the Comparny may acgquire.

The Company mtends to continue exploration on its cwrent properties and the Company may or may not acgure
additional miterests mn other mineral properties. The search for mineral deposits as a busmess 15 extremely rizky.
The Company can provide investors with no asswance that exploraton on 1ts cwrent properties, or any other

property that the Company may acqgure, will establish that any commercially exploitable quantibes of mmeral
deposits exist. Additonal potential problems may prevent the Company from discovermg any mmeral deposits.
Thesze potential problems include unanticipated problems relatimg to exploration and addihonal costs and expenses
that mav exceed cwrent estimates. If the Company 15 unable to estabhish the prezence of mineral deposits on its
properties, its ability to fund fohwre exploration activihes will be impeded, the Company will not be able to operate
profitably and investors may lose all of thew investment m the Company.

The potential prafitability of mineral venturas depends in part upen factors bevond the control of the Company and
even [f the Company dizcevers and exploitz mineral deposits, the Company may never become commercially viable
and the Company may be forced to cease operations.

The commercial feasiility of an exploration program on a mmeral property 15 dependent upon many factors beyond
the Company’s control, including the existence and size of mineral deposits mn the properties the Company explores,
the proximuty and capacity of processing equipment, market fluctuations of prices, taxes, royalties, land tenure,
allowrable production and environmental regulation. These factors cannot be accurately predicted and any one or a
combination of these factors may result m the Company net receiving an adequate retwn on invested capital These
factors mav have material and negative effects on the Company’s finaneal performance and 1= ability to continue
operations.

Exploration and exploirarion activities are subject to comprehensive regulation which may cause subszrantial delays
or require capital outlavs in excess of those anticipated causing an adverse effect on the Comparry.

Exploration and exploitation activifies are subject to federal provineial state and local laws, regulations and
policies, mehiding laws regulating the removal of natwral resources from the ground and the discharge of matenals
mto the envirenment Exploration and explotahion achvities are also subject to federal provinmal state and local



laws and regulations which seek to mamtain health and safety standards by regulating the design and use of dnlling
methods and equipment.

Environmental and cther legal standards imposed by federal, provinecial, state or local authomifies may be changed
and any such changes may prevent the Company from conducting planned activities or may inecrease its costs of
domg so, which would have material adverse effects on its business. Moreover, compliance with such laws may
cause substantial delays or require capital outlays in excess of those anficipated, thus causing an adverse effect on
the Company. Addihonally, the Company may be subject to habihty for pollubon or other environmenta] damages
that the Company mav not be able to or elect not fo Imswre agamst due to prolubitive premium costs and other
reasons. Any laws, regulations or pelicies of any government body or regulatory agency may be changed, applied or
mterpreted in 3 manner whnch will alter and negatively affect the Company’s abality to cammy on 1ts business.

Title to mineral propertias is a complex process and the Company may suffer a matarial adverse gffect in the event
one or more of itz property infevests are determined to have fitle deficiencias.

Acqusition of fitle to mmeral properties 15 a very detailed and tfime-copsummg process. Title to, and the area of,
mineral properties may be disputed. Although the Company has obtamed a fitle opinon (m 20107 with respect to its
Monster Lake South property mterests, the Company cannet give an assurance that title to such property will not be
challenged or impugned. Mmerzl properties sometimes contain claims or transfer histories that exammers cannot
wvenfy. A successful clamm that the Company does not have title to one or more of its propertes could cause the
Company to lose any nghts to explore, develop and mine any minerals on that property, without compensation for
1tz prior expenditures relating to such property.

The properties optoned by the Company may now or m the foture be the subject of first nations land claim=. The
legal nature of aborizgmal land claims 15 2 matter of considerable complexity. The mmpact of any such claim on the
Company's ownership interest i the properties optioned by the Company cannot be predicted with any degree of
certainty and po assurance can be given that a broad recogmiton of aborigmal rights n the area m which the
properties optioned by the Company are located, by way of a negotiated settlement or judicial pronouncement,
would not have an adverse effect on the Companv's activines. Even m the absence of such recopnition, the
Company may at some point be requoed to negotiate with first nations In order to faclifate exploration and
development work on the properties optioned by the Company.

Because the Company s property interests may not contain mineral deposits and because it has never made a profit
from itz operations, the Company s securitiez are kighly speculative and irvestors may lose all f their inveztment in
the Company.

The Company’s securiies must be conmidered highly speculative, generally because of the nature of its business and
itz stage of operations. The Company cwrently has exploration stage property interests which mav not contain
mineral depesits. The Company may or may not acquire addiheonal mterests in other mineral properties but the
Company does not have plans to acquoe nights m any specific mineral propertes as of the date of this report.
Accordmgly, the Company has not generated sigmficant revenues nor has it realized a profit from its operations to
date and there 15 little hkelihood that the Company will generate anv revenues or realize any profits in the short
term. Any profitability in the future from the Company’s business wall be dependent upon locating and exploiting
mineral deposits on the Company’s current propertes or muneral deposits on any additonal properfies that the
Company may acquire. The hkehhood that any mimeral properties that the Company mav acquire or have an mterest
in will contam commercially exploitable mmeral deposits 15 extremely remote. The Company mav never discover
mineral deposits m respect to its cwrent properties or any other area, or the Company may do so and =hll not be
commercially successful if the Company 15 unable to exploit those mineral deposits profitably. The Company mav
not be able to operate profitably and may have to cease operations, the price of its secunfies may decline and
mvestors may lose all of thewr investment in the Company.

As the Company faces mienze competition in the mineral exploration and exploitation indusiry, the Comparny will
have to compets with the Company s competitors for financing and for gualified mamagerial and technical
smplovess.

The Company’s competiion includes large established muming compames with substanhal capabiliies and with
greater financial and technical resources than the Company. As a result of this competihon, the Company may have



to compete for inancing and be unable to zcquire financmye on terms it considers acceptable. The Company may
also have to compete with the other mmmmgz compames for the recnutment and retention of quahified managerial and
technical employees. Ifthe Company 15 unable to successfully compete for financing or for qualified employees, the
Company's exploration programs may be slowed down or suspended, which may cause the Company to ceaze
operaflons as a COmpany.

The Company 'z funure is dependent upon itz ability to ebtain financing and {f the Company dees not obtaim such
Sfinancing, the Company may have fo cease itz exploration activities and investers could lase their entive invesiment.

There 15 no assurance that the Company will operate profitably or will generate pesitive cash flow in the fuhwe. The
Company requires additional financmg in order to proceed with the exploration and development of its propertes.
The Company will alse require addittonal financing for the fees it must pay to mamtain its status in relation to the
night= to the Company's properties and to pay the fees and expenses necessary to operate as a public company. The
Company will also need more funds 1f the costs of the exploration of 1tz mimeral claims are greater tham the
Company has anticipated. The Company will require additional financing to sustam its business operations 1f it 1s
not successful in eammg revenues. The Company will also need firther financing if 1t decides to obtam addihonal
mineral properties. The Company cwrently does not have any arrangements for further financmg and 1t mav not be
able to obtain finaneing when required The Company's future 15 dependent upon its abality to obtzin financmz. If
the Company doss not obtam such financing, 1tz business could fail and mvestors could lose their entive imvestment.

The Company'’s divectors and officers are engaged in other business activities and accerdingly may not devete
syfficient fime to the Company = business qffairs, which may gffect itz ability fe conducti operations and generate
FEVERUES.

The Company’s directors and officers are involved m other business activaties. As a result of therr other business
endeavours, the directors and officers may not be able to devote sufficient time to the Company’'s business affairs,
which may negatively affect its abulity to conduct its ongoing operations and its abality to generate revenues. In
addition, the management of the Company may be periodically mterrupted or delaved as a result of 1t= officers” other
business mterests.

Risks Eelating to the Company's Common Stock

A decline in the price of the Company s commen stock could qffecr itz ability to raise fiurther working capiral and
adversely impact itz ability to continue operations.

A prolonged declhine m the price of the Company's commeon stock could result in a reduction in the hgmdity of 1ts
commeon stock and a redecheon in ifs ahility to rase capital Because a sigmficant portion of the Company’'s
operafions have been and will be financed through the sale of equity secuntes, a decline m the pnce of its common
stock could be especially detrimental to the Company's hqudity and 1ts operations. Such reductions mayv force the
Company to reallocate funds from other planned uses and may have a significant negative effect on the Company’s
business plan and operations, neludmg 1ts ability to develop new products and confinue 1ts cwrent operations. If the
Company's stock price dechines, it can offer no asswrance that the Company will be able to raise addrtional capital or
generate funds from operations sufficient to meet 1ts obligatons. If the Company 15 unable to rmise sufficient capatal
m the fuhwe, the Company may not be abla to have the resources to contmue 1ts normal operations.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Addiional mformation about the Company 15 available on SEDAFR at http:/srawrw sedar com.

BOARD APFROVAL

The board of directors of the Company has approved this MD&EA.
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TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC.

Pro-Forma Statement of Financial position
As at September 30, 2015

(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Smart
Autonomous Toring
Solutions Wentures Pro-Forma Pro-Forma
Inc. Ime. Adjustments Balance
;] b Mote ] 5
Aszets
Current assets
Cash 274,714 101,560 376,274
Deposits - 20,000 2(a) 20,000) -
Amounts receivable 10,253 10,243 20,496
Prepaid expenses 643 - 643
Total current assets 285,610 131,803 397 413
MNon-cumrent assets
Property and equipment 8,392 - 8,392
Intangible assets 1,888,542 - 1,888,542
Exploration and evaluation assets — 22 800 22 800
Total non-current assets 1,896 934 22,800 1,919,734
Toial as=ets 2182 544 154 603 2317 147
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 78,337 15,834 94,171
Convertible notes 199,527 - 199,527
Deposit 20,000 - 2(a) 20,000} -
Total liabilities 297 864 15,834 293 698
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 3,485,590 236,200 2(b) 3,721,790
Share subscriptions receivable - 10,000 10,000
Contributed surplus 225,000 - 225,000
Deficit {1,825.910) (107 431) (1,933,341)
Total shareholders' equity 1,884 680 138,769 2023449
Total liakilities and shareholders’ equity 2,182 544 134 603 2,317 147

Basis of presentation (Mote 1)

Pro-forma adjustments and assumptions (Mote 2)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these pro-forma financial statements)
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TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC.
Pro-Forma Consolidated Income Statement

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015
(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Smart Toarino
Autonomous Ventures Pro-Forma Pro-Forma
Solutions Inc. Inc. Adjustments Balance
F b Mote 5 5

Revenue - - - -
Operating expenses

Professional fees 39,934 2,613 42 54T

Bank and interest charges 5,838 54 5,892

Consulting fees 116,305 102,000 218,305

Development expense 3,758 - 3,758

Duty and brokerage 616 - 616

Insurance 3,642 - 3,642

Internet 5,671 - 5,671

Office and general 7,104 - 7,104

Rent 33,669 - 33,669

Amortization expense 189,642 - 189,642

Travel 1,200 - 1,200

Wages and benefits 132,185 - 132,185

Transfer agent fees — 2,764 2,764
Total operating expenses 539,564 107,431 646,995
Met loss before other income (539,564) (107,431) (6465,995)
Other income and expenszes

Industrial Research Assistance

Program Credit 38 446 - 38 446
Met loss and comprehensive loss for (501,118) (107,431) (608,549)
the period
Loss per share, basic and diluted (0.05) (0.02) (0.04)
Weighted average shares outstanding 10,528,089 5,649 804 2{b) 16,177,893

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these pro-forma financial statements)
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TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC.
Pro-forma Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the Mine Months Ended September 30, 2015
(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Share
Share capital subscriptions  Confributed
MNumber Amount receivable surplus Deficit Total

of shares g 5 ] b 5
Torino Balance, December 31,
2014 1 1 - - - 1
Incorporation share cancelled (1) (1) - - - (1)
Shares issued pursuant to plan
of amangement 7,999 984 32, 800 - - - 32,800
Conszolidation of plan of
amangement shares (5:1) (6,400,006 - - - - -
Shares issued for debt 1,500,000 90,000 - - - 50,000
Shares issued pursuant to
private placement 2,500,000 115,000 10,000 - - 125,000
Share izsue costs - (1,600} - - - (1,600}
Met loss - - - - (107 431) (107 431)
SAS Balance, December 31,
2014 10,317,049 3,235,002 - 225000 (1,324,792) 2,136,210
Shares issusd pursuant to
finders' fee 1,515,678 151,588 - - - 151,588
Shares issued for inteliectual
property 550,000 55,000 - - - 55,000
Shares returned to treasury (1,000,000} (25,000) - - - (25,000)
Shares issued pursuant to
shares for debt 680,000 68,000 - - - 68,000
Met and comprehensive loss - — - — {=01,118) (501,118)
Pro-forma balances,
September 30, 2015 17,662,905  3.721,790 10,000 225000 (1,933,341) 2,023,449

{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these pro-forma financial statements)
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TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC.

Motes to the unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial statements
(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

September 30, 2015

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited pro-forma consclidated financial statements of Torino Power Solutions Inc. (the
“Company”) have been prepared by management im accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards from information derived from the September 30, 2015 unaudited
condenged interim financial statements of the Company, the September 30, 2015 unaudited
condensed interim financial statements of Smart Autonomous Solutions Ins. (SAS), together with
other information available to the Company. The unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial
statements have been prepared for inclusion in the Mon-Offering Prospectus of the Company,
which contains the details of the three-cormered amalgamation (the “Amalgamation™). Pursuant to
the Amalgamation, the Company intends to issue 12,062,927 common shares to the security
holders of SAS.

The unaudited consolidated pro-forma financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
September 30, 2015 unaudited interim financial statements of the Company along with the
September 30, 2015 unaudited interim financial of SAS.

The unaudited pro-forma financial statements of the Company have been compiled from and
include:

a) the unaudited condensed interim statements of financial position of the Company and
SAS as at September 30, 2015,

b) the unaudited condensed statements of change in shareholders’ equity of the Company
and SAS as of September 30, 2015; and

c) the additional information get out in Note 2.

The unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial statements of the Company have been compiled
using the significant accounting policies as set out in the Company's audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2014 and those accounting policies expected to be adopted by
the Company.

The unaudited pro-forma consclidated financial statements are not necessarily indicative of the
financial position that would have been aftained had the transactions actually taken place at the
dates indicated and do not purport to be indicative of the effects that may be expected to ocour in
the future.

2. PRO-FORMA ADJUSTMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial statements were prepared based on the following
assumptions:

a) The Company paid SAS a deposit of 320,000 on August 14, 2015 pursuant to the binding
LOI dated Julky 20, 2015.



TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC.

Motes to the unaudited pro-forma congolidated financial statements
(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

{Expressed in Canadian dollars)

September 30, 2015

2. PRO-FORMA ADJUSTMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS (cont'd...)

b) Purzuant to the Amalgamation, the Company will issue security holders of each issued
and outstanding commaon share of A5 one New Commaon Share of the Company.

3. EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

The combined federal and provincial effective tax rate for 2015 will be 26%.



APPENDIX 7 — AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

TORINO POWER SOLUTIONS INC.
(the “Company”)

(Adopted as of December 14, 2015)

PURPOSE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (the "Committee") is a standing committee of the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the
Company. The role of the Committee is to:

a) assist the Board in its oversight responsibilities by reviewing: (i) the Company's financial
statements, the financial and internal controls and the accounting, audit and reporting activities,
(ii) the Company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (iii) the external auditors'
qualifications and independence, and (iv) the scope, results and findings of the Company's
external auditors' audit and non-audit services;

b) prepare any report of the Committee required to be included in the Company's annual report or
proxy material;

c) report to the Board in respect of the Company’s financial statements prior to the Board
approving such statements; and

d) take such other actions within the scope of this Charter as the Board may assign to the
Committee from time to time or as the Committee deems necessary or appropriate.

2. COMPOSITION, OPERATIONS AND AUTHORITY
Composition

The Committee shall be composed of a minimum of three members of the Board. Unless exempted by applicable
securities laws and applicable stock exchange policies, all members of the Committee shall be independent as
determined by the Board in accordance with the applicable requirements of the laws governing the Company, the
applicable stock exchanges on which the Company's securities are listed and applicable securities regulatory
authorities (collectively, the "Applicable Law"). Each member of the Committee shall be "financially literate" as
such term is defined by the Applicable Law.

Members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board and continue to be members until their successors
are elected and qualified or until their earlier death, retirement, resignation or removal. Any member of the
Committee may be removed by the Board in its discretion. However, a member of the Committee shall
automatically cease to be a member of the Committee upon either ceasing to be a director of the Board or, if
applicable, ceasing to be independent as required in this Section 2 of this Charter. Vacancies on the Committee
will be filled by the Board.

Authority

The authority of the Committee is subject to the provisions of this Charter, the constating documents of the
Company, such limitations as may be imposed by the Board from time to time and Applicable Law.

The Committee shall have the authority to: (i) retain (at the Company's expense) its own legal counsel and other
advisors and experts that the Committee believes, in its sole discretion, are needed to carry out its duties and
responsibilities; (ii) conduct investigations that it believes, in its sole discretion, are necessary to carry out its
responsibilities; and (iii) take whatever actions that it deems appropriate to foster an internal culture that is
committed to maintaining quality financial reporting, sound business risk practices and ethical behavior within the



Company. In addition, the Committee shall have the authority to request any officer, director or employee of the
Company, or any other persons whose advice and counsel are sought by the Committee, such as members of the
Company's management or the Company's outside legal counsel and external auditors, to meet with the
Committee or any of its advisors and to respond to their inquiries. The Committee shall have full access to the
books, records and facilities of the Company in carrying out its responsibilities.

The Committee shall have the authority to delegate to one or more of its members, responsibility for developing
recommendations for consideration by the Committee with respect to any of the matters referred to in this
Charter.

Operations

The Board may appoint one member of the Committee to serve as chair of the Committee (the "Chair"), but if it
fails to do so, the members of the Committee shall designate a Chair by majority vote of the full Committee to
serve at the pleasure of the majority of the full Committee. If the Chair of the Committee is not present at any
meeting of the Committee, an acting Chair for the meeting shall be chosen by majority vote of the Committee
from among the members present. In the case of a deadlock on any matter or vote, the Chair shall refer the
matter to the Board. The Committee may appoint a secretary who need not be a member of the Board or
Committee. A secretary who is not a member of the Committee shall not have the rights of a member of the
Committee.

The Chair shall preside at each meeting of the Committee and set the agendas for the Committee meetings. The
Committee shall have the authority to establish its own rules and procedures for notice and conduct of its
meetings as long as they are not inconsistent with any provisions of the Company's constating documents or this
Charter.

The Committee shall meet (in person or by telephonic meeting) at least quarterly or more frequently as
circumstances dictate. As a part of each meeting of the Committee at which the Committee recommends that the
Board approve the annual audited financial statements, the Committee shall meet in a separate session with the
external auditors and, if desired, with management and/or the internal auditor. In addition, the Committee or the
Chair shall meet with management quarterly to review the Company's financial statements and the Committee or
a designated member of the Committee shall meet with the external auditors to review the Company's financial
statements on a regular basis as the Committee may deem appropriate. The Committee shall maintain written
minutes or other records of its meetings and activities, which shall be duly filed in the Company's records.

Except as otherwise required by the Company's constating documents, a majority of the members of the
Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority of the members
present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Committee. The Committee may also act
by unanimous written consent in lieu of a meeting.

The Chair of the Committee shall report to the Board following meetings of the Committee and as otherwise
requested by the Board.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES
The Committee's primary responsibilities are to:
General

a) review and assess the adequacy of this Charter on an annual basis and, where necessary or
desirable, recommend changes to the Board;

b) report to the Board regularly at such times as the Chair may determine to be appropriate but not
less frequently than four times per year;

c) follow the process established for all committees of the Board for assessing the Committee's
performance;



Review of Financial Statements, MD&A and other Documents

)

d) review the Company's financial statements and related management's discussion and analysis
and any other annual reports or other financial information to be submitted to any governmental
body or the public, including any certification, report, opinion or review rendered by the external
auditors before they are approved by the Board and publicly disclosed;

e) report to the Board in respect of the Company’s financial statements prior to the Board
approving such statements;

f)  review with the Company's management and, if applicable, the external auditors, the Company's
quarterly financial statements and related management's discussion and analysis, before they
are released;

ensure that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Company's disclosure of financial
information extracted or derived from the Company's financial statements other than the disclosure
referred to in the two immediately preceding paragraphs and periodically assess the adequacy of such
procedures;

review the effects of regulatory and accounting initiatives, as well as off-balance sheet structures, on the
financial statements of the Company;

review with the Company's management any press release of the Company which contains financial
information;

review analyses prepared by management and/or the external auditors setting forth significant reporting
issues and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the Company's financial statements;

External Auditors

k)

m)

n)

s)

t)

recommend external auditors' nominations to the Board to be put before the shareholders for
appointment and, as necessary, the removal of any external auditors in office from time to time;

approve the fees and other compensation to be paid to the external auditors;

pre-approve all significant non-audit engagements to be provided to the Company with the external
auditors;

require the external auditors to submit to the Committee, on a regular basis (at least annually), a formal
written statement delineating all relationships between the external auditors and the Company and
discuss with the external auditors any relationships that might affect the external auditors' objectivity and
independence;

recommend to the Board any action required to ensure the independence of the external auditors;

advise the external auditors of their ultimate accountability to the Board and the Committee;

oversee the work of the external auditors engaged for the purpose of preparing an audit report or
performing other audit, review and attest services for the Company;

evaluate the qualifications, performance and independence of the external auditors which are to report
directly to the Committee, including (i) reviewing and evaluating the lead partner on the external auditors'
engagement with the Company, (ii) considering whether the auditors' quality controls are adequate and
the provision of permitted non-audit services is compatible with maintaining the auditors' independence,
(iii) determine the rotation of the lead audit partner and the audit firm, and (iv) take into account the
opinions of management and the internal audit function in assessing the external auditors' qualifications,
independence and performance;

present the Committee's conclusions with respect to its evaluation of external auditors to the Board and
take such additional action to satisfy itself of the qualifications, performance and independence of
external auditors and make further recommendations to the Board as it considers necessary;

obtain and review a report from the external auditors at least annually regarding the external auditors'
internal quality-control procedures; material issues raised by the most recent internal quality-control
review, or peer review, of the firm, or by any inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional
authorities within the preceding five years respecting one or more external audits carried out by the firm;



any steps taken to deal with any such issues; and all relationships between the external auditors and the
Company;

establish policies for the Company's hiring of employees or former employees of the external auditors;
monitor the relationship between management and the external auditors including reviewing any
management letters or other reports of the external auditors and discussing any material differences of
opinion between management and the external auditors;

Financial Reporting Process

w)
X)
y)

z)

aa)

bb)

cc)

dd)

ee)
ff)

gg)

hh)

periodically discuss the integrity, completeness and accuracy of the Company's internal controls and the
financial statements with the external auditors in the absence of the Company's management;

in consultation with the external auditors, review the integrity of the Company's financial internal and
external reporting processes;

consider the external auditors' assessment of the appropriateness of the Company's auditing and
accounting principles as applied in its financial reporting;

review and discuss with management and the external auditors at least annually and approve, if
appropriate, any material changes to the Company's auditing and accounting principles and practices
suggested by the external auditors, internal audit personnel or management;

review and discuss with the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and the Chief Financial Officer (the "CFQO") the
procedures undertaken in connection with the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
certifications for the interim and annual filings with applicable securities regulatory authorities;

review disclosures made by the CEO and CFO during their certification process for the annual and interim
filings with applicable securities regulatory authorities about any significant deficiencies in the design or
operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the Company's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data or any material weaknesses in the internal controls, and any fraud
involving management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company's internal controls;

establish regular and separate systems of reporting to the Committee by management and the external
auditors of any significant decision made in management's preparation of the financial statements,
including the reporting of the view of management and the external auditors as to the appropriateness of
such decisions;

discuss during the annual audit, and review separately with each of management and the external
auditors, any significant matters arising from the course of any audit, including any restrictions on the
scope of work or access to required information; whether raised by management, the head of internal
audit or the external auditors;

resolve any disagreements between management and the external auditors regarding financial reporting;

review with the external auditors and management the extent to which changes or improvements in
financial or accounting practices, as approved by the Committee, have been implemented at an
appropriate time subsequent to the implementation of such changes or improvements;

retain and determine the compensation of any independent counsel, accountants or other advisors to
assist in its oversight responsibilities (the Committee shall not be required to obtain the approval of the
Board for such purposes);

discuss any management or internal control letters or proposals to be issued by the external auditors of
the Company;

Corporate Controls and Procedures

i)

i)

kk)

receive confirmation from the CEO and CFO that reports to be filed with Canadian Securities commissions
and any other applicable regulatory agency: (a) have been prepared in accordance with the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures; and (b) contain no material misrepresentations or omissions and
fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition, results of operations and cash flow as of
and for the period covered by such reports;

receive confirmation from the CEO and CFO that they have concluded that the disclosure controls and
procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by such reports;

discuss with the CEO and CFO any reasons for which any of the confirmations referred to in the two
preceding paragraphs cannot be given by the CEO and CFO;



Code of Conduct and Ethics

Il) review and discuss the Company's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the actions taken to monitor
and enforce compliance with the Code;

mm) establish procedures for: i) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding
accounting, internal controls or auditing matters; and ii) the confidential, anonymous submission of
concerns regarding questionable accounting, internal control and auditing matters;

Legal Compliance

nn) confirm that the Company's management has the proper review system in place to ensure that the
Company's financial statements, reports, press releases and other financial information satisfy Applicable
Law;

00) review legal compliance matters with the Company's legal counsel;

pp) review with the Company's legal counsel any legal matter that the Committee understands could have a
significant impact on the Company's financial statements;

gqg) conduct or authorize investigations into matters within the Committee's scope of responsibilities;

rr) perform any other activities in accordance with the Charter, the Company's constating documents and
Applicable Law the Committee or the Board deems necessary or appropriate;

ss) maintain minutes and other records of meetings and activities of the Committee;

Related Party Transactions

tt) review the financial reporting of any transaction between the Company and any officer, director or other
"related party" (including any shareholder holding an interest greater than 5% in the Company) or any
entity in which any such person has a financial interest;

uu) review policies and procedures with respect to directors' and officers' expense accounts and management
perquisites and benefits, including their use of corporate assets and expenditures;

Reporting and Powers

w) report to the Board following each meeting of the Committee and at such other times as the Board may
consider appropriate; and

ww)exercise such other powers and perform such other duties and responsibilities as are incidental to the
purposes, duties and responsibilities specified herein and as may from time to time be delegated to the
Committee by the Board.

6. LIMITATION OF RESPONSIBILITY

While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers provided by this Charter, it is not the duty of the
Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Company's financial statements are complete and
accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. This is the responsibility of
management (with respect to whom the Committee performs an oversight function) and the external auditors.
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